
 
   DEPT.: SECRETARIAL 

 
The South Indian Bank Ltd., Regd. Office: Thrissur, Kerala  

Head Office: S.I.B. House, T.B. Road, P.B. No: 28, Thrissur - 680001, Kerala  
(Tel) 0487-2420 020, (Fax) 91 487-244 2021, e-mail: sibcorporate@sib.co.in  

CIN: L65191KL 1929PLC001017, Toll Free (India) 1800-102-9408, 1800-425-1809 (BSNL) 
www.southindianbank.com 

 
 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., 
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, 
Plot No.C/1, G Block, 
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), 
Mumbai – 400 051. 
 
SCRIP CODE: SOUTHBANK 

BSE Ltd.  
Department of Corporate Services (Listing), 
First Floor, New Trading Wing,  
Rotunda Building, P J Towers,                                                           
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001. 
 
SCRIP CODE: 532218 

 
Dear Sir/Madam(s), 
 
Subject: Regulations 30, 42 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and outcome of the meeting of the Board of Directors 
of The South Indian Bank Limited (the “Bank”) held on February 21, 2024 
 
This is further to the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Bank (the “Board”) held on December 
27, 2023 , approving the offer and issuance of fully paid-up equity shares of the Bank (the “Rights 
Equity Shares”) for an amount not exceeding ₹1,750 crore , by way of a rights issue (“Rights 
Issue”), in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as 
amended, other applicable laws and our prior intimation dated February 15, 2024. 
 
Pursuant to the above referred, we wish to inform you that the Board of Directors at their meeting 
held today, i.e. on February 21, 2024, has inter alia considered and approved the following terms of 
the Rights Issue:  
 
a. Total number of Rights Equity Shares and Rights Issue size: 5,231,85,254 Rights Equity Shares 

each on fully--paid up basis for an amount aggregating upto ₹1,151.01 crores (assuming full 
subscription with respect to Rights Equity Shares). 

 
b. Rights Issue Price: ₹ 22 per Rights Equity Share fully paid-up (including a premium of  ₹ 21 per 

Rights Equity Share) on application. 
 

c. Record date: Tuesday, February 27,2024  
 

d. Rights Issue period: 
 
1. Rights Issue Opening Date: Wednesday, March 6, 2024; and 
2. Rights Issue Closing Date: Wednesday, March 20, 2024. 

  
e. Outstanding Equity Shares: 

 
1. prior to the Rights Issue: 209,27,41,018 equity shares of theBank;  
2. post Rights Issue#: 261,59,26,272  equity shares of theBank.  

      #Assuming full subscription with respect to Rights Equity Shares. 

REF. No. :   SEC/ST.EX.STT/ 211 /2023-24 
DATE      :     February  21, 2024 
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f. Other terms of the Rights Issue (including fractional entitlements and zero entitlements):  To be 

included in the letter of offer to be filed by the Bank with the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India, BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

g. Rights entitlement ratio: 1 Rights Equity Shares for every 4 fully paid-up equity share of the 
Bank held by the eligible equity shareholders of the Bank, as on the record date ("Eligible Equity 
Shareholders”) 

 
h. ISIN for Rights Entitlement: INE683A20015 
 
Further, please find enclosed herewith, i) the Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Bank and its Subsidiary, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023; ii) the Reformatted Standalone 
Financial Statements of the Bank as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023 (“Reformatted 
Financial Statements”); iii) the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 
(including cash flow) of the Bank and its Subsidiary as at and for the nine-month period ended 
December 31, 2023 and iv) the Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 
(including cash flow) of the Bank as at and for the nine-month period ended December 31, 2023 
(“Condensed Financial Statements”) along with the review reports on the Reformatted Standalone 
and Consolidated Financial Statements and review reports on the Interim Condensed Standalone and 
Consolidated Financial Statements issued by the Joint Statutory Central Auditors of the Bank and 
approved by the Board in its meeting held today, on February 21, 2024. 
 
Additionally, the Board also approved the Letter of Offer to be filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 
 
The meeting of the Board commenced at 4:00 p.m. and concluded at 9:15 p.m. 
 
The above information is also available on the website of the Bank, i.e.www.southindianbank.com. 
 
We request you to take the aforesaid on records and to disseminate it to your members. 
 
 
Thanking you, 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
(JIMMY MATHEW) 
COMPANY SECRETARY 
 
 
Encl: As above 
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M/s CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

5th Floor, Narain Chambers, 

Vile Parle - East 

Mumbai - 400 057 

To the Board of Directors of 

The South Indian Bank Limited 

M/s K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

41/3647 B, 1st Floor, Blue Bird Towers, 

Providence Road, 

Kochi - 682 018 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the Reformatted Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 

The accompanying Reformatted Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of The South Indian Bank 

Limited (the "Bank") and its Subsidiary (the Bank and its Subsidiary, together referred to as "Group"), 

comprising the reformatted audited consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the reformatted 

audited consolidated profit and loss account, the reformatted consolidated cash flow statement for the 

year then ended, and reformatted notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ("Reformatted At.1dited Ccnsolidated 

Financial Statements"), are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as at 

and for the year ended March 31, 2023 (the "Audited Consolidated Financial Statements") audited by us 

as detailed in paragraph below. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, and the Reformatted 

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent 

to the date of our report on the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements except for the. matters as 

mentioned under section "Basis of preparation" in Schedule 17 to the Reformatted Audited Consolidated 

Financial Statements. 

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, vide our 

report dated May 11, 2023. 

Management's Responsibility for the Reformatted Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the Reformatted Audited Consolidated Financial 

Statements from the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements on the basis described under section "Basis 

of preparation" in Schedule 17 to the Reformatted Audited Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Reformatted Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 

based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SA) 810, 

"Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements" issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the Reformatted Audited Consolidated Financial Statements derived from the Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank is a fair summary of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

on the basis described under section "Basis of preparation" in Schedule 17 to the Reformatted Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Other Matter 

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements included the audited financial statements of one subsidiary, 

whose financials statements reflect total assets of Rs 2.79 crores as at March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 

9.36 crores and total net profit after tax of Rs. 0.22 crores for the year ended March 31, 2023 and net cash 

inflow amounting to Rs. 0.92 crores for the year ended on that date as considered in the Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements, that have been audited by another independent auditor whose reports 

were furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, 

in so far as it related to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, was based solely 

on the reports of such auditors and the procedures performed by us. 

Restrictions on Use 

This report is addressed to and is provided to enable the Bank to include this report in the Letter of Offer 

in connection with the proposed rights issue, to be filed by the Bank with Securities and Exchange Board of 

India and that these Reformatted Audited Consolidated Financial Statements may not be meaningful for 

any other purpose. 

For CN K & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
's Registration Number. 101961W/W-100036 

~hah 
Partner 
Membership No.100052 

UDIN: 24100052BKFAGJ5847 

Place: Thrissur 

Date: February 21, 2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registr tion Number: 0046105 

/< 

Sreevats Gopalakrishnan 

Partner 
1 

Membership Number: 227654 

UDIN: 24227654BKFTGY5900 

Place: Thrissur 

Date: February 21, 2024 

L 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
REFORMA ITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE.SH ASAT MARCH 31, 2023 

Scl1edule 
No 

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 

Capital 

Share Application Money Received pending Allotment 

Employees' Stock Options Outstanding 

Reserves and Surplus 

Deposits 

Borrowings 

Other liabilities and provisions 
TOTAL 

ASSETS 

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 

Balances with banks and money at call and short notice 

Investments 

Advances 

Fixed Assets 

Other Assets 
TOTAL 

Contingent Liabilities 
Bills for collection 
Significant.Accounting Policies 
Notes forming part of Accounts 
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants 

{j
tRegtstrationNo 101961W/W-
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Thrissur • Thrissu 
21-02-2024 21-02-20 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

tin Crore fin Crore 

1 209.27 209.27 

0.00 

0.11 1.29 

2 6,465.35 5,643.69 

3 91,650.07 89,141.74 

4 6,993.85 3,294.49 

5 2,378.51 1,761.39 
1,07,697.16 1,0U,051.87 

6 4,639.22 7,276.61 

7 2,441.27 3,926.82 

8 24,641.30 21,444.51 

9 69,804.44 59,993.39 

10 877.93 811.07 

11 5,293.00 6,599.47 
1,07,697.16 1,00,051.87 

12 25,891.24 33,764.70 
2,057.79 1,752.96 

17 
18 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

?L 

P RSeshadri 
(lvlanaging Director & CEO) 

(DIN : 07820690) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
REFORMA TIED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCO'ONT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Schedule 
No 

LINCOME 
Interest Earned 
Other Income 

TOTAL 
II. EXPENDITURE 
Interest Expended 
Operating Expenses 
Provisions and Contingencies 

TOTAL 
ID. PROFIT/LOSS 
Consolidated Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year 
Transfer from Investment Reserve 
Transfer to Other Liabilities & Provisions 
Transfer from present value provision for ADWDRS 
Brought forward consolidated Profit/ (Loss) from previous year 
Total 
IV. APPROPRIATIONS 
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 
Transfer to Capital Reserve 
Transfer to/(from) Revenue and Other Reserve 
Transfer to 'Investment Reserve 
Transfer to Special Reserve u/ s 36(1){vili) of Income Tax Act 
Transfer to/{from) Investment Reserve 
Transfer to/(from) present value provision for ADWDRS 
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
Dividend Paid for FY 18-19 
Dividend Tax on Interim Dividend 
Tax on Dividend Paid for FY 18-19 
Balance carried over to Consolidated Balance Sheet 

TOTAL 
Earnings per share (T1ace value of~ l per share) 
Basic (inf) 18.09 
Diluted fin ft 18.09 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes on Accounts 
Schedules referred to above form an inteITTal oart of the Profit and Loss Account 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Charte·red Accountants 

For K Venkatac alam Aiyer & Co 
Chartered Ace ntants 

C
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1 Sreevats Gopalakrishnan 
Par er i'oiY h•lJMEll,: ', /\Partner 
fl, mbershipNo.100052-s 1l ' ',,:,'-,;_K bersh· No 227654 \ -~\ J,m),r .. em 1p • 
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Thomas Josef'h. 'K 
Executive Vice Pres'tt;l nt 

.c!J 
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Ch fficer 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

fin Crore fin Crorc 

13 7,233.18 6,586.54 
14 811.37 1,033.90 

8,044.55 7,620.44 

15 4,221.10 4,346.78 
16 2,315.83 2,026.32 

732.31 L202.53 
7,26924 7/5751,3 

775.31 44.81 

. 

-38.04 4.63 
737.27 49.44 

193.78 11.25 
4.57 76.23 

130.00 . 
. 

80.00 . 
. . 
. . 

104.39 
. . 
. 
. . 

224.53 -38.04 
737.27 49.44 

3.70 0.21 
3.70 0.21 

17 
18 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

P RSeshadri 
(Managing Director & CEO) 

(DIN : 07820690) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
REFORMATfED CONSOUDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Cash flow from ooerat;.,,.. activities 
Consolidated Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 
Adiustments for: 
Depreciation 
Amortisation of Premium on HTM Investments 
Provision for Deoreciation / Non Performine: Investments 
General Provisions ae:ainst Standard Assets 
Provision/write off for Non Perfoni-iine: Assets 
Other Provisions 
Employee Stock Options expense 
Interest on Subordinated bonds 
Profit)/Loss on sale of land, buildimrs and other assets 

Ooeratine: orofit before wol'kine: canital chane:es 
Chane.es in workinl!: caniial: 
Increase/ (Decrease) in Deposits 
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities and provisions 
Increase)/ Decrease in Investments 
Increase\ / Decrease in Advances 
Increase\/ Decrease in Other Assets 

Cash flow from oneratin11: activities before taxes 
Direct Taxes naid 
Net cash flow from/fused in) operating activities 
Cash flow from investine: activities: 
Purchase of Fixed Assets/Caoital Work-in-Prom-ess 
Sale of Fixed/Non Bankine: Assets 
Purchasel/Sale of Investments (Held To Maturitv) 

Net cash flow from11used in) investing activities 
Cash flow from financinJ!: activities: 
Net proceeds/(repavments) in borrowin<><: 
Interest on Subordinated bonds 
Net cash flow from 11used inl financin2 activities 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash eouivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 
Cash and cash e<mivalents as at the end of the vear 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

countants 
nm Registration No. 101961W /W-100036 gistration No. 0046105 (j

d Accountants 
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reevats Gopal~hnan 
:
1 Partner 

Membership No. 100052 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

' Membership No. 227654 
UDIN:... 

Thrissu 
21-02-20 

Year Ended March Year Ended March 
31, 2023 31,2022 

, in Crore fin Crore 

1,108.50 (92.22 

87.49 84.02 
312.41 256.54 
296.98 256.30 
(SB.61 175.57 
623.07 1,161.41 
(27.81 10.49 

0.11 0.20 
175.43 175.43 

0.12 (0.15 
/Al 2,517.69 2,027.59 

2,508.33 6,431.19 
702.16 (6.86 

(3,529.U'/ 67.30 
110,434.08 (3,099.54 

1,193.08 (2i4.'7'7' 
IB 19,559.58 3,177.32 

(A+B 17,041.89 5,204.91 
(218.93 (39 .. -.-, 

(C (7,260.82 5,165.34 

(112.70 (101.89 
3.76 64.85 

1277.11 '1,703.56 
ID (386.05 (1,740.60 

3,699.36 (813.78 
(175.43 (175.41 

IE 3,523.93 (989.19 
C+D+E 14,122.94 2,435.55 

11,203.43 8,767.88 
7,080.49 11,203.43 

'----Z,~f;-"'.:-F4"o, and on behalf of Bt:ora 

Thom'asJo ph. K PR Seshadri 
Executive Vice resident (Managing Director 

&CEO) 
(DIN , 07820690) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SCHEDULES TO REFORMATTED CONSOUDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

A,at Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

't' in Crore 't' in Crore 

SCHEDULE 1 -CAPITAL 

Authorised Capital 400.00 400.00 
400,00,00,000 Equity shares of f 1/. each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 209.27 209.27 
209,27,41,018 Equity shares of~ 1/- each 
(Previous year 209,27,41,018 equity shares of ~ 1/- each) (Refer Note no. 3.ii of Schedule 
18) 

TOTAL 209.27 209.27 

Employees' Stock Options Outstanding 
Employees' Stock Options Outstanding 0.88 1.29 
Less: Deferred Employee Compensation Expense {unamortised) -0.77 . 

TOTAL 0.11 1.29 

SCHEDULE 2- RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

I. Statutory Reserve 
Opening Balance 1,168.04 1,156.79 
Additions during the year 193.78 11.25 

Subtotal 1,361.82 1,168.04 

II. Capital Reserve 
Opening Balance 909.83 837.70 
Additions during the year* 4.57 . 
Due to revaluation of Assets (net) 45.07 76.23 

959.47 913.93 

Deductions during the year: 

Deductions during the year: 
Deduction from reserve to the extent of depreciation on revalued amount -5.66 -4.10 
Depredation on Revaluation of Premises adjusted 

Sub total 953.81 909.83 
III. Share Premium 

Opening Balance 1,766.90 1,766.90 
Additions during the year . 
Deductions during the year - Expenses relating to Rights Issue . 

Sub total 1,766.90 1,766.90 

IV. Revenue and Other Reserves 
Opening Balance 1,836.96 1,831.87 
Additions during the year : 
a) lapse of vested options 1.29 0.99 
b) transfer of depreciation on revaluation 5.65 4.10 
c) appropriation during the Year 314.39 . 

Subtotal 2,158.29 1,836.96 

V. Balance in Profit and Loss Account 224.53 -38.04 
TOTAL 6,465.35 5,643.69 
[i+ii+ili+iv+v] 

* Includes Profit appropriated to Capital Reserve {net of applicable taxes and transfer to 
statutory reserve) on: 
a) Gain on sale of Held to Maturity Investments <9.48 Crore (Previous Year< 156.08 
Crore) 
b) Profit/(Loss) on sale of Fixed Assets (<0.12) Crore (Previous Year< 0.15 Crore) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SCHEDULES TO REFORMATTED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2023 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

fin Crore fin Crore 

SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS 

A. I. Demand Deposits 
(i) From Banks 7.02 12.37 
(ti) From Others 4,977.68 4,848.79 

II. Savings Bank Deposits 25,241.08 24,739.85 

III. Term Deposits 
(i) From Banks 334.57 2,228.72 
(ii) From Others 61,089.72 57,312.01 

TOTAL 91,650.07 89,141.74 

B, (i) Deposits of branches in India 91,650.07 89,141.74 
(ii) Deposits of branches outside India Nil Nil 

TOTAL 91,650.07 89,141.74 

SCHEDULE 4- BORROWINGS 

I. Borrowings in India 
(i) Reserve Bank of India 275.00 . 
(i) Reserve Bank of India 
(ii) Other Banks* 120.23 207B8 
(iii) Other Institutions and Agencies' 6,419.31 2,873.82 

II. Borrowings outside India - from other banks 179.31 212.79 
TOTAL 6,993.85 3,294.49 

Secur~d borrowings under Triparty repo, market repurchase transactions with banks and 
financial institutions and transactions under Liquidity Adjustment Facility and Marginal 
Standing Facility included above. 3,181.48 999.60 

*Borrowings from other banks include Subordinated Debt of f47.36 Crore (Previous year 
f48.36 Crore) in the nature of Non-Convertible Debentures and Perpetual Debt of f72.87 
Crore (Previous year f 15952 Crore) 
#Borrowings from other institutions & agencies include Subordinated Debt of f992.64 
Crores (Previous year f991.64 Crore) in the nature of Non-Convertible Debentures and 
Perpetual Debt of f427.13 Crore (Previous year 'B40.48 Crores) 

SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 

I. Bills Payable 102.85 125.20 
II. Inter -Office adjustments (Net) 81.85 2.57 
III. htterest Accrued 204.15 180.12 
IV. Others (Including provisions)* 1,989.66 1,453.50 

TOTAL '2,J'i's.5I 1,:t6L.,,. 

*Includes :-
Provision for standard assets f393.87 Crore (Previous year f 464.54 Crore) 

SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH 
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA 

I. Cash in hand 517.00 572.31 
(Including foreign currency notes) 

II. Balances with Reserve Bank of India 
a) In Current Account 4,122.22 3,104.30 
b) Lending under Reverse Repo (including Standing Deposit Facility) 3,600.00 

TOTAL 4,639.22 7,276.61 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SCHEDULES TO REFORMATTED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2023 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

tin Crore tin Crore 
SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BANKS AND 
MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 

!-
I. In India 

i) Balances with Banks 
(a) In Current Accounts 10.93 19.74 
(b) In Other Deposit Accounts 94.57 28.94 

ii) Money at call & short notice 
(a) With Banks 50.00 . 
(b) With other Institutions 
{c) Lending under Reverse Repo (Market & Tri party) 49.97 

Subtotal :205.47 48.68 

II. Outside India 

(a) In Current Accounts 109.57 158.02 
(b) In Other Deposit Accounts 1,972.08 3,524.35 

(c) Money at call & short notice - with banks 154.15 195.77 
Sub total 2,235.80 3,87~U4 
TOTAL 2,441.27 3,926.82 

SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS 
I. Investments in India in: 

(i) Government Securities* 22,376.61 19,465.53 

(ii) Other Approved Securities . . 

{iii) Shares 218.33 54.56 . . 
(iv) Debentures and Bonds 1,297.95 57184 

(v) Subsidiaries and/or Joint Ventures . . 
(vi) Others# 74811 1,352.38 

Sub total 24,64!.'10 21,444.31 
ll. Investments outside India - Shares 0.20 0.20 

TOTAL(l+II) 24,641.30 21,444.51 

A. Gross Investments 
(i) In India 26,013.51 22,533.31 

(ii) Outside India 0.20 0.20 
Sub total {A) 26,013.71 22,533.51 

B. Depreciation/Provision for investments 
(i) In India 1,372.41 1,089.00 

(ii) Outside India . 0.00 
Sub total (B) 1,372.41 1,089.00 

C. Net Investments 
(i) In India 24,641.10 21,444.31 

(ii) Outside India 0.20 0.20 
TOTAL(A-B) 24,641.30 21,444.51 

* Including Non SLR State Government bonds with Book Value f 86.71 Coore {Previous 
Year: t 105.28 Crore). Securities costing to ' 11,365.78 Coore (Previous Year '10,125.77 
Crore) pledged for availment of fund transfer facility, clearing facility and margin 
requirements. 

# includes 
Security Receipts 165.98 703,04 
Mutual . 
Certificate of Deposit 435.22 500.91 
Commercial Paper 147.01 148.43 

TOTAL 748.21 1,352.38 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK l,IMITED 
SCHEDULES TO REFORMATIED CONSOLIDATEI,) BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

Asat Asat 
Marcil 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

~ in Crore ~ in Crore 

SCHEDULE 9- ADVANCES 

A. (i) Bills Purchased and Discounted 8,133.50 5,110.94 '---
(ii) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and Loans repayable on demand 36,728.60 29,607.50 
(ill) Tenn Loans 24,942.34 25,274.95 

TOTAL 69,804.44 59,993.39 

8. (i) Secured by tangible assets* 55,400.74 52,355.06 
(ii) Covered by Bank/Govemment Guarantees 3,041.53 4,168.57 
(ili) Unsecured 11,362.17 3,469.76 

TOTAL 69,804.44 59,993.39 

*advances secured by tangible assets includes advances against Book Debt 

C. I. Advances in India 
(i) Priority Sectors 2~,613.49 29,493.22 
(ii) Public Sector 1,000.55 313.58 

(iii) Banks -
(iv) Others 39,190.40 30,186.59 

TOTAL 69,804.44 59,993.39 

II. Advances outside India Nil Nil 
TOTAL 69,804.44. 59,993.39 

SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS 

I. Premises (including Land) 
Gross Block: 
At cost as on March 31, of the preceding year 594.72 594.69 

Additions during the year 
Due to Revaluation of premises (Net) - -
Due to purchases/ acquisitions 48.58 0.03 

643.30 594.72 
Deductions during the year 0.06 -
Closing Balance 643.24 594.72 

Depreciation 
As at beginning of the year 73,64 66,90 
Charge of the year 8.31 6.74 
Deductions during the year - -

Depreciation to date 81.95 73.64 
Net Block Sub total 561.29 521.08 

II. Capital Work in Progress 
At cost as on March 31, of the preceding year 59.05 40.50 
Additions during the year 125.89 96.66 

184.94 137.16 
Capitalisations durinp; the year 60.94 78.11 

124.00 59.05 
Depreciation to date 

Sub total 124.00 59.05 

III. Other Fixed Assets (Including furnitures and fixtures and Software) 
Gross Block: -
At cost as on March 31, of the preceding year 822.26 757.59 
Additions during the year 44.24 83.31 

866.50 840.90 
Deductions/ adjustments during the year 41.83 18.64 
Closing Balance 824.67 822.26 
Depreciation - 0 

As at beginning of the year 591.32 530.72 
Charge of the year 79.18 77.28 
Deductions during the year 38.47 16.68 

- -
Depreciation/ adjustments to date 632.03 591,32 

Net Block Sub total 192.64 230.94 
TOTAL [l+II+IIIJ 877.93 811,07 

'I-'-' 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SCHEDULES TO REFORMATTED CONSOLIDAt BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

tin Crore tin Crore 

SCHEDULE 11- OTHER ASSETS 

I. Inter -Office adjustments (Net) -
I. Interest Accrued 1,131.64 1,008.74 

- -
II. Tax Paid in Advance/Tax Deducted at Source (Net of provisions) 267.65 307.38 

III. MAT Credit Entitlement (Refer Note no. 10 of Schedule 18) 168.05 - -
Less MAT Credit utilisation 29.80 138,25 

IV. Deferred tax asset (net) (Refer Note no. 10 of Schedule 18) 21.42 234.47 
V. Deferred Employee Benefits (Refer Note no.5.c.ii of Schedule 18) 24.57 

V. Deferred provision for fraud accounts - -
VI. Deferred provision for Non Banking Asset - -
VI. Stationery and Stamps 2.94 2.54 

VII. Non-Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 0.00 0.00 

Less: Provisions held ___Q:QQ_ - 0.00 
VIII. Others* 3,731.10 5,021.77 

TOTAL 5,293.00 6,599.47 

*Includes Priority Sector Shortfall Deposits amolll'lting to t 2,636.43 C-rore (Previous year 
B,790.89 Crore) 

SCHEDULE 12- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Refer Note no. 15 of Schedule 17) 

I. Oaims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts: 
(i) Direct Tax di:r,utes 20.50 20.50 
(ii) Indirect Tax isputes 22.03 22.72 
(iii) Others 26.86 26.99 

II. Liability on account of outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts' 22,517.21 30,894.64 

III. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents in India 
(a) in India 1,697.82. 1,542.40 

(b) outside India 425.96 198.97 

IV. Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations 925.38 836.34 

V. Other items for which the bank is contingently liable; 

(i) Capital Commitments 36.84 38.44 
(ii)Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF) 218.64 183.70 

TOTAL 25,891.24 33,764.70 
1 Represeufs uotio11al a11101111t 

SCHEDULE 13 • INTEREST EARNED 

I. Interest/Discount on Advances/Bills 5,712.15 5,069.34 
II. Income on Investments 1,285.73 1,039.81 
III. Net Profit/ (Loss) on Revaluation of Investments 

III. Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and Other Inter - Bank funds 132.10 333.73 
IV. Others 103.20 143.66 

TOTAL 7,233.18 6,586.54 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SCHEDU[,ES TO REFORMA,TTED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

i! in Crore i! in Crore 
SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME 

I. Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 44.57 47.18 
II. Profit on sale of Investments 88.00 346.26 

Loss on sale of Investments -17.99 -15.88 
Prov for Depn on Investments -434.52 -364.51 -264.21 66.17 

III. Profit on sale of land, buildings and other assets 1.19 0.87 
Loss on sale of land, buildings and other assets ____:_!dl.. -0.12 -0.72 0.15 

IV. Profit/(Loss) on Exchange/derivative transactions (net) 56.05 60.12 
V. Miscellaneous Income* 1,075.38 860.28 

TOTAL 811.37 1,033.90 

* Includes Amount written off since recovered (i! 247.20 Crore (Pl'evious Year i! 104.75 Cror~) 

SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED 

I. Interest on Deposits 3,853.32 4,062.37 
II. Interest on Reserve Bank of India/Inter-Bank Borrowings 1.66 4.04 
III. Others 366.12 280.37 

TOTAL 4,221.10 4,346.78 

SCHEDULE 16 • OPERATING EXPENSES 

I. Payments to and Provisions for Employees 1,308.03 1,198.29 
II. Rent, Taxes and Lighting 138,82 128.80 
III. Printing and Stationery 24.84 12.61 
IV. Advertisement and Publidty 12.37 2.78 
V. Depreciation on Bank's Property 87.49 84.02 

VI. Directors fees, remuneration, allowances and expenses 2.32 1.98 
VII. Auditors' fees and expenses 2.81 2.13 
VIII. Law charges 22.22 14.53 
IX. Postage,telegrams,telephones, etc. 57.28 50.52 
X. Repairs and Maintenance 64,74 50.79 

XI. Insurance 121.10 115.94 
XII. Other Expenditure * 473.81 363.93 

TOTAL 2,315.83 2,026.32 

• Includes expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility U.86 Crore (Previous 
l.,ear: t 6.06 Crorel 
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Schedules forming part of the Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March3 l,2023 

SCHEDULE -17 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPENDED TO AND FORMING PART OF 
THE REFORMATTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Background 

The Bank 

The South Indian Bank Limited ('SIB' or the 'Bank'), incorporated on January 29, 1929 at 
Thrissur, as a private limited company and was later converted into a public limited company on 
August 11, 1939. SIB has a network of940 branches in India and provides retail and corporate 
banking, para banking activities such as debit card, third party financial product distribution, in 
addition to Treasury and Foreigo Exchange Business. SIB is governed by Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949, The Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable Acts/Regulations for Banks. Its shares 
are listed in BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

The Bank is proposing to go for rights issue of equity shares. For this purpose the Bank has 
prepared the reformatted consolidated summary balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the 
reformatted consolidated profit and loss account, the reformatted consolidated cash flow statement 
for the year then ended, and the reformatted notes to the consolidated financial statements 
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(together comprising the "Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements"). Accordingly the 
Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements will be included in the Letter of Offer to be filed 
by the Bank with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, and the BSE Limited 
(collectively, the "Stock Exchanges"), and with the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
("SEBI") in connection with the proposed rights issue of the Bank. 

The Subsidiary 

SIB Operations and Services Limited, a wholly owned non-financial subsidiary of the Bank was 
incorporated on May 28, 2021 for undertaking back office operations of the holding company and 
other outsourcing operations. 

Principles of Consolidation 

i. The Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements relate to The South Indian Bank 
('SIB' or the 'Bank') and its subsidiary company. The details of subsidiary company is 
given below: 

Name of the Relationship Country of Ownership held % of Holding and 
entity Incorporation by voting power 

either directly or 
indirectly as at 
March 31, 2023 

SIB Wholly owned India The South 100% 
Operations and subsidiary Indian Bank Ltd. 
Services Ltd. 

ii. The audited financial statements of the subsidiary company is drawn up to the same 
reporting date as that of the Bank, i.e. March 31, 2023. 
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iii. The financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary company have been combined on 
a line-by-line basis as per AS 21, Reformatted Consolidated Financial statements by 
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating 
intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and resulting unrealised profits or losses, 
unless cost carmot be recovered. 

iv. The Refonnatted Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform 
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are 
presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Bank's separate financial 
statements. 

v. Differences in accounting policies followed by the subsidiaries and associates have been 
reviewed and no adjustments have been made, since the impact of these differences is not 
significant. 

Basis of Preparation 

The Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023 
are based on and have been extracted by the Management of the Bank from the audited financial 
statements of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2023 (the "Audited Financial Statements"). 
The amounts reported in the Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements have been modified 
from thousands to crore rounded to two decimals. 

The Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank and its subsidiary have been 
prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India ("Indian 
GAAP"), the circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') from time to 
time and the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013(as 
amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")and current practices 
prevailing within the banking industry in India. Suitable adjustments are made to align with the 
format prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The Reformatted Consolidated 
Financial Statements have been prepared in historical cost convention and accrual method of 
accounting, except where otherwise stated. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of 
financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous year. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of the Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with the 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires the Management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. The Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation 
of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Any revisions to the accounting estimates 
are recognized prospectively in the current and future periods. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

1. Revenue recognition 

The Bank 

a) Interest / discount I other charges income from loans, advances and investments and 
deposits placed with banks and other institutions are recognized on accrual basis, except 
in respect of income relating to advances/ investments classified as non-performing 
advances/ investments, additional finance treated as sta;;~;rr~)ret ~, der approved 
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The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part of the Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March3 l,2023 

restructuring package, where in accordance with RBI guidelines the income is recognized 
only on realization. 

b) Interest income on loans bought out through the direct assignment route is recognized at 
their effective interest rate, except in case of such loans classified as non-performing 
advances. 

c) The recoveries made from NPA accounts are appropriated towards the order of demand 
applicable to borrowers accounts. 

d) Dividend on investments in shares and units of mutual funds are accounted when the 
bank's right to receive the dividend is established. 

e) Income on discounted instruments is recognized over the tenure of the instrument on a 
straight-line basis. 

t) Insurance claims and locker rent are accounted on receipt basis. 

g) Commission income on issuance of bank guarantee / letter of credit is recognized over 
the period of the guarantee/letter of credit. 

h) Processing fee/ upfront fee, handling charges or income of similar nature collected at the 
time of sanctioning or renewal of loan/ facility is recognized at the inception/renewal of 
loan. 

i) Other fees and comm1ss10n income (including comm1ss10n income on third party 
products) are recognized when due, except in cases where the bank is uncertain of 
ultimate collection. 

,1j) Unpaid funded interest on term loans are recognized on realization as per the guidelines 
,;;.. ofRBI. 

1<) In accordance with RBI guidelines on sale of non-performing advances, if the sale is at a 
price below the net book value (i.e. book value less provisions held), the shortfall is 
charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year of sale. If the sale is for a value higher 
than the net book value, the excess provision is credited to the Profit and Loss Account 
in the year the amounts are received. 

1) Fees received on sale of Priority Sector Lending Certificates is considered as 
Miscellaneous Income, while fees paid for purchase is expensed as other expenses in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI. 

m) The difference between the sale price and purchase cost of gold coins, received on 
consignment basis is included in other income and is recognised at the time of sale to the 
customers. 

n) Interest on income tax refund is recognised under "Other Income" in the year of passing 
of Assessment Orders. 

o) Legal expenses incurred on suit filed accounts are expensed in profit and loss account as 
per RBI guidelines. Such amount when recovered is treated as income 

p) In case of One Time settlement (OTS) accounts the recoveries are first adjusted to 
principal balance and sacrifice on settlement is accounted upfront. 

q) Penal interest is recognized as income on realization other than on running accounts 
where it is recognized when due. 

The Subsidiary 

Income from services rendered and other income are recognized on accrual basis; to the 
extent, the realisability thereof is certain. 

{; 
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2. Investments 

The Bank 

A) Classification 

a) In accordance with the RBI guidelines, investments are categorized into "Held for 
Trading", "Available for Sale" and "Held to Maturity" and further classified under six 
groups, viz. Government Securities, Other Approved Securities, Shares, Debentures & 
Bonds, Subsidiaries and/ or joint ventures and Other (to be specified) Investments for 
the purposes of disclosure in the Balance Sheet. Shifting amongst the categories is done 
in accordance with the RBI guidelines. 

b) Investments which are held for sale within 90 days from the date of purchase are 
classified as "Held for Trading". 

c) Investments which the bank intends to hold till maturity are classified as "Held to 
Maturity". 

d) Investments which are not classified in either of the above two categories are classified 
as "Available for Sale". 

B) Acquisition cost 

The cost of investments is determined on the weighted average basis. Broken period 
interest on debt instruments and government securities is treated as a revenue item. The 
transaction cost including brokerage, commissions etc. paid at the time of acquisition of 
investments are charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

C) Valuation 

The valuation of investments is performed in accordance with the RBI Guidelines: 

a. Investments classified as HFT or AFS - Investments classified under the AFS and HFT 
categories are marked-to-market. The market/fair value of quoted investments included 
in the 'AFS' and 'HFT' categories is measured with respect to the Market Price of the 
Scrip as available from the trades/ quotes on the stock exchanges, pricelist of RBI or 
prices declared by Financial Benchmark India Private Limited etc. periodically. Net 
depreciation, if any, within each category of investment classification is recognized in 
Profit and Loss Account. The net appreciation, if any, under each category of 
Investment is ignored. Except in cases where provision for diminution other than 
temporary is created, the Book value of individual securities is not changed consequent 
to the periodic valuation oflnvestments. 

Net depreciation on each type of investments falling under the residual category of 
'Others' (i.e. mutual funds, PTCs, security receipts etc.) is not offset against gain in 
another class of investment falling within the 'Others' category. 

The depreciation on securities acquired by way of conversion of outstanding loan is provided in 
accordance with the RBI guidelines. Provision for depreciation on investments is classified under 
Schedule 14 "Other Income". The book value of individual securities is not changed consequent 
to the periodic valuation of investments. 

b. Held to Maturity - These are carried at their acquisition cost unless it is more than 
the face value, in which case premium on acquisition is amortized over the remaining 
maturity of the security on straight line basis. Such amortization of premium is adjusted 
against interest income under the head 'Income from Investments' under Schedule 13 
in Profit and Loss account. As per RBI guidelines, discount on securities held under 
HTM category is not accrued and such securities are held at the acquisition cost till 
maturity. Any diminution, other than temporary, jn the value of such securities is 
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provided for. 

c. Treasury Bills, commercial paper, Cash management bills and Certificate of Deposits 
being discounted instruments, are valued at carrying cost which includes discount 
amortized over the period to maturity. 

d. Units of Mutual Funds are valued at the latest repurchase price/net asset value declared 
by Mutual Fund. 

e. Market value of investments where current quotations are not available, is determined 
as per the norms prescribed by the RBI as under: 

• in case of unquoted bonds, debentures and preference shares where 
interest/dividend is received regularly (i.e. not overdue beyond 90 days), the 
market price is derived based on the Yield to Maturity (YTM) for Government 
Securities as published by Financial Benchmark India Pvt Limited (FBIL) and 
suitably marked up for credit risk applicable to the credit rating of the instrument. 
The matrix for credit risk mark-up for each category and credit ratings along with 
residual maturity issued by FIMMDA are adopted for this purpose; 

• in case of bonds and debentures where interest is not received regularly (i.e. 
overdue beyond 90 days), the valuation is in accordance with prudential norms for 
provisioning as prescribed by RBI; 

• Preference shares shall be valued on YTM basis. It shall be valued with appropriate 
mark-up over the YTM rates for Central Government Securities put out by the 
FBIL. The preference shares shall not be valued above its redemption value. 

• equity shares, for which current quotations are not available or where the shares 
are not quoted on the stock exchanges, are valued at break-up value (without 
considering revaluation reserves, if any) which is ascertained from the company's 
latest Balance Sheet. In case the latest Balance Sheet is not available, the shares 
are valued at <11- per company; 

• In case of investment by the Bank in SRs issued against loans transferred by it is 
more than 10 percent of all SRs issued against the transferred asset, then the 
provision for depreciation in value is made at the higher of - provisioning rate 
required in terms of net asset value declared by the Reconstruction Company 
('RC')/ Securitization Company ('SC') or the provisioning rate as per the extant 
asset classification and provisioning norms as applicable to the underlying loans, 
assuming that the loan notionally continued in the books of the bank. 

• Non- Performing Investments are identified and valued based on RBI guidelines. 
Interest on non-performing investments is recognized on cash basis. 

• Investment in subsidiary as per RBI guidelines are categorized as HTM and 
assessed for impairment to determine permanent diminution, if any 

f. The Bank follows 'Settlement Date' accounting for recording purchase and sale 
transactions in securities. The investments in equity shares, they are accounted for on 
settlement date. 

D) Repo and Reverse Repo transactions 

In accordance with the RBI guidelines repo and reverse repo transactions in government 
securities including those conducted under the Liquidity Adjustment Facility ('LAF') and 
Marginal Standby Facility ('MSF') with RBI are reflected as collateralized borrowing and 
lending transactions respectively. Borrowing cost on repo transactions is accounted for as 
interest expense and revenue on reverse repo is accounted for ":S interest income. 

✓ 
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E) Short Sales 

The Bank undertakes short sale transactions in Central Government dated securities in 
accordance with RBI guidelines. The short position is reflected as the amount received on 
sale and is classified under 'Other Liabilities'. The short position is marked to market and 
resultant mark-to-market gain/losses are accounted for as per the relevant RBI guidelines 
for valuation of investments. • 

F) Transfer of securities between Categories 

Transfer of securities between categories is done at the lower of the acquisition cost/ book 
value/ market value on the date of the transfer and the depreciation, if any, on such transfer 
is fully provided for in accordance with RBI guidelines. 

G) Disposal oflnvestments 

a. Investments classified as HFT and AFS - Profit or loss on sale/ redemption is included 
in the Profit and Loss account. 

b. Investments classified as HTM - Profit on sale of /redemption of investments is 
included in the Profit and Loss Account and is appropriated to capital Reserve after 
adjustments for tax and transfer to Statutory Reserve. Loss on sale/redemption is 
charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

H) Investment Fluctuation Reserve ('!FR') 

Investment Fluctuation reserve is accounted in line with the RBI guidelines issued from 
time to time 

3. Advances 

The Bank 

A) Valuation/ Measurement 

a) Advances are classified into performing assets (Standard) and non-performing assets 
('NPAs') as per the RBI guidelines and are stated net of specific provisions made 
towards NP As, sacrifice provisions on restructured advances, claims received from 
guarantee corporations and unrealised interest on NP As. Interest on Non- Perfonning 
advances is not recognised in profit and loss account and transferred to an unrealised 
interest account until receipt. Further, NP As are classified into sub-standard, doubtful 
and loss assets based on the criteria stipulated by the RBI. Provisions for NPAs are 
made as per the guidelines and circulars of the RBI on matters relating to prudential 
norms. 

b) Non-performing advances are written-off in accordance with the Bank's policies. 
Amounts recovered against debts written off are recognised in the profit and loss 
account and included under "Other Income". The recovery of unrealised interest is 
accounted under "Interest on Loans & Advances" in the profit and loss account. 

c) For restructured/rescheduled assets, provision is made in accordance with the guidelines 
issued by the RBI, which requires the diminution in the fair value of the assets to be 
provided at the time of restructuring. In respect of loans and advances accounts 
subjected to restructuring, the account is upgraded to standard only after the specified 
period i.e. a period of one year after the date when first payment of interest or of 
principal, whichever is later, falls due, subject to satisfactory perfonnance of the 
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Additional provision for restructured accounts as per the relevant restructuring scheme 
announced by RBI for Micro, Small and Medium (MSME) sector, accounts affected by 
natural calamities and as per COVID 19 resolution framework are made as per extant 
RBI guidelines. 

d) For entities with Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure(UFCE), provision is made in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, which requires to ascertain the amount 
of UFCE, estimate the extent of likely loss and estimate the riskiness of unhedged 
position. The Provision is classified under Schedule 5 - Other Liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet. 

e) The Bank maintains general provision for standard assets including credit exposures 
computed as per the current marked-to-market values of foreign exchange derivative 
contracts, in accordance with the guidelines and at levels stipulated by RBI from time 
to time. The Provision is classified under Schedule 5 - Other Liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet. 

f) The bank transfers advances through inter-bank participation with and without risk. In 
accordance with the RBI guidelines, in the case of participation with risk, the aggregate 
amount of the participation issued by the Bank is reduced from advances and where 
bank is participating; the aggregate amount of participation is classified under advances. 
In the case of participation without risk, the aggregate amount of participation issued 
by the Bank is classified under borrowings and where the bank is participating, the 
aggregate amount of participation is shown as due from banks under advances. 

,,,g) Loss on sale of assets to Asset Reconstruction Companies 

If the sale of non- performing advances is at a price below the net book value, the 
shortfall is charged to the Profit and Loss Account, spread over a period as specified in 
RBI guidelines. If the sale is for a value higher than the net book value, the excess 
provision is credited to the Profit and Loss Account in the year the amounts are 
received. 

h) The Bank makes additional provisions as per RBI's guidelines on 'Prudential 
Framework on Resolution of Stressed Assets' dated June 7, 2019 on accounts in default 
and with aggregate exposure above the threshold limits as laid down in the said 
framework where the resolution plan is not implemented within the specified timeline. 

i) Loans reported as fraud are classified as loss assets and provided as per RBI guidelines. 

j) In the event of substantial erosion in value of loan and remote possibility of collection, 
non-performing loans with adequate provisions are evaluated for technical / prudential 
write off based on Bank's policy and the RBI guidelines. Such write off does not have 
an impact on the Bank's legal claim against the borrower. The Bank may also write off 
non-performing loans on one-time settlement ('OTS ') with the borrower or otherwise. 

4. Country risk 

The Bank 

t 
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maintained on such country exposure. T11is provision if any, is classified under Schedule 5 -
Other Liabilities in the Balance Sheet. 

5. Fixed Assets (Property Plant & Equipment and Intangibles) and depreciation / 
amortization 

The Bank 

a) The Property Plant & Equipment and Intangibles (other than office premise, which are 
revalued) are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure 
incurred on asset put to use is capitalised only when it increases the future benefit I 
functioning capability from/of such assets. Gain or losses arising from the retirement or 
disposal of a Property Plant and Equipment / Intangible asset are determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and 
recognised as income or expense in the Profit and Loss Account. Profit on sale of premises 
after adjustments for tax and transfer to Statutory, if any, is transferred to Capital Reserve 
as per the RBI guidelines. 

b) Portfolio of immovable properties is revalued periodically by independent valuers to reflect 
current market valuation. All land and building owned by the bank and used as branches 
or offices or office quarters are grouped under "Office Premises" in the Property Plant & 
Equipment. Appreciation, if any, on revaluation is credited to Revaluation Reserve under 
Capital Reserve. Additional depreciation on revalued asset is charged to Profit and Loss 
Account and appropriated from Revaluation Reserve to Revenue and other Reserves. 

c) Depreciation /Amortisation: Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a straight-line 
method over the estimated useful life of the fixed assets at the rates and in the manner 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except for Vehicles which are 
depreciated over five years, based on technical estimates. The management believes that 
depreciation rates currently used, fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual 
values of fixed assets, though these rates in certain cases are different from lives prescribed 
under Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013. Computer software is amortised over its useful 
life, not more than 5 years. 

The Subsidiary 

a) Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment, if any. Cost includes all direct expenses incurred to bring an asset to working 
condition for its intended use. 

b) Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are recorded at the cost of acquisition of such assets and are carried at 
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

i) Depreciation on tangible assets, has been provided by adopting the useful lives 
prescribed as per Part C of Schedule;; to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on the 
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technical evaluation done, as the case may be, retaining 5% of the original cost as residual 
value. 

ii) License Cost of Website and EV SSL Certificate is treated as Intangible Assets and is 
amortized over a period of9 years and 2 years respectively in accordance with Accounting 
Standard (AS) 26. 

6. Impairment of Assets 

The Bank 

The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment, if any 
indication of impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount. The impairment loss 
is recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account, unless the asset is carried at revalued 
amount, in which case any impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a reduction in 
revaluation to the extent a revaluation reserve is available for that asset. 

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset ( other than a revalued 
asset) in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of 
impairment loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account, to the extent the amount was 
previously charged to the Profit and Loss Account. In case of revalued assets such reversal is 
not recognised. 

7. Non-Banking Assets 

The f!ank 

Non~banking assets (NBAs) acquired in satisfaction of claims is carried at lower of net book 
value .. and net realisable value. Specific provision is made on specific Non-banking assets 
acquired on debt asset swap arrangements as specified by RBI. 

8. Transactions involving foreign exchange 

The Bank 

a) Foreign currency income and expenditure items are translated at the exchange rates prevailing 
on the date of the transaction. Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities outstanding at 
the Balance Sheet date are revalued at rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers 
Association of India [FEDAI] and resulting profits or losses are included in the Profit and 
Loss Account, as per the guidelines issued by RBI. 

b) Foreign exchange spot and forward Contracts outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date 
(except Forward Contracts taken to hedge FCNR Deposits/Overseas Borrowings) are 
revalued at the closing Spot and Forward Rates respectively as notified by FEDAI and at 
interpolated rates for contracts of interim maturities. For valuation of contracts having longer 
maturities, the forward points (for rates/tenures not published by FEDAI) are obtained from 
Reuters for valuation of the FX Deals. As directed by FED AI to consider profit or loss on 
present value basis, the forward profit or loss on the deals are discounted till the valuation 
date using the discounting yields. The resulting profit or loss on valuation is recognised in 
the Profit and Loss Account in accordance with RBI/FEDAI Guidelines. 

c) Forward Contracts taken to hedge FCNR Deposits/Overseas Borrowings are translated at the 
prevailing spot rate at the time of swap. The Premium/ Discount on the swap arising out of 
the difference in the exchange rate of the swap date and maturity elate of the underlying 
forward exchange contract is amortised ove,r 't( period of the sw is 

'·· .1 '·:, 
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recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 

d) Contingent liabilities on account of foreign exchange contracts, guarantees, letters of credit, 
acceptances and endorsements are reported at closing rates of exchange notified by FEDAI 
as at the Balance Sheet date. 

9. Derivative transactions 

The Bank 

The Bank recognizes all derivative contracts at fair value, on the date on which the derivative 
contracts are entered into and are remeasured at fair value as at the Balance sheet or reporting 
dates. Derivatives are classified as assets when the fair value is positive (Positive marked-to­
market) or as liabilities when the fair value is negative (negative marked-to-market). Changes 
in the fair value of derivatives other than those designated as hedges are recognised in the 
Profit and Loss Account. 

10. Employee benefits 

The Bank 

a) Provident Fund: 

The contribution made by the Bank to "The South Indian Bank Ltd Employees Provident 
Fund", administered by the trustees is charged to Profit and Loss account. The fund is a 
defined contribution fund and the Bank has no further liability beyond the contribution 
made to the fund. 

b) Pension Fund: 

The contribution towards "The South Indian Bank Ltd Employees' Pension Fund Trust", 
managed by trustees, is determined on actuarial basis on projected unit credit method as 
on the Balance Sheet date and is recognised in the profit and loss account. The actuarial 
gain or loss arising during the year is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 

Employees who had joined the services of the Bank with effect from April 1, 20 IO are 
covered under Defined Contributory Pension Scheme (DCPS). In respect of such 
employees the bank contributes specified percentage of the Basic Pay plus Dearness 
Allowance and the expenditure thereof is charged to Profit and Loss account and the 
Bank has no further liability beyond the contribution to the fund on this account. 

c) Gratuity: 

The bank makes contribution to "The South Indian Bank Ltd Employees' Gratuity Trust" 
administered and managed by the trustees. The present value of the bank's obligation 
towards the same is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method as 
at the balance sheet date. The actuarial gain or loss arising during the year is recognised 
in the Profit and Loss Account. 

d) Compensated absence on Privilege / Sick/ Casual Leave and Leave Travel Concession 
(LTC): 

The employees of the Bank are entitled to compensated absence on account of privilege 
/sick/ casual leave as per the leave rules. The bank measures the long term expected cost 
of compensated absence as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the 
balance sheet date based on actuarial valuation and such costs are recognised in the profit 
and loss account. The actuarial gain or loss arising during the year is reco ised in the 
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Profit and Loss Account. 
The employees are also eligible for L TC as per the rules. The estimated cost of unused 
entitlement as on the Balance Sheet date based on actuarial valuation is provided for. 

e) Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS): 

The SIB ESOS 2008 Employee Stock Option Scheme ('the Scheme') provides for grant 
of stock options on equity shares of the Bank to employees and Managing Director of the 
Bank. The Scheme is in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits and sweat equity) Regulations, 2021. The Bank followed 
intrinsic value method to account for its stock based employee compensation plans as per 
the Guidelines for all the options granted till the accounting period ending 31 March, 
2021. 

RBI issued a clarification on Guidelines on Compensation of Whole Time 
Directors/Chief Executive Officers /Material Risk Takers and Control Function Staff on 
30 August, 2021, advising banks that the share-linkecj instruments are required to be fair 
valued on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model. Accordingly, the Bank has 
changed its accounting policy from the intrinsic value method to the fair value method 
for all share-linked instruments granted after 31 March, 2021 and consequently 
recognized the fair value of options computed using the Black-Scholes model, without 
reducing estimated forfeitures, as compensation expense over the vesting period. Options 
are granted at an exercise price, which is equal to the fair market price of the underlying 
equity shares at the date of the grant or at such a discount as may be approved by 
NRC/Board from time to time. The fair market price being the closing price of stock 
exchange which recorded the highest trading volumes in equity shares of the Bank and 

'<trading day immediately preceding the date on which the grant of options was approved 
•. and recommended to Board by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board. 

f} Other Employee Benefits: 
; 

,.;,.The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for the services rendered by employee is recognised during the period when 
the employee renders the service. These benefits include performance incentives. 

g) New Pension Scheme ('NPS ') 

In respect of employees who are covered under NPS, the Bank contributes certain 
percentage of the sum of basic salary and dearness allowance of employees to the 
aforesaid scheme, a defined contribution plan, which is managed and administered by 
pension fund management companies and regulated by PFRDA. NPS contributions are 
recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in the period in which they accrue. The Bank 
has no liability other than its contribution, and recognises such contributions as an 
expense in the year incurred. 

11. Segment Reporting 

The Bank 

The disclosure relating to segment information is in accordance with AS-17, Segment 
Reporting and as per guidelines issued by RBI. Segmental expenses are allocated as per board 
approved policy. 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part of the Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March31,2023 

12. Debit Card Reward Points 

The Bank 

The Bank runs a loyalty program which seeks to recognise and reward customers based on 
their relationship with the Bank. Under the program, eligible customers are granted loyalty 
points redeemable in future, subject to certain conditions. The Bank estimates the probable 
redemption of such loyalty/reward points using an actuarial method at the Balance Sheet date 
by employing independent actuary. Provision for said reward points is then made based on 
the actuarial valuation report as furnished by the said independent Actuary. 

13. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

The Bank & Subsidiary reports Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share in accordance 
with Accounting Standard 20, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
together with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021. Basic EPS has been 
computed by dividing Net Profit for the year by the weighted average number of Equity Shares 
outstanding for the year. 

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other 
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. A diluted earnings 
per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive 
potential equity shares outstanding at the year end. Potential equity shares which are anti­
dilutive in nature are ignored. 

14. Taxes on income 

The Bank 

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax charge. The current 
tax expense and deferred tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, the rules framed there under and considering the material principles 
set out in Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and as per Accounting Standard 22 
- "Accounting for Taxes on Income" respectively. 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in 
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, 
Accounting Standard 22 - "Accounting for Taxes on Income" and other applicable tax laws. 

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable 
income and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in 
one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws 
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised 
for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences of items 
other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the extent that reasonable 
certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these can 
be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses and 
items relating to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be sufficient future taxable income 
available to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate 
to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Bank has a legally 
enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date 
for their realisability. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future 
economic benefits in the form ofadjustm;; to future income tax liabil~ty, is considered as an 

I 
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asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. 
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable 
that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Bank. 

15. Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

The Bank 

In accordance with Accounting Standard 29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Bank 
recognises provisions when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event and, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be 
made. 

Provisions are determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at 
the balance sheet date, supplemented by experience of similar transactions. These are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. 
In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the contingency is 
reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, a disclosure is 
made in the financial statements. 

16. Operating Lease 

The Bank 

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership 
over the lease term are classified as operating lease. Lease payments for assets taken on 
operating lease are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account as per the lease 
terms. 

17. Cash and cash equivalents 

The Bank 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with Reserve Bank of India and 
balances with other banks/institutions and Money at Call and Short Notice (including the effect 
of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents in foreign currency). 

18. Share issue expenses 

The Bank 

Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Premium Account as permitted by Section 
52 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in line with the respective RBI guidelines issued from time 
to time. 

19. Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Bank 

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility is recognized in accordance with 
Companies Act 2013. 

20. Accounting of Priority Sector Lending Certificate (PSLC) 

The Bank 

The Bank vide RBI circular FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated April 7, 2016 trades 
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in priority sector portfolio by selling or buying PSLC, without transfer of risks or loan assets 
in these transactions. The fee paid for purchase of the PSLC is treated as an 'Expense' and the 
fee received from the sale of PSLCs is treated as 'Other Income'. 

21. Accounting for Dividend 

The Bank 

In terms ofrevised Accounting Standard (AS) 4 "Contingencies and Events occurring after the 
Balance sheet date" as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs through amendments to 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 dated March 30, 2016, Proposed 
Dividend or Dividend declared after balance sheet date are not shown as liability in current 
year balance sheet. The effect of the proposed dividend shall be reckoned in determining capital 
funds in the computation of capital adequacy ratios in Financial Year for which the dividend is 
declared. In case of interim dividend, the same shall be reckoned in the same quarter. 

22. Cash Flows 

The Bank 

Cash flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method. 
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SCHEDULE - 18 

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE REFORMATTED CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

I. Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements comprises the results of The South Indian 
Bank Limited (Parent) and the wholly owned non-financial subsidiary of SIB Operations 
and Services Limited for the year ended March 3 1, 2023. 

2. Audited Financial Statements of the Subsidiary has been drawn up to the same reporting 
date as that of the Parent i.e. March 31,2023. 

3. Share Capital 
i. Capital infusion 

During the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 the Bank has not allotted any equity 
shares. 

ii. Details of movement in the paid-up equity share capital of the Bank are given 
below: 

[a!'. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount 

Opening Balance 209,27,41,018 209.27 209,27,41,018 209.27 
Additions pursuant to Stock Options 
exercised/preferential issue - - - -

Closing balance 209,27,41,018 209.27 209,27,41,018 209.27 

4. Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments. 
The company has provided various share based payment schemes to its employees. As on 
March 31, 2023, the following schemes were in operation; 

Tranche 12 Tranche 11 Tranche 8 
Date of grant 01.03.2023 23.04.2022 06.12.2017 
Date of Board 01.03.2023 23.04.2022 06.12.2017 
approval 

Date of Shareholders 12-07-2022 12-07-2022 18.08.2008 
approval 

Number of options ll,06,194 3,99,171 43,04,710 
granted 

Method of Equity Equity Equity 
settlement 

Vesting period 0 1.03.2024 to 23.04.2023 to 06.12.2019 to 
01.03.2026 23.04.2025 06.12.2021 
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Exercise period (for 
all Tranches) 

Manner of Vesting 
(for all Tranches) 

The Grantee will be The Grantee will be 

permitted to exercise permitted to 
their Options within exercise their 

five years from the Options within five 

date of vesting years from the date 
of vesting 

30%, which will be 30%, which will be 
vested on vested on 
completion, of 1st completion, of 1st 
year from the date of year from the date 
grant. of grant. 

30%, which will be 30%, which will be 
vested on 
completion, of 2nd 
year from the date of 
grant. 

vested on 
completion, of 2nd 
year from the date 
of grant. 

40%, which will be 40%, which will be 
vested on vested on 
completion, of 3rd completion, of 3rd 
year from the date of year from the date 
grant of grant 

Eligible to exercise 
the options during any 
one of the four 
specific periods (i.e., 

within 30 days after 
the end of each 
quarter) within one 
year from the date of 
vesting. 
In a graded manner 
over a 5 year period 
with 30%, 30% and 
40% of the grants 
vesting in each year 
commencing from the 
end of 5years from the 
grant date. 

Bank has changed its accountmg pohcy from the mtrms1c value method to the frur value method 
as per Black - Scholes model for all share-linked instruments granted after 3 I March, 2021. 

Activity in the options outstanding under the ESOS 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Options Weighted average Options Weighted average 

exercise price (<) exercise price (~) 

Options outstanding at the 
1,005,872 18.72 1,797,019 18.72 

beginning of the year 
Options granted during the - -
year 15,05,365 14.34 

Options exercised during the - - - -
year 
Forfeited / lapsed during the 7,91,147 18.72 
year 10,05,564 18.72 

Options outstanding at the 15,05,673 14.34 1,005,872 18.72 

I 
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end of the year 

Options Exercisable 308 18.72 1,005,872 18.72 

Details of exercise price for stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2023 
Particulars Exercise price Option Number of Remaining 

per share (<) Premium options contractual life of 
outstanding options (in years) 

Tranche 8 18.72 NA 308 0.20 
Tranche 11 8.35 3.29 399171 2.16 
Tranche 12 16.50 6.78 1106194 3.02 

Details of exercise price for stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2022 
Particulars Exercise price per Number ofoptions Remaining contractual 

share(<) outstanding life ofoptions (in years) 
Tranche 8 18.72 1,005,872 0.68 

Effect of the ESOS on the profit and loss account and on its financial position: [<. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Opening of ESOS Liability 1.29 
Liability on account of ESOS issued 0.88 
Reversal on account of Exercise 0.00 
Reversal on account of lapsed/forfeiture (1.29) 
Total Employee compensation cost pertaining to ESOS 0.88 
Opening Deferred Compensation Cost 0.00 
Deferred compensation cost on ESOS issued 0.88 
Compensation Cost pertaining to ESOS amortized during 

(0.11) the year 

Reversal on account oflapse/ forfeiture 0.00 
Deferred compensation cost 0.77 

Impact of fair value method on net profit and on EPS 
Had compensation cost for the ESOS outstanding being determined based on the fair value 
approach instead of intrinsic value method, the Bank's net profit and earnings per share would 
have been as indicated below: [<. in Crore] 

2.31 

0.00 
0.00 

(1.02) 

1.29 
0.22 

0.00 

(0.22) 

0.00 

0.00 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Net Profit as reported 775.09 44.98 
Proforma Net profit based on fair value approach 775.09 45.00 
Basic EPS as reported (<) 3.70 0.21 
Basic EPS (Proforma)( <) 3.70 0.22 
Diluted EPS as reported(<) 3.70 0.21 
Diluted EPS (Proforma)(<) 3.70 0.22 
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In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the 
management which has been relied upon by the auditors. 

5. Employee Benefits 

a) Provident Fund: 
Employees, who have not opted for pension plan are eligible to get benefits from provident 
fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Aggregate contributions along with interest 
thereon are paid on retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. Both 
the employee and the Bank contribute a specified percentage of the salary to the South Indian 
Bank Employees' Provident Fund. The Bank has no obligation other than the monthly 
contribution. 
The Bank recognized t0.24 Crore (Previous Year: ,0.24 Crore) for provident fund 
contribution in the Profit and Loss Account. 

b) New Pension Scheme 
As per the industry level settlement dated April 27, 20 I 0, employees who joined the services 
of the Bank on or after April 1, 2010 are not eligible for the existing pension scheme whereas 
they will be eligible for Defined Contributory Pension Scheme (DCPS) in line with the New 
Pension Scheme introduced for employees of Central Government. Employee shall 
contribute I 0% of their Basic Pay and Dearness Allowance towards DCPS and the Bank 
will also make a contribution of 14%. There is no separate Provident Fund for employees 

joining on or after April 1, 20 IO. 
The Bank recognized ~"45.05 Crore (Previous Year: ,35.80 Crore) for DCPS contribution in 
the Profit and Loss Account. 

c) Retirement Benefits. 
i. The bank has recognized the following amounts in the Profit and loss account towards 

employee benefits as under: 
[<. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 3 I, 2022 

Pension Fund 116.35 244.71 

Gratuity Fund 30.37 23.92 

Compensation for absence on 54.63 60.36 
privilege/sick/casual leave 

The employee benefits on account of pension, gratmty and Leave have been ascertamed on 
actuarial valuation in accordance with Accounting Standard - 15 prescribed under section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 

ii) Disclosure on amortization of expenditure on account of enhancement in family 
pension of employees of banks 

"Reserve Bank of India vide letter dated October 4, 2021 has permitted all member banks of 
Indian Banks' Association covered under the 1 Ith Bipartite Settlement to amortize the 

,·•;'"',;""''"'~ additional liability on account of revision in family pension over a period not exceeding five 
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years, beginning with the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. The bank has recognized the 
entire additional liability estimated at< 43 crores and opted to amortize the same over a period 
of seven quarters beginning with the quarter ended September 30, 2021. Accordingly, an 
amount of< 24.57 Crore (Previous year< 18.43 crore) has been written off during the year 
ended March 31, 2023 in respect of the said additional liability and the balance is tNil. 

The following table as furnished by Actuary sets out the funded status of gratuity / pension 
plan and the amount recognized in the Bank's financial statements as at March 31, 2023. 

d) Changes in the defined benefit obligations [<. in Crore] 
Gratuity Plan Pension Plan 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Projected defined benefit obligation, 
254.48 245.42 1020.37 920.62 beginning of the year 

Current Service Cost 22.19 20.06 186.53 193.26 
Past Service Cost - - - -
Interest Cost 17.89 16.55 65.47 57.17 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 8.85 4.13 (88.47) 82.37 
Benefits paid (33.15) (31.67) (199.08) (233.05) 
Proje,cted defined benefit obligation, 

270.27 254.49 984.81 1020.37 
end of the year 

Liability (net) of fair value of plan 
3.13 7.63 (5.69) 4.73 assetat the end of the year 

e) Changes in the fair value of plan assets [<. in Crore] 
Gratuity Plan Pension Plan 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of 
246.85 243.49 1015.64 894.16 the year 

Expected return on plan assets 18.63 17.07 68.34 65.89 
Employer's contributions 34.88 18.21 102.21 291.00 
Actuarial gain/ (loss) (0.06) (0.25) 3.40 (2.35) 
Benefits paid (33.15) (31.67) (199.08) (233.05) 
Fair value of plan assets, end of the 

267.14 246.85 990.50 1015.63 
year 
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f) Net Employee benefit expense (recognized in payments to and provisions for employees) 

[<. in Crore] 
Gratuity Plan Pension Plan 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Current Service Cost 22.19 20.06 186.53 193.26 
Past Service Cost - - - -
Interest Cost 17.89 16.55 65.47 57.17 
Expected return on plan assets (18.62) (17.07) (68.34) (65.89) 
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in 

8.92 4.38 (91.87) 84.72 
the year 

Employee cost 30.37 23.92 91.78 269.26 
Unamortized cost - - - -
Total 30.37 23.92 91.78 269.26 
Actual return on plan assets 18.56 16.82 71.73 63.54 

g) Categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets 
. Gratuity Plan Pension Plan 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Government Securities (Central & State) - - - -
High quality Corporate Bonds - - - -
Equity Shares of Listed Companies - - - -
Funds Managed by Insurer • 100% 100% 100% 100% 
Others (PSU & Special Deposits) - - - -
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 

• In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with Insurance 
Companies, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or amount for 
each category to the fair vaiue of plan assets has not been disclosed. 

h) Experience adjustments 
(i) Gratuity 

Defined Benefit Obligations 

Plan Assets 
(Surplus)/Deficit 

Unamortized 

Net benefit expenses 

Experience adjustments (gain)/ loss on 
Plan Liabilities 

Experience Adjustments gain/ (loss) on 
Plan Assets 

March March 
31,2023 31,2022 

270.27 254.49 

267.14 246.85 
3.13 7.63 

- -
3.13 7.63 

9.16 
12.43 

0.06 
0.25 

[<. in Crore] 

March March March 
31,2021 31,2020 31,2019 

245.41 232.65 216.44 

243.49 227.75 210.30 
1.92 4.90 6.14 

- - -
1.92 4.90 6.14 

32.70 (7.48) 5.25 

(0.97) 0.58 (1.49) 
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(ii) Pension [<. in Crore] 
March March March March March 

31, 31, 2022 31, 31, 31, 
2023 2021 2020 2019 

Defined Benefit Obligations 984.81 1,020.37 920.62 801.56 700.22 
Plan Assets 990.50 1,015.63 894.15 747.52 674.56 
(Surplus)/Deficit (5.69) 4.73 26.47 54.05 25.66 
Experience adjustments (gain) / (88.47) 

82.37 138.80 42.33 (1.98) loss on Plan Liabilities 

Experience Adjustments gain/ 
2.35 (4.77) 5.86 (1.20) (loss) on Plan Assets (3.40) 

i) Assumptions used by the actuary in accounting for Gratuity/ Pension/Compensation for 
absence 

Gratuity Plan Pension Plan Compensation for 
absence 

March March March March March March 31, 
31,2023 31,2022 31,2023 31,2022 31,2023 2022 

Discount rate 7.53% 7.52% 7.52% 7.27% 7.53% 7.52% 
Expected rate qfreturn on plan assets 7.52% 7.21% 7.27% 7.11% * * 
Increase in compensation cost 6.00% 6.00% 5.5% 5.5% 6.00% 6.00% 

*Not apphcable 
Notes: .. , 

(i),. Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government oflndia securities as 
at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations. 

(ii) Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long term rate of return 
expected on investments of the funds during the estimated term of the obligations. 

(iii) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, taken in to 
account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

j) Compensation for absence on Privilege/ Sick I Casual Leave 
The charge on account of compensation for privilege / sick I casual leave has been actuarially 
determined and an amount of t54.63 Crore (Previous year t60.36 Crore) has been debited to 
Profit and Loss account. 

The above information is as certified by actuary and relied upon by the auditor. 

6. Micro Small and Medium Industries 
Under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises development Act 2006, certain disclosures 
are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. There have been 
no reported cases of delays in payment to micro, and small enterprises or of interest payments 
due to delays in such payments. The above is based on information available with the Bank 
which has been relied on by the auditors. 
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7. Segment reporting 
Business Segments have been identified and reported taking into account, the target customer 
profile, the nature of product and services, the differing risks and returns, the organization 
structure, the internal business reporting system. and guidelines issued by RBI from time to 

time. The Bank operates in the following business segments; 

a) Treasury: 
The treasury segment primarily consists of interest earnings on investments portfolio of the 
bank, gains or losses on investment operations and earnings from foreign exchange business. 
The principal expenses of the segment consist of interest expense on funds borrowed and 
other expenses. Segmental expenses are allocated as per board approved policy. 
b) Corporate I Wholesale Banking: 
The Corporate I Whole sale Banking segment provides loans to corporate segment identified 
on the basis of RBI guidelines. Revenues of this segment consist of interest earned on Loans 
made to corporate customers and the charges / fees earned from other banking services. The 
principal expenses of the segment consist of interest expense on funds borrowed and other 
expenses. Segmental expenses are allocated as per board approved policy. 

c) Retail banking: 
The Retail Banking segment provides loans to non-corporate customers identified on the basis 
of RBI guidelines. Revenues of this segment consist of interest earned on Loans made to non­
corporate customers and the charges/ fees earned from other banking services. The principal 
expenses of the segment consist of interest expense on funds borrowed and other expenses. 

Segmental expenses are allocated as per board approved policy. 
In accordance with RBI circular DOR.AUT.REC.12/22.01.001/2022-2023 dated April 07, 
2022 on establishment of Digital Banking Units, the Bank has presented 'Digital Banking' as 
sub-segment of the Retail Banking Segment. Assets of DBU consists of mainly credit card, 

loan against deposits opened through digital mode etc. 
d) Other Banking Operations: 
This segment includes income from para banking activities such as debit cards, third party 
product distribution and associated costs. Segmental expenses are allocated as per board 

approved policy. 
e) Unallocated 
All items that cannot be allocated to reportable segments are included in unallocated portion. 

Geographic segment 
The Bank operations are predominantly confined within one geographical segment (India) 
and accordingly this is considered as the only secondary segment. In accordance with RBI 
guidelines in regard to business segments of banks, the bank has determined the business 

segments and the required disclosures are as follows: 
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[~. in Crore] 
Business 
Segments 

Treasury 
Corporate/ 

Wholesale Banking 
Retail Banking 

Other Banking 
Total 

Operations 
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 

Revenue 

Result 

Unallocated 
(Expenses)/ 
Income 

Operating 
profit 

Income 
Taxes 

Net Profit 

1088,00 

(158.42) 

1499.70 2323.02 2065,04 4083.76 

18.51 (101.70) (656.82) 975.59 

3,710.05 549.77 345,65 8044.55 7,620.44 

291.65 392.74 254.68 1108.21 (91.99) 

0.29 (0.23) 

1108.50 (92.21) 

333.19 (137.03) 

775.31 44.82 

Other Information: 
Segment 
Assets 104188.58 96,452.01 

Unallocated 

Assets 3508.58 3599.86 

Total Assets 

Segment 
Liabilities 

107697.16 1,00,051.87 

99395.78 93,243.31 

1626.76 955.60 

·,:(/';'_" 

Unallocated 
Liabiliii;s 

Total 

Liabilit~~ 101022.54 94,198.91 

Since the Banlc operates only in domestic segment, the requirement of disclosure regarding 
geographical segment is not applicable. 

*RBI's Master Direction on Financial Statements-Presentation and Disclosures, requires to 
sub-divide 'Retail banking' into (a) Digital Banking (as defined in RBI Circular on 
Establishment of Digital Banking Units dated April 07, 2022) and (b) Other Retail Banking 
segment. Accordingly, the segmental results for retail banking segment for Q4 2022-23 is sub-
divided as below. (Rs. In Crore) 

Segment Segment Segment Segment 
Revenue for Results (net of Assets as on Liabilities 

the year provisions) for 31.03.2023 as on 
ended the year ended 31.03,2023 

Particulars 31.03,2023 31.03.2023 
Retail Banking 
(i) Digital Banking 302.53 73.17 3017.67 2887.01 
/ii) Other Retail Banking 3781.23 902.42 36732.67 35140.82 

Segment information is provided as per the MIS available for internal reporting purposes, 
which include certain estimates/assumptions. The methodology adopted in compiling and 
reporting the above information has been relied upon by auditors. 
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8. Related party disclosure: 

SI 
No 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

The related parties of the bank are broadly classified as: 
a. Snbsidiary 

SI. Name of the Entity Nature of Relationship 
No. 
I SIB Ooerations and Services Limited Wholly Owned Subsidiarv ( WOS) 

b. Key Management Personnel (As per AS 18)- MD & CEO 

SI. Name of the Key Management Relative of the Key Management 
No. Personnel Personnel 
I Mr. Murali Ramakrishanan, • Mangala Santhanam 

Managing Director and CEO • Charumathv Murali 

Related Party Transaction Summary for the Financial year ended 31.03.2023 
(Rs. In Crore) 

Value of the In case monies are 
Details of counter Type ofrelated related due to either party as 
party party transaction party a result of the 

Value of the transaction transaction 
related party during the 
transaction as reporting 

Opening 
approved by the period (for Closing 

Relationship of the Audited the 
Balance 

Balance (as 
counterparty with Committee Financial 

(as on 
on March 

he listed entity year ended 
April l, 

31, 2023) 
March 31, 

2022 

2023) 
Income received 

Wholly owned for providing 
Note 6 

subsidiary (WOS) management 1.2, 0.2( 0.81 
service 

Wholly owned 
Income received 

subsidiary (WOS) 
for providing other Note 6 o.o; 0.002 0.002 
services 

Wholly owned 
Expense paid for 
HR services Note 6 

subsidiary (WOS) 
provided by WOS 

9.31 0.28 1.07 

)irectors 
Sitting Fees 
(WOS) 0.02 o.oo, -

Subsidiary Directors Interest received 
0.001 - -

Subsidiary Directors nterest Paid 
0.0' - -

Subsidiary Directors Deposits Note 5 
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1.38 1.22 1.38 

8 
Subsidiary Directors' 

nterest received 
Relatives 0.003 - -

9 
Subsidiary Directors' 

Deposits Note 5 
Relatives 4.632 4.45 4.63 

IO 
Subsidiary Directors' 

Interest Paid 
Relatives 0.18 - -
KMPs including MD As per Bank's 

11 &CEO and Remuneration paid 
Internal 

Subsidiary Directors 
~olicies/approve, 4.o, . -
by Regulator 

Sitting Fees 

12 !Directors 
including 
honorarium to 2.17 . -
Chainnan 

13 !Directors Deposits Note 5 1.78 
2.11 1.78 

14 !Directors nterest received 
o.o, 

15 Directors nterest Paid 
0. 1'. - -

16 
KMP.s including MD 

Deposits Note 5 11.09 &CEO o.o, 11.0' 

17 
KMPs including MD 

Interest received 
&CEO o.o, - -

18 
KMPs including MD 

Interest Paid 
0.4' &CEO - -

KMPs including MD 
ESOS grant 

19 &CEO and Refer Note No 8 
Subsidiary Directors 

outstanding(Nos.) 15,05,365.01 10,476.00 15,05,365.00 

20 
!Relative/ Interested 

Deposits Note 5 11.22 company- Directors 11.8" 11.2'. 

21 
Relative/ Interested 

Interest Paid 
company- Directors 0.6,. - -

22 
Relative/ Interested 

Interest received 
company- Directors o.oo: - -

23 
Relative ofKMPs & 

Deposits 
MD&CEO 

Note 5 0.81 
0.61 0.8( 

24 
IRelative ofKMPs & 

Interest Paid 
MD&CEO 0.01 - . 

25 MD&CEO savings 
0.002 0.1 0.002 

26 Relative MD & CEO savings 
0.01 0.01 0.01 
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Note: 
I) Transactions with WOS are shown excluding GST and TDS 
2) In compliance with the guidelines given as per annexure to SEBI circular No 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2021/662 November 22, 2021, The South Indian Bank 
Ltd, being a listed bank, is not required to provide the disclosures with respect to related 
party transactions involving loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments 

made or given by the bank. 
3) In compliance with the guidelines given as per armexure to SEBI circular No 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2021/662 November 22, 2021 transactions such as 
acceptance of fixed deposits by banks, undertaken with related parties, at the terms 
unifmmly applicable /offered to all shareholders/ public only are reported under 

deposit. 
4) The Bank, being a scheduled commercial bank, as per RBI circular RBI/DBR/2015-

16/19 dated March 03, 2016, has allowed additional interest of one per cent per annum, 
over and above the rate of interest mentioned in the schedule of interest rates on savings 
or a term deposits of bank's staff and their exclusive associations as well as on deposits 
of Chairman, Managing Director and such other Executives appointed for a fixed 

tenure. 
5) Value of the related party transaction for deposit is the balance in fixed deposit 

outstanding as on 31.03.2023. 
6) Regulation 23 of Listing regulations, as amended from time to time, grant exemptions 

from seeking approval of the Audit Committee of the Board for the transactions entered 
into by and between the holding company and its wholly owned subsidiary company, 
whose accounts are consolidated with such holding company and placed before the 
shareholders at the general meeting for approval. 

7) None of the Directors/ KMPs/ relatives are holding substantial shares/ securities of the 

Bank. 
8) As part of additional disclosure internal KMP data are also disclosed during the period 

ended 31.03.2023 in line with reporting made for the half year ended 30.09.2022. 
9) Transactions with common directors of subsidiary and Bank is shown under Directors. 
I0)Mr. Parayil George John Tharakan (DIN-07018289), has retired from the office as a 

Non-Executive Independent Director of the Bank on November 24, 2022, upon 
completion of his 8-year term, as per Section I 0A(2A) of Banking Regulation Act 1949, 
hence in the closing balance (Deposits) details of his/ his relatives' deposits were not 
included in reporting as the same will not be coming under the preview ofRPT. 

11) The CSR activity of Bank is carried out by a trust formed by Bank in this regard. Since 
the Trust is acting on behalf of Bank and amount are spent as Bank's CSR expenditure, 

these transactions are not treated as RPT 
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9. Earnings per Share 

The Bank reports basic and diluted EPS in accordance with the Accounting Standard - 20 
on "Earnings per Share" 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computation of 
basic earnings per share 

209,27,41,018 209,27,41,018 
Potential equity shares arising out of the Employees Stock Option 
Scheme - -
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computation of 
diluted earnings per share 

209,27,41,018 209,27,41,018 
Earnings used in the computation of basic earnings per share (< in 
Crore) 775.31 44.82 
Earnings used in the computation of diluted earnings per share(< in 
Crore) 775.31 44.82 
Nominal Value of share (in <) 1.00 1.00 
Basic earnings per share (in <) 3.70 0.21 
Effect of potential equity shares for ESOS - -
Diluted earnings per share (in <) 3.70 0.21 

10. Deferred Tax Assets (net) [<. in Crore] 

' Particulars ., March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Deferred Tax Asset (A) 
Provisions for Loans/Investments/ others 324.82 370.86 
Fixed Assets: on difference between book balances and tax 8.40 3.11 
balance ofWDV of fixed assets 
Preliminary expenses 0.00 0.01 
Carried forward Business Loss/Depreciation Allowance 0.01 0.05 
Total (A) 333.23 374.03 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) 

Special Reserve created u/s 36(1)(viii) oflncome Tax Act 167.52 139.56 
Interest accrued but not due on investments 144.29 0.00 
Total (B) 311.81 139.56 
Deferred Tax Asset (net) (A-B) 21.42 234.47 

Provision for taxes during the year: [<. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Current Tax (net of write back) 258.40 (5.95) 
Deferred Tax (net) 213.05 (131.08) 
MAT Credit (138.26) 0.00 
Total 333.19 (137.03) 
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Tax provision is created in the books after adjusting for permanent differences in Income tax, 
accounting of MAT credit and deferred tax assets/liability. Based on favourable Income Tax orders 
received during the financial year, the excess provision for tax held for different assessment years in 
the books of account as on the balance sheet date amounting to a net sum of ,54.81 Crore (Previous 
year < 69.60 Crore) has been written back. 

11. Provisions and Contingencies 
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and 
Loss Account: 

[< in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Provision for NP As (including write off, excluding 
623.07 1,161.40 

technical write off) . 

Provision for NP!s (137.54) (7.91) 
Provision for taxes (Net of write back) 1 258.40 (5.95) 
Deferred Tax (net) 213.05 . (131.08) 
MAT Credit (138.26) -
Provision for Standard Assets (58.61) 175.57 
Provision for Restructured Advances (0.05) 1.22 
Provision for FITL (22.17) 69.67 
Provision for unhedged foreign currency exposures 1.66 (1.06) 
Provision for Non-Banking Asset' (0.71) (62.74) 
Provision for Fraud / Other impaired assets (6.53) 3.41 
TOTAL 732.31 1,202.53 

1. Based on favourable Income Tax orders -received during the financial year, the net excess ·provision 
for tax held in books amounting to ,54.81 Crore (Previous year < 69.60 Crore) has been written back. 
2 The Bank had acquired certain land parcels under a partial Debt Asset Swap transaction ("DAS") in 
earlier years aggregating <I IO Crores and classified them as "Non-Banking Assets acquired in 
satisfaction of claims" in the Balance Sheet. During the FY 2022-23 Bank had sold certain properties 
and ,0.71 Crore (Previous year< 62.74 Crore) (after adjusting the expenses) was credited back to the 
provision. 

12. Draw Down from Reserves 
The Bank has not w1dertaken any drawdown from reserves during the years ended March 31, 
2023 and March 31, 2022 
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13, Penalties levied by the Reserve Bank of India 
The penalty imposed by RBI during the year ended March 31, 2023 was n 5,90,650/­
(Previous year ~ 1,01,86,000/-) 

Penalties Imposed By RBI in FY 2022-23 
Imposed Amount(Rs) Nature of breach date 

28-03-2022 10,000.00* ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
07-04-2022 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out oenaltv imoosed bv RBI. 
12-05-2022 10,000.00 ATM Cash-out oenalty imposed bv RBI. 
13-05-2022 20,000.00 ATM Cash-out oenalty imposed by RBI. 
20-05-2022 20,000.00 A TM Cash-out oenaltv imoosed by RBI. 
24-05-2022 4,00,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
01-06-2022 70,000.00 ATM Cash-out oenaltv imPosed bv RBI. 
03-06-2022 1,00,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed bv RBI. 
05-07-2022 50,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
21-07-2022 2,150.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currencv chest. 
10-08-2022 150.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currencv chest. 
03-08-2022 3,750.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currencv chest. 
16-08-2022 1,200.00 Late fee due to delay in filing Form GSTR-6 return for the month of 

July2022. 
04-08-2022 10,000.00 Penalty imposed by RBI for non-reporting of A TM cash-out. Later, 

,, based on bank's representation, the penalty amount was reversed to our 
account. 

22-08-2022 40,000.00 A TM Cash-out Penaltv imPosed bv RBI. 
02-09-2022 60,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
06-09-2022 30,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
07-10-2022 30,000.00 A TM Cash-out Penaltv imPosed by RBI. 
03-11-2022 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
18-11-2022 4,850.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance/ shortage 

in remittance bv currencv chest. 
08-12-2022 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out nenaltv imPosed by RBI. 
12-12-2022 15,000.00 Penaltv imposed bv RBI for irrem,larities observed during their visit. 
16-01-2023 15,000.00 Penalty imposed by RBI for irrem1larities observed during their visit. 
29-12-2022 5,000.00 Penaltv imoosed by RBI for irregularities observed during their visit. 
16-02-2023 90,000.00 A TM Cash-out Penalty imposed by RBI. 
27-02-2023 100.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currencv chest. 
08-02-2023 950.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currency chest. 
08-03-2023 10,000.00 Penalty imposed by RBI for Non Frisking by Currency chest. 
17-03-2023 12,500.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currencv chest.-
10-03-2023 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
17-03-2023 10,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
29-03-2023 1,30,000.00 A TM Cash-out oenaltv imposed by RBI. 
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33 30-03-2023 . 4,00,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 

SI 
No 
I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 
9 

Total 15,90,650.00 
*This penalty was pertaining to the month of March 2022 (i.e. Q4 of FY 2021-22). This case was 
further analysed and reported in the month of April 2022. Hence the same has been reported in QI 
of FY 2022-23. 

Penalties Imposed by RBI In FY 2021-22 
Imposed Amount 

Nature of Breach date 
06.07.2021 1,00,00,ooo.oo We were in receipt of a show cause notice from RBI dated 22nd January 

2021 with respect to the account IL & FS Group companies with regards 
to non-adherence of RBI Circular IECD.No.29/08.12.01/98-99 dated 
May 25, 1999 on "Lending to Non-Banking Financial Companies 
(NBFCs)". Vide letter SIB/COMP/RBI/77 /20-21 dated February 
09,2021. 

06.09.2021 35,000.00 We were in receipt of a Show Cause Notice on the following 
discrepancies observed during RBI Inspection in Currency Chest, 
I. Non-Frisking of person entering/exiting the vault. 
2. Non Maintenance of charge certificate 
3. Delay in sorting of Soiled notes. 
4. Grill Gate of strong: room kept ooen during: ooeration. 

11.11.2021 200.00 
Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 
currency chest. 

28.12.2021 l,00,000.00 On 22.12.21, Short Sale amounting to Rs.45 crores was kept open for 
value 23.12.21. On 23.12.2021, inadvertently, purchase of Market 
Revere Repo was not communicated to Money Market Desk by SLR 
Desk & thus they did not strike reverse repo deal to cover the security 
short sold. Hence, reverse repo for Rs. IO crores against the security short 
6.67% GS 2035 was not taken. This lead to shortage of security balance 
by Rs. JO crores in Subsidiary.General Ledger (SGL). The securities that 
were short, had to be bought under reverse repo to negate security short 
sold commitment to CCIL 

18.01.2022 • 5,300.00 Penalty imposed on account of deficiencies noticed during RBI visit of 
currencv chest. 

07.03.2022 15,950.00 Penalty imposed on account of deficiencies noticed during RBI visit of 
currency chest. 

10.03.2022 9,550.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled I forged I defective note 
Remittance by currency chest. 

14.03.2022 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
17.03.2022 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RB I. 

Total 1,01,86,000.00 
During the year, short sale of securities amounting to 'it 45 Crore were kept open for value date 
22.12. 2021. Market Reverse Repo for 'it 35 Crore was taken against 45 Cr short sale and 
Purchase of Market Reverse Repo for 'it IO Crore against the securities short 6.67% GS 2035 
was not taken which lead to shortage of security balance by <IO Crore in Subsidiary General 
Ledger (SGL). The same has been reported to the appropriate authority. There is no other such 
incidence incurred during the period. Further we also confirm that all investments and Forex 
transactions are in compliance with RBI directives and Banks Investment Policy. 
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14. Fixed Assets 
a) Fixed Assets as per Schedule IO include Intangible Assets relating to 

Development Expenditure which are as follows:-
Software and System 

[~. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Gross Block 

At the beginning of the year 209.00 175.90 

Additions during the year 3.25 33.10 

Deductions during the year 0.25 -
Closing Balance 212.00 209.00 

Depreciation / Amortisation 

At the beginning of the year 135.16 106.60 

Charge for the year 29.68 28.56 

Deductions during the year - -
Depreciation to date 164.84 135.16 

Net Block 47.16 73.84 

15. Other Provisions and Contingencies 
► Movement in provision for other contingencies: [~. in Crore] 

, Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Provision at the beginning of the year 20.32 
Incremental expense during the year 21.85 
Redemption during the year 19.14 
Provision at the end of the year 23.03 

► Movement in provision for debit card reward points: [~. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Provision at the beginning of the year 2.33 
Provision made during the year 4.28 
Reductions during the year 3.10 
Provision at the end of the year 3.51 

16. Operating Lease 

Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognised as an expense in the Profit and 
Loss Account as per the lease terms. During the year an amount of~ 108.86 Crore (Previous 
year: ~ I 00.62 Crore) was charged to Profit and Joss account. 
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17. Descri{ltion of contingent liabilities• 
Contingent liability Brief Description 

Claims not acknowledged This includes liability on account of, and other legal cases filed against 
as debts the bank. The bank is a party to various legal proceedings in the ordinary 

course of business and these are contested by the Bank and are therefore 
subjudice. The Bank does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to 
have a material adverse impact on the Bank's financial position. 

Liability on account of The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts with interbank 
outstanding forward participants on its own account and for its customers. Forward exchange 
contracts contracts are commitments to buy or sell foreign currency at a future date 

at the contract rate. 
Guarantees on behalf of As a part of banking activities, the Bank issues Letter of Guarantees and 
constituents in India and documentary credit on behalf of its customers, with a view to augment the 
outside India, customer's credit standing. Through these instruments, the Bank 
Acceptances, undertakes to make payments for its customers' obligations, either directly 
endorsements and other or in case the customer fails to fulfill their financial or performance 
obligations obligations. 

Other items for which the Includes capital commitments and amount transferred to RBI under the 
bank is contingently liable Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF). 

• Also refer schedule - 12 
The Bank's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Bank by the clients and 
proceedings pending with Income Tax authorities/ Service Tax Authorities. The Bank has 
reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where 
provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities wherever applicable, in its 
financial statements. The Management believes that the possibility of outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits in these cases is possible but not probable and hence no 
provision is required in these cases. However, the contingent liability has been disclosed with 
respect to these cases. 

18.Corporate social responsibility 
Operating expenses include ~ 1.86 Crore (Previous Year t 6.06 Crore) for the year ended March 
31, 2023 towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), in accordance with the Companies Act, 
2013. The Bank has spent 2.02 % of its average net profit for the last three financial years as part 
of its CSR for the year ended March 31, 2023. The Bank is currently in the process of evaluating 
strategic avenues for CSR expenditure in order to deliver maximum impact. 
Details of amount spent during the year towards CSR are as under: 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 [t. in Crore] 

Paid Yet to be paid Total 
i) Construction I Acquisition of any assets 0.60 - 0.60 

ii) For purposes other than (i) above 1.26 - 1.26 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part of Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 [~. in Crore] 
Paid Yet to be paid Total 

i) Construction/ Acquisition of any assets 3.65 - 3.65 
ii) For purposes other than (i) above 2.41 - 2.41 

19. Provision for long term contracts 
The Bank has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts (including derivative contracts) 
are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the bank has reviewed and recorded 
adequate provision as required under any Law/Accounting Standards for material foreseeable losses 
on such long-term contracts (including derivative contracts) in the books of account and disclosed the 
same under the relevant notes in the financial statements. 

20. Disclosure as to Rule ll(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
The Bank, as part of its normal banking business grants loans and advances, makes investment, 
provides guarantees to and accept deposits and borrowings from its customers, other entities 
and persons. These transactions are conducted after proper due diligence and ensuring 
adherence to all regulatory requirements including "Know Your Customer" guidelines. 

Other than the transactions described above which are carried out in the normal course of 
business, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or deposits or any other sources or kinds of funds) by the Bank to or in any 
other p~rsons or entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries") with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party 
identified by or on behalf of the Bank ("Ultimate Beneficiaries"). The Bank has also not 
receiv,id any funds from any parties (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Bank shall 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on 
behalf'of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

21. Proposed Dividend 

The Board of Directors has proposed a dividend ofRs.0.30 per Equity share (30%) (Previous 
year Nil) for the year ended March 31, 2023, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. In terms of revised Accounting Standard (AS) 4 
'Contingencies and Events occurring after Balance Sheet date' as notified by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs through amendments to Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016, dated March 30, 2016, proposed dividend including dividend distribution tax of 
Rs.62.78 Crore is not recognized as liability as on March 31, 2023. However, effect of the 
proposed dividend has been reckoned in determining capital funds in the computation of capital 
adequacy ratios as at March 31, 2023. 

22. Additional disclosure 

Additional statutory information disclosed in the separate financial statements of the Bank and 
subsidiary have no material bearing on the true and fair view of the reformatted consolidated 
financial statements and the information pertaining to the items which are not material have not 
been disclosed in the reformatted consolidated financial statements. 

:,·-,_,l 

,/·?:/·! 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part of Reformatted Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

23. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped to conform to the current year 

presentation wherever necessary. 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 
Chartered ccountants 
!CAI F egistration No. 004610S 

Partner 
Membership No. 227654 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

President 

0,£ 
Chief Financial Officer 

For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

PRSeshadri 
(Managing Director 

&CEO) 
(DIN : 07820690) 



M/s CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

5th Floor, Narain Chambers, 

Vile Parle - East 

Mumbai - 400 057 

To the Board of Directors of 

The South Indian Bank Limited 

M/s K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

41/3647 B, 1st Floor, Blue Bird Towers, 

Providence Road, 

Kochi - 682 018 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements 

The accompanying Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements of The South Indian Bank 

Limited (the "Bank"), comprising the reformatted audited standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, 

and also the reformatted audited standalone profit and loss account and the reformatted audited 

standalone cash flow statement for the year then ended, and reformatted notes to the standalone financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 

(together comprising the "Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements") are derived from the 

audited standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023 (the "Audited 

Standalone Financial Statements") of the Bank audited by us as detailed in paragraph below. The Audited 

Standalone Financial Statements, and the Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements, do not 

reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the date of our report on the Standalone Financial 

Statements except for the matters as mentioned under section "Basis of preparation" in Schedule 17 to the 

Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements. 

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the Audited Standalone Financial Statements, vide our report 

dated May 11, 2023. 

Management's Responsibility for the Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements 

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial 

Statements from the Audited Standalone Financial Statements on the basis described under section "Basis 

of preparation" in Schedule 17 to the Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements 

based on our procedures, which were conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SA) 810, 

"Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements" issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements derived from the Audited 

Standalone Financial Statements of the Bank js aJair summary of the Sta inancial Statements on 
_; .• -' \• L)~l C1 (_. /,/~_-_. < 

the basis described under section "Bas,i~•;c:if prep·ara,tion" in Schedul rmatted Audited 
I. \ /\' 

Standalone Financial Statements. !( . / .. , !' ,,, . \\, i': 
, \ li.i_.',·,IC.)1 I/ , ·';,'' 
I i / '· i' 

·<-\:>::· / ,. .. ,,.\;l}i' 
·,,_·1~/J,(;(/)_;:'./ 



Restrictions on Use 

This report is addressed to and is provided to enable the Bank to include this report in the Letter of Offer 

in connection with the proposed rights issue, to be filed by the Bank with Securities and Exchange Board of 

India and that these Reformatted Audited Standalone Financial Statements may not be meaningful for any 

other purpose. 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Fir ' Registration Number. 101961W/W-100036 

• en Shah 

Partner 

Membership No.100052 

UDIN: 24100052BKFAGl6687 

Place: Thrissur 

Date: February 21, 2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

ation Number: 004610S 

Sreevats Gopalakrishnan 

Partner 1 

Membership Number: 227654 

UDIN:24227654BKFTGX9239 

Place: Thrissur 

Date: February 21, 2024 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
REFORMATTED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 

Capital 

Employees' Stock Options Outstanding 

Reserves and Surplus 

Deposits 

Borrowings 

Other liabilities and provisions 

ASSETS 

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 

Balances with banks and money at call and short notice 

Investments 

Advances 

Fixed Assets 

Other Assets 

Contingent Liabilities 
Bills for collection 
Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes on Accounts 
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet 

In te1ms of our report attached 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

Schedule 
No 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 
TOTAL 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 
TOTAL 

12 

17 
18 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

fin Crore fin Crore 

209.27 209.27 

0.11 1.29 

6,465.31 5,643.86 

91,651.35 89,142.11 

6,993.85 3,294.49 

2,378.29 1,761.40 
1,07,698.18 1,00,052.42 

4,639.22 7,276.61 

2,441.27 3,926.82 

24,641.80 21,445.01 

69,804.44 59,993.39 

877.92 811.05 

5,293.53 6,599.54 
1,07, ·'° l,UU,052.42 

25,891.24 33,764.70 
2,057.79 1,752.96 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

PRSeshadli 
(Managing Director & CEO) 

(DIN , 07820690) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
REFORMATTED STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED M_AROI 31, 2023 

I.INCOME 
Interest Earned 
Other Income 

II. EXPENDITURE 
Interest Expended 
Operating Expenses 
Provisions and Contingencies 

III. PROFIT/LOSS 
Net Profit{Loss) for the year 
Profit/ (Loss) brought forward from previous year 
Total 
IV. APPROPRIATIONS 
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 
Transfer to Capital Reserve 
Transfer to/ (from) Revenue and Other Reserve 
Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 

Earnings per share (Face value oft 1 per share) 
Basic (in') 
Diluted (in ') 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes on Accounts 
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

stration No. 004610S 

Schedule 
No 

13 
14 

TOTAL 

15 
16 

18,A.14.e 
TOTAL 

IDTAL 

18.B.16 
18.B.16 

17 
18 

;;--:-. 
Thomas Joseph. K 

Executive Vice Presid 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

, inCrore , in Crore 

7,233.18 6,586.54 
812.63 1,034.10 

8,045.81 7,620.64 

4,221.10 4,346.78 
2,317.38 2,026.29 

732.24 1,202.59 
7,270.72 7,575.66 

775.09 44.98 
-37.87 4.63 
737.22 49.61 

193.78 11.25 
4.57 76.23 

130.00 -
80.00 -

104.39 -
224.48 -37.87 
737.22 49.61 

3.70 0.21 
3.70 0.21 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

P RSeshadri 
(Managing Director & CEO) 

(DIN , 07820690) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
REFORMATTED STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023 

Cash flow from ot1eratina activities 
Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 
Adiustments for: 
Denreciation 
Amortisation of Premium on HI'M Investments 
Provision for Deoreciation / Non Performirui: Investments 
General Provisions a11:ainst Standard Assets 
Provision/write off for Non Performin.2: Assets 
Other Provisions 
Emplovee Stock Options expense 
Interest on Subordinated bonds 
Profit)/ Loss on sale of land, buildinvs and other assets 

Ooeratin,. nrofit before workiri!! cat1ital chall.e:es 
Chami:es in workine:canital: 
Increase Decrease) in Deoosits 
Increase Decrease) in Other liabilities and provisions . 
Increase Decrease in Investments 
Increase Decrease In Advances 
h\crease\ Decrease 1n Other Assets 

Cash flow from ooeratine: activities before taxes 
Direct Taxes oaid 
Net cash flow fromnused in} ooeratine: activities 
Cash flow from investing activities: 
Purchase of Fixed Assets/Canital Work•in•Procrress 
Sale of Fixed/Non Bankin11: Assets 
Purchasel/Sale of Investments (Held To Mah,tritv) 

Net cash flow from11used in) lnvestin2 activities 
Cash flow from financing activities: 
Net nroceeds l<renavments) 1n borrowin~ 
Interest on Subordinated bonds 
Net cash flow fro ... 11used inl financinl!': activities 
Net increase/ldecreasel in cash and cash ecmivalents 
Cash and cash eauivalents as at be2iiutine: of the vear 
Cash and cash eauivalents as at the end of the vear 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP For K V enkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

Thrissur 
21·02·2024 

Year Ended March 

<A 

.. .. · . 

fB 
(A+B 

I Cl 

ID 

IE 
IC+D+E 

Thomas Joseph. K 
Executive Vice Presiden 

31, 2023 
, inCrore 

1,108.21 

87,48 
312.41 
296.98 
158.61 
623.07 
(27.81 

0.11 
175.43 

0.12 
2,517.39 

2,509.25 
. , 702.80 

(3,529.m-
110,434.08 

1,191.53 
19,559.571 
(7,042.18 

(218,64 
(7,260.82 

{112, 
3.76 

(277.11 
(386.05 

3,699,36 
"C175.4.3 

5,523.93 
(4,122.94 
11,203.43 

7 080.49 

Year Ended March 31, 
2022 

finCrore 

(91.99 

84.02 
256.54 
256.30 
175.57 

1,161.41 
10.49 
020 

175,43 
f0.16 

2,027.81 

6,431.56 
(731 
66,80 

(3,099.54 
(214.43 

3,177.08 
5,204.89 

(39.57 

5165.32 

1101.87 
64,85 

(1,703.56 
(1,740.58 

(813.78 
1175.41 
1989.19 

2A3555 
8,767.88 

11,203.43 

For and on behalf of ·t:= 
P RSeshadri 

(Managing Director & 
CEO) 

(DIN : 07820690) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SCHEDULES TO REFORMATrED STANDALONE BALANCE SHElff AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

, in Crore fin Crore 

SCHEDULE 1 -CAPITAL 

Authorised Capital 400.00 400.00 
400,00,00,000 Equity shares oft 1/- each 
(Previous year 400,00,00,000 equity shares of , 1/- each) 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 209.27 209.27 

209,27,41,018 Equity shares oft 1/- each 
(Previous year 209,27,41,018 equity shares of , 1/- each) (Refer Note no. A.Le of Schedule 18) - -

TOTAL 209.27 209.27 

Employees' Stock Options Outstanding 
Employees' Stock Options Outstanding 0.88 1.29 
Less: Deferred Employee Compensation Expense (unamOrtised) -0.77 -

TOTAL 0.11 1.29 

SCHEDULE 2- RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

I. Statutory Reserve 
Opening Balance 1,168.04 1,156.79 
Additions during the year 193,78 11.25 

Sub total 1,361.82 1,168.04 

II. Capital Reserve' 
Opening Balance 909.83 837.70 
Additions during the year" 4.57 76.23 
Due to revaluation of Assets (net) 45.07 -

959.47 913.93 
Deductions during the year: 
Deduction from reserve to the extent of deoreciation on revalued amount -5.65 -4.10 

Sub total 953.82 909.83 

III. Share Premium 
Opening Balance 1,766.90 1,766.90 
Additions during the year - -

Sub total 1,766.90 1,766.90 

IV. Revenue and Other Reserves$ 
Opening Balance 1,836.96 1,831.87 
Additions during the year: - -
a) lapse of vested options 1.29 0.99 
b) transfer of depreciation on revaluation 5.65 4.10 
c) appropriation during the Year 314.39 -

Subtotal 2,158.29 1,836.96 
- -

V. Balance in Profit and Loss Account 224.48 -37.87 
TOTAL 6,465.31 5,643.86 
[i+ii+iii+iv+vJ 

* Includes Pmfit appropriated to Capital Reserve (net of applicn~le truces and transfer to 
statutory reserve) on: 
a) Gain on sale of Held to Maturity Investments f9.48 Crore (Previous Year f 156.08 Crore) 
b) Profit/(Loss) on sale of Fixed Assets (t0.12) Crore (Previc,us Year t 0.15 Crore) 
1 (Refer Note no. A.1.f of Schedule 18) 

$ (Refer Note no. A.1.f of Schedule 18) 



THC IAN HA LI T 
SCHEDULES TO REFORMAlTED STANDAWNE BAlANCE SHEET ASAT MARCI 31, 2.1)23 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

, in Crore finOore 

SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS 

A. I. Demand Deposits 
(i) From Banks 7.02 12.37 
(ii) From Others 4,978.96 4,849.15 

- -
II. Savings Bank Deposits 25,241.08 24,739.85 

- -
III. Tenn Deposits - -

(i) From Banks 334.57 2,228,72 
(ii) From Others 61,089.72 57,312.02 

TOTAL 91,651.35 89,142.11 

B. (i) Deposits of branches in India 91,651.35 89,142.11 
(ii) Deposits of branches outside India Nil Nil 

TOTAL gl,651.35 89,142.11 

- -
SCHEDULE 4- BORROWINGS - -

- -
I. Borrowings in India - -

(i) Reserve Bank of India 275.00 -
(ii) Other Banks"' 120.23 207.88 

(iii) Other Institutions and Agencies' 6,419:30 2,873.81 

IL Borrowings outside India - from other banks 179.32 212,80 
TOTAL 6,993.85 3,294.49 

- -
Secured borrowings under Triparty repo, market repurchase transactions with banks and 
financial institutions and transactions under Liquidity Adjustment Facility and Marginal 
Standing Facility included above. 3,181.48 999.60 

*Borrowings from other banks include Subordinated Debt of N7.36 Crore (Previous year ~48.36 
Crore) in the nature of Non-Convertible Debentures and Perpetual Debt of f72.87 Crore 
(Previous year f 159.52 Crore) [Refer Note no. 18.A.1.d] 

#Borrowings from other institutions & agencies include Subordinated Debt of f992.64 Crores 
(Previous year 't991.64 Crore) in the nature of Non-Convertible Debentures and Perpetual Debt 
of f427.13 Crore (Previous year f340A8 Crores) [Refer Note no. 18.A.1.d] 

SCHEDULE 5-OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 

I. Bills Payable 102.85 125.20 
II. Inter -Office adjustments (Net) 81.85 2.57 
III. Interest Accrued 204.15 180.12 
IV. Others (including provisions)* 1,989.44 1453.51 

TOTAL Z:378.:29 1,1nl. 

*Includes :-

Provision for standard assets f407.59 Crore (Previous year f 464.54 Crore) (Refer Note no. 
A.4.a of Schedule 18) 

SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH 
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA 

I. Cash in hand 517.00 572,31 
(Including foreign currency notes) 

IL Balances with Reserve Bank of India 
a) In Current Account 4,122.22 3,104.30 
b) Lending under Reverse Repo (including Standing Deposit Facility) - 3,600.00 

TOTAL 4,639.22 7,276.61 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SCHEDULES TO REFORMATTED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT l\.1.ARCH 31, 2023 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

f i,n Crore 
SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BANKS AND 

f inCrore 

MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE 

I. In India 
i) Balances with Banks 

(a) In Current Accounts 10.93 19.74 
(b) In Other Deposit Accounts 94.57 28.94 

ii) Money at call & short notice 
(a) With Banks 50.00 . 
(b) With other Institutions . . 
(c) Lending under Reverse Repo (Market & Tri party) 49.97 . 

Subtotal 205:47 48.68 
IL Outside India 

(a) In Current Accounts 109.57 158.02 
(b) In Other Deposit Accounts 1,972.08 3,524.35 
(c) Money at call & short notice - with banks 154.15 195.77 

Sub total 2,235.80 3,878.14 
TOTAL 2,441.27 3,926.82 

SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS 
I. Investments in India in: 

(i) Government Securities* 22,376.61 19,465.53 
(ii) Other Approved Securities . 
(iii) Shares 218.33 54.56 
(iv) Debentures and Bonds 1,297.95 571.85 
(v) Subsidiaries and/ or Joint Ventures 0.50 0.50 
(vi) Others' 748.21 1,352.37 

Sub total 24,641.60 21,444.81 
II. Investments outside India - Shares 0.20 0.20 

TOTAL(l+II) 24,641.80 21,445.01 

A. Gross Investments 
(i) In India 26,014.01 22,533.81 

(ii) Outside India 0.20 0.20 
Sub total (A) 26,014.21 22,534.01 

B. Depreciation/Provision for investments 
(i) In India 1,372.41 1,089.00 

{ii) Outside India . 0.00 
Sub total (B) 1,372.41 1,089.00 

C. Net Investments 
(i) In India 24,641.60 21,444.81 

(ii) Outside India 0.20 0.20 
TOTAL(A-B) 24,641.80 21,445.01 

* Including Non SLR State Government bonds with Book Value f 86.71 Crore {Previous Year: f 
105.28 Crore). Securities costing to ' 11,365.78 Crore (Previous Year '10,125.77 Crore) pledged 
for availment of fund transfer facility, clearing facility and margin requirements. [Refer Note 
no. A.3.d of Schedule 18]. 

# includes 
Security Receipts 165.98 703.04 
Certificate of Deposit 435.22 500.91 
Commercial Paper 147.01 148.43 

TOTAL 748.21 1,352.38 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SCHEDl[iES TO REFORMATTED STANDALONE BAI.AN_CE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 20Z3 

Astlt Asat 
March 31, 20W March 31, 2022 

, in Crore , inOore 
SCHEDULE 9-ADVANCES 

A. (i) Bills Purchased and Discounted 8,133.50 5,110,94 
(ii) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and Loans repayable on demand 36,728.60 29,607.50 
(ill) Term Loans 24,942.34 25,274.95 

roTAL 69,804.44 59,993.39 

B. (i) Secured by tangible assets'" 55,400.74 52,355.06 
(ii) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 3,041.52 4,168.57 
(iii) Unsecured 11,362,18 3,469.76 

TOTAL 69,804.44 59,993.39 
'"advances secured by tangible assets includes advances against Book Debt 

C. I. Advances in India 
(i) P1iority Sectors 29,613.49 29,493.22 
(ii) Public Sector 1,000.55 313.58 
(iii) Banks - -
(iv) Others 39,190.40 30,186.59 

TOTAL 69,804.44 59,993.39 
II. Advances outside India Nil Nil 

TOTAL 69,804.44 59,993.39 
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS 

I. Premises {including Land) 
Gross Block: 
At ~ost as on March 31, of the preceding year 594.72 594.69 
Additions during the year - -

Due to purchases/acquisitions 48.58 0.03 
643.30 594.72 

Deductions during the year 0.06 -
Closing Balance 643.24 594.72 

Depreciation -
As at beginning of the year 73.64 66.90 
Charge of the year 8.31 6.74 

-
Depreciation to date 81.95 73.64 
Net Block Sub total 561.29 521.08 

IL Capital Work in Progress 
At cost as on March 31, of the preceding year 59.05 40.50 
Additions during the year 125.89 96.66 

184,94 137.16 
Capitalisations during the year 60.94 78.11 

Sub total 124.00 59.05 

III. Other Fixed Assets (Including furnitures and fixtures and Software) 
Gross Block: 
At cost as on March 31, of the preceding year 822.24 757.58 
Additions during the year 44.23 83.30 

866.47 840.88 
Deductions/ adjustments during the year 41.83 18.64 
Closing Balance 824.64 822.24 
Depreciation -

As at beginning of the year 591.31 530.72 
Charge of the year 79.17 77.28 
Deductions during the year 38.47 16.68 

- -
Depreciation/ adjustments to date 632.01 59132 
Net Block Sub- total 192.63 230.92 

TOTAL [I+II+III] 877.92 811.05 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
SOIEDULES TO REFORMATTED STANDALONE BAIANCE SHEET AS AT !¼ARCH 31, 2023 

Aiiat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 202,2 

~ in Crore , in Crore 

SCHEDULE 11 ~ OTHER ASSETS 

I. Interest Accrued 1,131.64 1,008.74 
IL Tax Paid in Advance/Tax Deducted at Source (Net of provision) 267.65 307.38 

III. MAT Credit Entitlement (Refer Note no. B.3 of Schedule 18) 168.05 

Less MAT Credit utilisation ~ 138.25 . 
IV. Deferred tax asset (net) (Refer Note no. B.3.b of Schedule 18) 21.41 234.41 
V. Oeferred Employee Benefits (Refer Note no.B.11.c.ii of Schedule 18) . 24.57 
VI. Stationery and Stamps 2.94 2.54 

VII. Non~Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 13.45 14.19 
Less: Provisions held ~ . 14.19 . 

VIII. Others* 3,731.64 5,021.90 

TOTAL 5,~93.53 ", 
*Includes Priority Sector Shortfall Deposits amounting to f 2,636.43 Crore (Previous year 
~3,790.89 Crore) 

SCHEDULE 12 ~ CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Refer Note no.15 of Schedule 17) 

I. Oaims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts; 
(i) Direct Tax disputes 20.50 20.50 
(ii) h1direct Tax disputes 22.03 22.72 
(iii) Others 26.86 26.99 

II. Liability on account of outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts1 22,517.21 30,894.64 

III. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents in India 

(a) in India 1,697.82 1,542.40 

{b) outside India 425.96 ·198.97 

IV. Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations 925.38 836.34 
V." Other items for which the bank is contingently liable: 

(i) Capital Commitments 36.84 38.44 

(ii)Tran.sfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)* 218.64 183.70 
TOTAL 25,891.24 33,764.70 

• Represents notional amount 

*[Refer Note no. A.10 of Schedule 18] 

SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED 

I. Interest/Discount on Advances/Bills 5,712.15 5,069.34 
II. Income on Investments 1,285.73 1,039.81 

III. Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and Other Inter~ Uank funds 132.10 333.73 
IV.Others 103.20 143.66 

TOTAL 7,233.18 6,586.54 
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SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME 

I. Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 
II. Profit on sale of Investments 88,00 

Loss on sale of Investments -17.98 
Prov for Depn on Investments -434.52 

III. Profit on sale of land, buildings and other assets 1.19 
Loss on sale of land, buildings and other assets ~ 

IV. Profit/(Loss) on Exchange/derivative transactions (net) -
V, Miscellaneous Income* 

TOTAL 
* Includes Amount written off since recovered t 247.20 Crore (Previous Year t 104.75 Crore) 

SCHEDULE 15- INTEREST EXPENDED 

I. Interest on Deposits 
II. Interest on Reserve Bank of India/Inter-Bank Borrowings 
III. Others 

TOTAL 

SCHEDULE 16 - OPERA TING EXPENSES 

I. Payments to and Provisions for Employees 
II. Rent, Taxes and Lighting 
III. Printing and Stationery 
IV. Advertisement and Publicity 
V. Depreciation on Bank's Property 

VI. Directors fees, remuneration, allowances and expenses 
VII. Auditors' fees and expenses 

VIII. Law charges 
IX. Postage,telegrams,telephones, etc. 
X. Repairs and Maintenance 

XI. Insurance 
XII. Other Expenditure * 

TOTAL 

* Includes expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility tl.86 Crore (Previous year : t 
6.06 Crore) [Refer Note no. B.17 of Schedule 18] 
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2,026.29 
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SCHEDULE-17 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPENDED TO AND FORMING PART OF 
THE REFORMATTED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Background 

The South Indian Bank Limited ('SIB' or the 'Bank'), incorporated on January 29, 1929 at 
Thrissur, as a private limited company and was later converted into a public limited company on 
August 11, 1939. SIB has a network of940 branches in India and provides retail and corporate 
banking, para banking activities such as debit card, third palfy financial product distribution, in 
addition to Treasury and Foreign Exchange Business. SIB is governed by Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949, The Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable Acts/Regulations for Banks. Its shares 
are listed in BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

The Bank is proposing to go for rights issue of equity shares. For this purpose the Bank has 
prepared the reformatted standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the reformatted 
standalone profit and loss account, and the reformatted standalone cash flow statement for the 
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (together comprising the "Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements"). 
Accordingly the Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements will be included in the Letter of 
Offer to be filed by the Bank with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, and the BSE 
Limited ( collectively, the "Stock Exchanges"), and with the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India ("SEBI'') in connect.ion with the proposed rights issue of the Bank. 

Basis of Preparation 

The Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 
31, 2023 are based on and have been extracted by the Management of the Bank from the 
audited financial statements of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2023 (the "Audited 
Financial Statements"). The amounts reported in the Reformatted Standalone financial 
statements have been modified from thousands to crore rounded to two decimals. 
The audited financial statements used for the preparation of the Reformatted Standalone Financial 
Statements have been prepared in accordance with requirements prescribed under the Third 
Schedule (Form A and Form B) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The accounting and 
reporting policies of the bank used in the preparation of these financial statements conform in all 
material aspects to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India ("Indian GAAP"), the 
circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') from time to time and the 
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) 
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and current practices 
prevailing within the banking industry in India. The Bank follows the historical cost convention 
and accrual method of accounting in the preparation of the audited financial statements, except 
where otherwise stated. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of audited financial 
statements are consistent with those followed in the previous year. These Reformatted Standalone 
Financial Statements, do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the date of 
the Auditor's report on the Audited Financial Statements except as mentioned in para 2(d) of 
schedule 17. 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part of the Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh31,2023 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of the Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with the 
generally accepted accounting principles requires the Management to make estimates and 
asswnptions that affect the repot ted amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Management believes that the estimates used 
in the preparation of the Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements are prudent and reasonable. 
Any revisions to the accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the current and future 
periods. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

l. Revenue recognition 

a) Interest / discount I other charges income from loans, advances and investments and 
deposits placed with banks and other institutions are recognized on accrual basis, except 
in respect of income relating to advances/ investments classified as non-performing 
advances/ investments, additional finance treated as standard asset under approved 
restructuring package, where the income is recognized only on realization in accordance 
with RBI guidelines. 

b) Interest income on loans bought ont through the direct assignment route is recognized at 
their effective interest rate, except in case of such loans classified as non-performing 
advances. 

c) The recoveries made from NP A accounts are appropriated towards the order of demand 
applicable to borrowers accounts. 

d) Dividend on investments in shares and units of mutual funds are accounted when the 
bank's right to receive the dividend is established. 

e) Income on discounted instrwllents is recognised over the tenure of the instrwnent on a 
straight-line basis. • 

f) Insurance claims and locker rent are accounted on receipt basis. 

g) Commission income on issuance of bank guarantee / letter of credit is recognised over 
the period of the guarantee/letter of credit. 

h) Processing fee/ upfront fee, handling charges or income of similar nature collected at the 
time of sanctioning or renewal of loan/ facility is recognised at the inception/renewal of 
loan. • 

i) Other fees and commission income (inclnding commission income on third party 
products) are recognised when due, except in cases where the bank is uncertain of ultimate 
collection. 

j) Unpaid funded interest on term loans are recognised on realisation as per the guidelines 
of RBI. 

k) In accordance with RBI guidelines on sale of non-performing advances, if the sale is at a 
price below the net book value (i.e. book value less provisions held), the shortfall is 
charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year of sale. If the sale is for a value higher 
than the net book value, the excess provision is credited to the Profit and Loss Account 
in the year the amounts are received. 

1) Fees received on sale of Priority Sector Lending Certificates is considered as 
Miscellaneous Income, while fees paid for purchase is expensed as other expenses in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI. 

;·>':"f;~j§d~~:. 
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m) The difference between the sale price and purchase cost of gold coins, received on 
consignment basis is included in other income and is recognised at the time of sale to the 
customers. 

n) Interest on income tax refund is recognised under "Other Income" in the year of passing 
of Assessment Orders. 

o) Legal expenses incurred on suit filed accounts are expensed in profit and loss account as 
per RBI guidelines. Such amount when recovered is treated as income 

p) In case of One Time settlement (OTS) accounts the recoveries are first adjusted to 
principal balance and sacrifice on settlement is accounted upfront. 

q) Penal interest is recognised as income on realisation other than on rurming accounts where 
it is recognised when due. 

2, Investments 

A) Classification 

a) In accordance with the RBI guidelines, investments are categorized into "Held for 
Trading", "Available for Sale" and "Held to Maturity" and further classified under 
six groups, viz. Government Securities, Other Approved Securities, Shares, 
Debentures & Bonds, Subsidiaries and/ or joint ventures and Other (to be specified) 
Investments for the purposes of disclosure in the Balance Sheet. Shifting amongst the 
categories is done in accordance with the RBI guidelines. 

b) Investments which are held for sale within 90 days from the date of purchase are 
classified as "Held for Trading". 

c) Investments which the bank intends to hold till maturity are classified as "Held to 
Maturity". 

d) Investments which are not classified in either of the above two categories are classified 
as "Available for Sale". 

B) Acquisition cost 

The cost of investments is determined on the weighted average basis. Broken period 
interest on debt instruments and government securities is treated as a revenue item. The 
transaction cost including brokerage, commissions etc. paid at the time of acquisition of 
investments are charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

C) Valuation 

,· 
.. 
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The valuation of investments is performed in accordance with the RBI Guidelines: 

a. Investments classified as HFT or AFS - Investments classified under the AFS and HFT 
categories are marked-to-market. The market/fair value of quoted investments included 
in the 'AFS' and 'HFT' categories is measured with respect to the Market Price of the 
Scrip as available from the trades/ quotes on the stock exchanges, pricelist of RBI or 
prices declared by Financial Benchmark India Private Limited periodically. Net 
depreciation, if any, within each category of investment classification is recognized in 
Profit and Loss Account. The net appreciation, if any, under each category of 
Investment is ignored. Except in cases where provision for diminution other than 
temporary is created, the Book value of individual securities is not changed consequent 
to the periodic valuation oflnvestments. 

Net depreciation on each type, of investments falling under the residual category of 
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'Others' (i.e. rr.utual funds, PTCs, security receipts etc.) is not offset against gain in 
another class of investment falling within the 'Others' category. 

The depreciation on secw-ities acquired by way of conversion of outstanding loan is 
provided in accordance with the RBI guidelines. Provision for depreciation on 
investments is classified wider Schedule 14 "Other Income". The book value of 
individual securities is not"changed consequent to the periodic valuation of investments. 

b. Held to Maturity - These are carried at their acquisition cost unless it is more than the 
face value, in which cas~ premium 011 P,cquisition is an1ortized over the remaining 
maturity of the security on strdg~~ lite lY.i:Jis. E:t.cil amortization of premium is adjusted 
against interest incon1c wider foe head 'income from Investments' under Schedule 13 
in Profit and Loss account. As per Rl',J guidelines, discount on securities held under 
HTM category is not accrued and such securities are held at the acquisition cost till 
maturity. Any diminution, other than tempora1y, in the value of such secw-ities is 
provided for. 

c. Treasw-y Bills, commercial paper, Cash management bills and Certificate of Deposits 
being discounted instruments, are valued at caiTying cost which includes discount 
amortized over the period to maturity. 

d. Units of Mutual Funds"are valued at the latest repurchase price/net asset value declared 
by Mutual Fund. 

e. Mai·ket value of investments where current quotations are not available, is determined 
as per the norms prescribed by·the RBI •a,, under: 

• in case of unquoted bonds, debentures and preference shares where 
interest/dividend is received regular(y (i.e. not overdue beyond 90 days), the 
market price is derived based on the Yield to Maturity (YTM) for Government 
Securities as published by Financial Benchmark India Pvt Limited (FBIL) and 
suitably marked up for credit risk applicable to the credit rating of the instrwnent. 
The matrix for credit risk mark-up for each category and credit ratings along with 
residual maturity issued by FIMMDA ai·e adopted for this purpose; 

• in case of bonds and debentures where interest is not received regularly (i.e. 
overdue beyond 90 days), the valuation is in accordance with prudential norms for 
provisioning as prescribed by RBI; 

• Preference shares shall be valued on YTM basis. It shall be valued with appropriate 
mark-up over the YTM rates for Central Government Securities put out by the 
FBIL. The preference shares shall not be valued above its redemption value. 

• Equity shares, for which current quotations are not available or where the shares 
are not quoted on the stock exchanges, are valued at break-up value (without 
considering revaluation reserves, if any) which is ascertained from the company's 
latest Balance Sheet. In case the latest Balance Sheet is not available, the shares 
are valued at Re. 1/- per company; 

• In case of investment by the Bank in SRs issued against loans transferred by it is 
more !hall 10 percent of all SRs issued against the transferred asset, then the 
provision for depreciation in value is made at the higher of - provisioning rate 
required in terms of net asset value declared by the Reconstruction Company 
('RC')/ Securitization Company ('SC') or the provisioning rate as per the extant 
asset classification and provisioning norms as applicable to the underlying loans, 
assuming that the loan notionally continued in the books of the bank. 

• Non- Performing Investments ar_e identified and valued based on RBI guidelines. 

, c·,. 
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Interest on non-performing investments is recognised on cash basis. 

• Investment in subsidiary as per RBI guidelines are categorized as HTM and 
assessed for impairment to determine permanent diminution, if any 

f. The Bank follows 'Settlement Date' accounting for recording purchase and sale 
transactions in securities. The investments in equity shares are accounted for on 
settlement date. 

D) Repo and Reverse Repo transactions 

In accordance with the RBI guidelines repo and reverse repo transactions in government 
securities including those conducted under the Liquidity Adjustment Facility ('LAF') and 
Marginal Standby Facility ('MSF') with RBI are reflected as collateralized borrowing and 
lending transactions respectively. Borrowing cost on repo transactions is accounted for as 
interest expense and revenue on reverse repo is accounted for as interest income. 

E) Short Sales 

The Bank undertakes short sale transactions in Central Government dated securities in 
accordance with RBI guidelines. The short position is reflected as the amount received on 
sale and is classified under 'Other Liabilities'. The short position is marked to market and 
resultant mark-to-market gain/losses are accounted for as per the relevant RBI guidelines 
for valuation of investments. 

F) Transfer of securities between Categories 

Transfer of securities between categories is done at the lower of the acquisition cost/ book 
value/ market value on the date of the transfer and the depreciation, ifany, on such transfer 
is fully provided for in accordance with RBI guidelines. 

G) Disposal oflnvestments 

a. Investments classified as HFT and AFS - Profit or loss on sale/ redemption is included 
in the Profit and Loss account. 

b. Investments classified as HTM - Profit on sale of /redemption of investments is 
included in the Profit and Loss Account and is appropriated to capital Reserve after 
adjustments for tax and transfer to Statutory Reserve. Loss on sale/redemption is 
charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

H) Investment Fluctuation Reserve ('!FR'): 

Investment Fluctuation reserve is accounted in line with the RBI guidelines issued from 
time to time. 

3. Advances 

A) Valuation/ Measurement 

a) Advances are classified into performing assets (Standard) and non-performing assets 
('NPAs') as per the RBI guidelines and are stated net of specific provisions made 
towards NPAs, sacrifice provisions on restructured advances, claims received from 
guarantee corporations and unrealised interest on NPAs. Interest on Non- Performing 
advances is not recognised in profit and loss account and transferred to an unrealised 
interest account until receipt. Further, NP As are classified into sub-standard, doubtful 
and loss assets based on the criteria stipulated by the RBI. Provisions for NPAs are 
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made as per the guidelines and circulars of the RBI on matters relating to prudential 
norms. 

b) Non-performing advances are ~Vritten-off in accordance with the Bank's policies. 
Amounts recovered against debts written off are recognised in the profit and loss 
account and included under "Other Income". The recovery of unrealised interest is 
accounted under "Interest on Loans & Advances" in the profit and loss account. 

c) For restructured/rescheduled assets, provision is made in accordance with the guidelines 
issued by the RBI, which requires the diminution in the fair value of the assets to be 
provided at the time of restructuring. In respect of loans and advances accounts 
subjected to restructuring, the account is upgraded to standard only after the specified 
period i.e. a period of one year after the date when first payment of interest or of 
principal, whichever is later, falls due, subject to satisfactory performance of the 
account during the period. 

Additional provision for restructured accounts as per the relevant restructuring scheme 
announced by RBI for Micro, Small and Medium (MSME) sector, accounts affected by 
natural calamities and as per COVID 19 resolution framework are made as per extant 
RBI guidelines. 

d) For entities with Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure (UFCE), provision is made in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, which requires to ascertain the amount 
of UFCE, estimate the extent of likely loss and estimate the riskiness of unhedged 
position. The Provision is classified under Schedule 5 - Other Liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet. • 

e) The Bank maintains general provision for standard assets including credit exposures 
computed as per the current m.arked-to-market values of foreign exchange derivative 
contracts, in accordance with the guidelines and at levels stipulated by RBI from time 
to time. The Provision is classified under Schedule 5 - Other Liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet. 

f) The bank transfers advances through inter-bank participation with and without risk. In 
accordance with the RBI guidelines, in the case of participation with risk, the aggregate 
amount of the participation issued by the Bank is reduced from advances and where 
bank is participating; the aggregate an10unt of participation is classified under advances. 
In the case of participation without risk, the aggregate amount of participation issued 
by the Bank is classified under bon-owings and where the bank is participating, the 
aggregate amount of participation is shown as due from banks under advances. 

g) Loss on sale of assets to Asset Reconstruction Companies 

If the sale of non- performing advances is at a price below the net book value, the 
shortfall is charged to the Profit and Loss Account, spread over a period as specified in 
RBI guidelines. If the sale is for a value higher than the net book value, the excess 
provision is credited to the Profit and Loss Account in the year the amounts are 
received. 

h) The Bank makes additional prov1S1ons as per RBI's guidelines on 'Prudential 
Framework on Resolution of Stressed Assets' dated June 7, 20 I 9 on accounts in default 
and with aggregate exposure above the threshold limits as laid down in the said 
framework where the resolution plan is not implemented within the specified timeline. 

i) Loans reported as fraud are classified as loss assets and provided as per RBI guidelines. 
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j) In the event of substantial erosion in value of loan and remote possibility of collection, 
non-performing loans with adequate provisions are evaluated for technical / prudential 
write off based on Bank's policy and the RBI guidelines. Such write off does not have an 
impact on the Bank's legal claim against the borrower. The Bank may also write off non­
performing loans on one time settlement ('OTS ') with the borrower or otherwise. 

4. Country risk 

In addition to the provisions required to be held according to the asset classification status, 
provisions are held for individual country exposure (other than for home country). The 
countries are categorised into seven risk categories namely insignificant, low, moderate, high, 
very high, restricted and off-credit as per Export Credit Guarantee Corporation oflndia Limited 
("ECGC") guidelines and provision is made on exposures exceeding 180 days on a graded scale 
ranging from 0.25% to 100%. For exposures with contractual maturity of less than 180 days, 
25% of the normal provision requirement is held. If the country exposure (net) of the Bank in 
respect of each country does not exceed I% of the total funded assets, no provision is 
maintained on such country exposure. This provision if any, is classified under Schedule 5 -
Other Liabilities in the Balance Sheet. 

5. Fixed Assets (Property Plant & Equipment and Intangibles) and depreciation / 
amortization 

a) The Property Plant & Equipment and Intangibles (other than office premise, which are 
revalued) are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure 

;. incurred on asset put to use is capitalised only when it increases the future benefit / 
functioning capability from/of such assets. Gain or losses arising from the retirement or 
disposal of a Property Plant and Equipment / Intangible asset are determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and 
recognised as income or expense in the Profit and Loss Account. Profit on sale of premises 
after adjustments for tax and transfer to Statutory, if any, is transferred to Capital Reserve 
as per the RBI guidelines. 

b) Portfolio of immovable properties is revalued periodically by independent valuers to reflect 
current market valuation. All land and building owned by the bank and used as branches 
or offices or office quarters are grouped under "Office Premises" in the Property Plant & 
Equipment. Appreciation, if any, on revaluation is credited to Revaluation Reserve under 
Capital Reserve. Additional depreciation on revalued asset is charged to Profit and Loss 
Account and appropriated from Revaluation Reserve to Revenue and other Reserves. 

c) Depreciation/ Amortisation: Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a straight-line 
method over the estimated useful life of the fixed assets at the rates and in the manner 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except for Vehicles which are 
depreciated over five years, based on technical estimates. The management believes that 
depreciation rates currently used, fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual 
values of fixed assets, though these rates in certain cases are different from lives prescribed 
under Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013. Computer software is amortised over its useful 
life, not more than 5 years. 
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6. Impairment of Assets 

The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment, if any 
indication of impairment exists. If the canying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount. The impairment loss 
is recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account, unless the asset is carried at revalued 
amount, in which case any impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a reduction in 
revaluation to the extent a revaluation reserve is available for that asset. 

When there is indication that ah impairment loss recognised for an asset ( other than a revalued 
asset) in earlier accounting periods no. lenger exists or may have decreased, such reversal of 
impairment loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account, to the extent the amount was 
previously charged to the Profit and Loss Account. In case of revalued assets such reversal is 
not recognised. 

7. Non-Banking Assets 

Non-banking assets (NBAs) acquired in satisfaction of claims is carried at lower of net book 
value and net realisable value. Specific provision is made on specific Non-banking assets 
acquired on debt asset swap arrangements as specified by RBI. 

8. Transactions involving foreign exchange 

a) Foreign currency income and expenditure items are translated at the exchange rates prevailing 
on the date of the transaction. Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities outstanding at 
the Balance Sheet date are revalued at rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers 
Association of India [FEDAI] and resulting profits or losses are included in the Profit and 
Loss Account, as per the guidelines issued by RBI. 

b) Foreign exchange spot and forward Contracts outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date 
( except Forward Contracts taken to hedge FCNR Deposits/Overseas Borrowings) are 
revalued at the closing Spot and Forward Rates respectively as notified by FEDAI and at 
interpolated rates for contracts of interim maturities. For valuation of contracts having longer 
maturities, the forward points (for rates/tenures not published by FEDAI) are obtained from 
Reuters for valuation of the FX Deals. As directed by FEDAI to consider profit or loss on 
present value basis, the forward profit or loss on the deals are discounted till the valuation 
date using the discounting yields. The resulting profit or loss on valuation is recognised in 
the Profit and Loss Account in accordance with RBI/FEDAI Guidelines. 

c) Forward Contracts taken to hedge FCNR Deposits/Overseas Borrowings are translated at the 
prevailing spot rate at the time of swap. The Premium/ Discount on the swap arising out of 
the difference in the exchange rate of the swap date and maturity date of the underlying 
forward exchange contract is amortised over the period of the swap and the same is 
recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 

d) Contingent liabilities on account of foreign exchange contracts, guarantees, letters of credit, 
acceptances and endorsements are repmted at closing rates of exchange notified by FEDAI 
as at the Balance Sheet date. 
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The Bank recognizes all derivative contracts at fair value, on the date on which the derivative 
contracts are entered into and are remeasured at fair value as at the Balance sheet or reporting 
dates. Derivatives are classified as assets when the fair value is positive (Positive marked-to­
market) or as liabilities when the fair value is negative (negative marked-to-market). Changes 
in the fair value of derivatives other than those designated as hedges are recognised in the 
Profit and Loss Account. 

10. Employee benefits 

a) Provident Fund: 

The contribution made by the Bank to "The South Indian Bank Ltd Employees Provident 
Fund", administered by the trustees is charged to Profit and Loss account. The fund is a 
defined contribution fund and the Bank has no further liability beyond the contribution 
made to the fund. 

b) Pension Fund: 

The contribution towards "The South Indian Bank Ltd Employees' Pension Fund Trust", 
managed by trustees, is determined on actuarial basis on projected unit credit method as 
on the Balance Sheet date and is recognised in the profit and loss account. The actuarial 
gain or loss arising during the year is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 

Employees who had joined the services of the Bank with effect from April I, 2010 are 
covered under Defined Contributory Pension Scheme (DCPS). In respect of such 
employees the bank contributes specified percentage of the Basic Pay plus Dearness 
Allowance and the expenditure thereof is charged to Profit and Loss account and the 

•Bank has no further liability beyond the contribution to the fund on this account. 

c) Gratuity: 

. •· The bank makes contribution to "The South Indian Bank Ltd Employees' Gratuity Trust" 
. , administered and managed by the trustees. The present value of the bank's obligation 
.;., towards the same is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method as 

at the balance sheet date. The actuarial gain or loss arising during the year is recognised 
in the Profit and Loss Account. 

d) Compensated absence on Privilege/ Sick/ Casual Leave and Leave Travel Concession 
(LTC): 

The employees of the Bank are entitled to compensated absence on account of privilege 
/ sick I casual leave as per the leave rules. The bank measures the long term expected cost 
of compensated absence as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the 
balance sheet date based on actuarial valuation and such costs are recognised in the profit 
and loss account. The actuarial gain or loss arising during the year is recognised in the 
Profit and Loss Account. 
The employees are also eligible for LTC as per the rules. The estimated cost of unused 
entitlement as on the Balance Sheet date based on actuarial valuation is provided for. 

e) Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS): 

The SIB ESOS 2008 Employee Stock Option Scheme ('the Scheme') provides for grant 
of stock options on equity shares of the Bank to employees and Managing Director of the 
Bank. The Scheme is in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 
Based Employee Benefits and sweat equity) Regulations, 2021. The Bank followed 
intrinsic value method to account for its stock-based employee compensation plans as 
per the Guidelines for all the options granted till the accounting period ending 31 March, 
2021. 
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RBI issued a clarificaiion on Guidelines on Compensation of Whole Time 
Directors/Chief Executive Officers /Material Risk Takers and Control Function Staff on 
30 August, 2021, advising banks that the share-linked instruments are required to be fair 
valued on.the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model. Accordingly, the Bank has 
changed its accounting policy from the intrinsic value method to the fair value method 
for all share-linked instruments granted after 31 March, 2021 and consequently 
recognized the fair value of options computed using the Black-Scholes model, without 
reducing estimated forfeitures, as compensation expense over the vesting period. Options 
are granted at an exercise price, which is equal to the fair market price of the underlying 
equity shares at the date of the grant or at such a discount as may be approved by 
NRC/Board from time to time. The fair market price being the closing price of stock 
exchange which recorded the highest trading volumes in equity shares of the Bank and 
trading day immediately preceding the date on which the grant of options was approved 
and recommended to Board by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board. 

f) Other Employee Benefits: 

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for the services rendered by employee is recognised during the period when 
the employee renders the service. These benefits inc.Jude performance incentives. 

g) New Pension Scheme ('NPS ') 

In respect of employees who are covered under NPS, the Bank contributes ce1iain 
percentage of the sum of basic salary and dearness allowance of employees to the 

• aforesaid scheme, a defined contribution plan, which is managed and administered by 
pension fund management companies and regulated by PFRDA. NPS contributions are 
recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in the period in which they accrue. The Bank 
has no liability other than its contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense 
in the year incurred. 

11. Segment Reporting 

The disclosure relating to segment information is in accordance with the guidelines issued by 
RBI. Segmental expenses are allocated as per board approved policy. 

12. Debit Card R,eward Points 

TI1e Bank runs a loyalty program which seeks to recognise and reward customers based on 
their relationship with the Bank. Under the program, eligible customers are granted loyalty 
points redeemable in future, subject to certain conditions. The Bank estimates the probable 
redemption of such loyalty/reward points using an actuarial method at the Balance Sheet date 
by employing independent actuary. Provision for said reward points is then made based on 
the actuarial valuation report as furnished by the said independent Actuary 

13. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

The Bank reports Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share in accordance with Accounting 
Standard 20, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021. Basic BPS has been computed by dividing 

.,, ...... _ Net Profit for the year by the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding for the 
,-f\i:ai:i;; ;';~year. 
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Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other 
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. A diluted earnings 
per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive 
potential equity shares outstanding at the year end. Potential equity shares which are anti­
dilutive in nature are ignored. 

14. Taxes on income 

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax charge. The current 
tax expense and deferred tax expense is determined in accordance with the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, the rules framed there under and considering the material principles 
set out in Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and as per Accounting Standard 22 
- "Accounting for Taxes on lncome" respectively. 

CuITent tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in 
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, 
Accounting Standard 22 - "Accounting for Taxes on Income" and other applicable tax laws. 

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable 
income and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in 
one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws 
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised 
for all timing differences. DefetTed tax assets are recognised for timing differences of items 
other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the extent that reasonable 
certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these can 
be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and cany forward of losses and 
items relating to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be sufficient future taxable income 
available to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate 
to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Bank has a legally 
enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date 
for their realisability. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future 
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an 
asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. 
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable 
that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Bank. 

15. Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

In accordance with Accounting Standard 29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Bank 
recognises provisions when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event and, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be 
made. 

Provisions are determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at 
the balance sheet date, supplemented by experience of similar transactions. These are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. 
In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the contingency is 
reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, a disclosure is 

""'"'':'~'",~· made in the Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements. 
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16. Operating Lease 

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership 
over the lease term are classified as operating lease. Lease payments for assets taken on 
operating lease are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account as per the lease 
terms. 

17. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash. equivalents include cash in hand, balances with Reserve Bank of India and 
balances with other banks/institutions and Money at Call and Short Notice (including the effect 
of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents in foreign currency). 

18. Share issue expenses 

Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Premium Account as permitted by Section 
52 of the Companies Act, 2013 and ih line with the respective RBI guidelines issued from time 
to time. 

19. Corporate Social Responsibility 

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility is recognized in accordance with 
Companies Act 2013 

20. Accounting of Priority Sector Lending Certificate (PSLC) 

The Bank vide RBI circular Fl::JD.CO.Plan.BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated April 7, 2016 trades 
in priority sector portfolio by selling or buying PSLC, without transfer of risks or loan assets 
in these transactions. The fee paid for purchase of the PSLC is treated as an 'Expense' and the 
fee received from the sale of PSLCs is treated as 'Other Income'. 

21. Accounting for Dividend 

In terms ofrevised Accounting Standard (AS) 4 "Contingencies and Events occurring after the 
Balance sheet date" as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs through amendments to 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 dated March 30, 2016, Proposed 
Dividend or Dividend declared after balance sheet date are not shown as liability in current 
year balance sheet. The effect of the proposed dividend shall be reckoned in determining capital 
funds in the computation of capital adequacy ratios in Financial Year for which the dividend is 
declared. In case of interim dividend, the same shall be reckoned in the same quarter. 

22. Cash Flows 

Cash flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method. 



i ) 

ii) 

iii) 

iv) 

v) 
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SCHEDULE - 18: NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF THE 
REFORMATTED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

A: Disclosures as per RBl's Master Directions on Disclosure in Reformatted Standalone 
Financial Statements 
Amounts in Notes forming part of the reformatted standalone financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2023 are denominated in Rupees Crore (unless specified otherwise) to conform 
to extant RBI guidelines. 

1. Regulatory Capital 
a) Composition of regulatory Capital 

The Bank is subject to the capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by RBI, which are based on the 
framework of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. As per Basel III and RBI 
guidelines, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio 
(CRAR) of 9% { 11.5% including Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB)}, with minimum Common 
Equity Tier I (CETI) of 5.5% (8% including CCB). These guidelines on Basel III have been 
implemented completely. The minimum CRAR required to be maintained by the Bank as on 
31st March 2023 is 11.50 %. The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank calculated as per Basel III 
Caoital Regulations is furnished below· [~ in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Common Equity Tier I Capital(CET 1)/Paid up share capital 
and reserves (net of deductions, ifany) 6,315.63 5,550.94 

Additional Tier I capital/Other Tier I capital 500.00 500.00 
Tier I Capital (i+ii) 6,815.63 6,050.94 

Tier 2 Capital 1,161.37 1,206.80 
Total Capital (Tier I + Tier 2) 7,977.00 7,257.74 
Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 46,224.83 45,743.59 

Capital Adequacy Ratios under Basel III 

vii) 
CET I Ratio (CET I as a percentage ofRWAs)/Paid-up share 13.66% 12.13% 
capital and reserves as percentage ofRWAs 

viii) Tier I Ratio (Tier I capital as a percentage ofRWAs) 14.74% 13.22% 
ix) Tier 2 Ratio (Tier 2 capital as a percentage ofRWAs) 2.51% 2.64% 

x) 
Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR)(Total Capital 17.25% 15.86% 
as a percentage of R W As) 

xi) Leverage Ratio 6.05% 5.83% 
xii) Percentage of the shareholding of Governnient of India - -
xiii) Amount of paid up Equity Capital raised (Including share - -

premium) through: Preferential Issue 

xiv) Amount of Non Equity Tier I capital raised during the year - -
xv) Amount of Tier 2 capital raised; - -

In accordance with RBI Guidelines, banks are required to make Pillar 3 disclosures under Basel 
III Capital Regulations. The Bank has made these disclosures which are available on its website 
at the following link: 
http://www.southindianbank.com/content/viewContentL vi 1.aspx?linkidL vl2=854&LinkidL v13= 

,,-,a:c·- 880&linkld-880 
;1n~ 

,)i/-; CFM '¾\ /•,cc.-ca,•/ 
i r,· ! ,."'/'i\~)JOCt~f:.' •· 

':,;?'~Th1\,'JJ •• ·t·.> ,,- ·:e, 

'¼:;~=-:;;•~-,, 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part of Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Pillar 3 disclosures have not been subjected to audit. 

b) Draw Down from Reserves: The Bank has not undertaken any drawdown from reserves 
during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

c) Credit to Reserve : Nil (Previous year ;( N:I ) 

d) Additional Tier I Bonds: 
Additional Tier I Bonds outstanding and included under borrowings is as follows: [:t.in Crore] 

Borrowings in India March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
From Banks 72.87 159.52 
From Others 427.13 340.48 
Total 500.00 500.00 

Tier II Bonds: 
Subordinated Tier II Bonds outstanding and included under borrowings is as follows: 

[,.in Crore] 

Borrowings in India March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
From Banks 47.36 48.36 
From Others 992.64 991.64 
Total 1,040.00 1,040.00 

Total Subordinated debt of ;(860 Crore (Previous Year: ,920.00 Crore) is reckoned for Tier II 
capital as per RBI guidelines. 

Particulars of Tier I and Tier II bonds [<.in Crore] 
Name of instrument Amount Date of Issue ROI Date of Maturity 
Tier II Bonds 300 30.09.2015 10.25% 31.10.2025 
Tier II Bonds 490 28.11.2017 9.50% 28.05.2028 
Tier!! Bonds 250 26.03.2019 11.75% 26.06.2029 
Tier I Bonds 500 24.01.2020 13.75% Perpetual 

e) Capital Infusion: 
During the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 the Bank has not allotted any equity 
shares. 

Details of movement in the paid-up equity share capital of the Bank are given below: 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Opening Balance 

Additions pursuant to Stock Options 
exercised/preferential issue 

Closing balance 

Amount 
No of shares 

(Rs. In Cr)· 

209,27,41,018 209.27 

209,27,41,018 209.27 

No of shares 
(Rs. In Cr) 

Amount 

209,27,41,018 209.27 

209,27,41,018 209.27 
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f) Movement of Reserves clubbed under Capital Reserve, Revenue & Other Reserves 
i) Movement of Capital Reserve [~. in Crore J 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Capital Reserve 
Opening Balance 596.94 520.71 
Additions during the year 4.57 76.23 

Closing Balance (A) 601.51 596.94 

' 
. .. . 

Asset Revaluation Reserve 
Opening Balance 312.89 316.99 
Addition due to Revaluation of Premises (net) 45.06 
Deduction from Revaluation Reserve to the extent 

(5.65) (4.10) 
of depreciation on revalued amount 

Closing Balance (B) 352.30 . 312.89 

Total (A+ B) 953.81 909.83 

ii) Movement in Revenue and other Reserves [~. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Opening Balance 1,415.42 1,410.33 
Addition during the year by way of lapse of vested 

l.29 0.99 
option 
Addition due to transfer of depreciation on 

5.65 4.10 
revaluation 

Additions During the year - current year 
contribution 

130.00 0.00 

Closing Balance (A) 1,552.36 1,415.42 

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
Opening Balance 22.15 22.15 
Additions during the year 104.38 -
Closing Balance (B) 126.53 22.15 

Special Reserve 
Opening Balance 399.39 399.39 
Additions during the year 80.00 -
Closing Balance (C) 479.39 399.39 

Grand Total (A+ B + C) 2158.28 1836.96 
Note: As per RBI circular the above reserves are clubbed m the schedule 2 of Balance sheet 
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2. Asset Liability Management. 

a) Maturity Pattern of Certain items of assets and liabilities: 

il As at March 3 I, 2023: 
~:_i!!_ Q-~r~ 

Particulars Day I 2to7 8 to 14 IS to30 31 days Over2 Over3 Over6 Over I Over3 Overs Total 
days days days and up to months months months year and years and years 

2 months and up to and up to and up to up to3 up toS 
3 mouths 6 months I year years vears 

Deposits 634.56 786.91 711.86 1,637.01 2,138.66 2,019.99 2,326.13 4,088.71 5,956.70 6,955.21 64,395.62 91,651.3: 

Advances 
1,141.45 1,618.80 2,460.74 2,867.W 5,479.78 4,745.83 9,915.32 5,968.80 7,047.25 3,809.35 24,749.16 69,804.44 

Investments 5,535.36 544.45 39.62 860.75 585.52 363.85 877.88 978.61 1,582.02 1,269.85 12,003.89 24,641.8( 

Borrowings 
179.32 3,181.48 19.58 - 19.58 82.08 399.75 271.01 2,101.0) 740.00 6,993.8: -

Foreign Currency-Assets 442.07 1,276.36 31.37 525.60 I, 130.4i 272.71 142.00 277.80 2.83 - - 4,101.2( 

~oreign Currency-Liabilities 128.02 3.51 8.73 18.45 I 10.69 84.4( 222.65 483.23 960.41 236.H · 2,2S6.31 

Classification of assets and liabilities under different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as used by the Bank for compiling the 
returns submitted to the RBI, which has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Advances as on March 31,2023 include Rs 1300 Crore of Inter Bank Participation Certificate (IBPC), out of which Rs 550 Crore is bucketed in 3 I days and 
up to 2 months bucket and Rs 750 Crore is bucketed in over 3 months and up to 6 months bucket. 

Off balance sheet items are not considered in maturity pattern of assets and I iabilities 
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ill As at March 31, 2022: (~. in Crore j 

Particulars Day I 2-7 days 8-14 15-30 31 days Dver2 Over3 Over6 Over I Over 3 year Over5 Total 
days days and up to2 months months months year and and up to 5 years 

months and upto3 and upto6 and upto I upto3 years 
months months years years 

Deposits 
549.85 788.01 621.24 1,570.5( 3,410.6- 1,965.52 3,623.26 3,472.50 5,004.88 6,449.91 61,685.71 89,142.11 

Advances 
1,413.20 642.08 593.34 2,590.33 2,970.91 5,006.89 9,297.72 6,263.01 7,633.83 3,732.93 19,849.15 59,993.39 

Investments 
3,322.92 167.02 168.81 495.86 418.49 868.98 913.76 1,053.88 1,109.00 1,588.09 11,338.20 21,445.01 

Borrowings 
212.80 999.60 28.06 - 28.05 28.05 112.71 124.10 664.12 357.00 740.00 3,294.49 

Foreign Currency-Assets 
582.45 526.14 57.55 2,666.38 741.03 377.73 480.20 58.01 5.20 2.39 - 5,497.08 

Foreign Currency-Liabilities 
l 12.09 13.14 23.35 31.04 ll6.48 100.76 140.84 381.26 606.62 331.46 - 1,857.04 

Classification of assets and liabilities under different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as used by the Bank for compiling the 
returns submitted to the RBI, which has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Advances as on March 31,2022 include Rs 1300 Crore oflnter Bank Participation Certificate (!BPC), out of which Rs.700 Crore is bucketed in 15-30 days 
and Rs.600 Crore is bucketed in over 3 months and up to 6 months bucket. 

Off balance sheet items are not considered in maturity pattern of assets and liabilities 
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b) Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) 

i) Qualitative Disclosure around LCR 
The Bank measures and monitors the LCR in line with the Reserve Bank of India's circular 
dated June 9, 2014 on "Basel III Framework on Liquidity Standards - Liquidity Coverage Ratio 
(LCR), Liquidity Risk Monitoring Tools and LCR Disclosure Standards". The LCR guidelines 
aim to ensure that a bank maintains an adequate level of unencumbered High Quality Liquid 
Assets (HQLAs) that can be converted into cash to meet its liquidity needs for a 30 calendar day 
time horizon under a significantly severe liquidity stress scenario. At a minimum, the stock of 
liquid assets should enable the bank to survive until day 30 of the stress scenario, by which time 
it is assumed that appropriate corrective actions can be taken. Banks are required to maintain 
High Quality Liquid Assets of a minimum of JOO% of its Net Cash Outflows from January 01, 
2019. The daily average LCR of the bank for the quarter ended March 2023 is 199.46%. 

The Bank has been maintaining HQLA primarily in the form of SLR investments over and 
above mandatory requirement, regulatory dispensation allowed up to 2% of NDTL in the fonn 
of borrowing limit available through Marginal Standing Facility (MSF) and 5% of NDTL as 
Facility to Avail Liquidity for Liquidity Coverage Ratio (FALLCR). From February 2016 
onwards, RBI has allowed Banks to reckon an additional 3% of NDTL as FALLCR. This has 
been further increased by 1% from July 2016, 2% from June 2018 and another 2% from October 
2018, onwards. Further, towards hannonisation of the effective liquidity requirements of banks 
with the LCR, RBI has permitted banks to reckon an additional 2% of Government securities 
within the mandatory SLR requirement as F ALLCR in a phased manner from April 04, 2019.As 
on March 31, 2023, FALLCR stands at 16.00%. 

Bank has a well-diversified funding portfolio and has a lower dependence on wholesale funds. 
Retail deposits which are considered as stable deposits from a liquidity perspective fonns the 
major funding source of the Bank. The Bank intends to fund the short tenn cash outflows from 
extremely liquid Government securities and funding for estimated cash outflows considered in 
LCR computation substantially flows from this source. The Bank is managing its liquidity from 
the centralized fund management cell attached to Treasury Department, Mumbai. 
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ii) Quantitative Disclosure around LCR 

(i) 

~i~~' .ff.Jr:.'',!." <l..7q. \ 
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Particulars 

Operational deposits (all 
I counterparties) 
Non-operational deposits (all 
counte arties) 
Unsecured debt 
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Quarter ended '' 
March 31, 2023 

I Total Total 
Unweighted Weighted 

Value(Averag Value(Aver 
e) age) 

I o.oo 1 o.oo I 
7,701.38 6,653.78 

4.06 4.06 

1 · ' · Quarter ended 
December 31, 2022 

Total 
Unweight Total 

ed Weighted 

Value(Av Value(Av 
erage) erage) 

o.oo I o.oo I 
6,158.48 4,863.78 

42.47 42.47 

[~. in Crore] 
Quarter ended Quarter ended 

Sentember 30, 2022 June 30, 2022 
Total 

Total Unweig 
Unweigh Total 

hted Total Weighted 
ted Weighted 

Value( Value(Average) 
Value(A Value(Av 

Averag erage) 
A' 

verage) 

o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I 0.00 

3,043.95 3,000.55 3,107.50 3,061.41 
0.00 0.00 10.14 10.14 
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(i) 

9 

10 

II 

12 

Outflows related to derivative 
exposures and other collateral 
requirements 
Outflows related to loss of funding 
on debt J!YOducts 
Credit and /iquidityfacilities 

Secured lending ( e.g. reverse 
I reeos) 

Inflows from fully performing 
exoosures 

Other cash inflows 

TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 

1.16 

I o.oo I 

7,531.69 

1,624.92 

9,156.61 

Note: The LCRfor each quarter is calculated taking daily average. 
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1.16 3.16 

o.oo I o.oo I 

3,765.84 6,594.01 

1,526.78 2,132.37 

5,292.63 8,726.38 

0.00 0.00 
3.16 0.03 0.03 

0.00 

o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I 0.00 

3,297.00 5,909.92 2,954.96 5,990.11 2,995.06 

1,984.54 2,080.71 2,015.86 2,528.17 2,449.33 

5,281.54 7,990.63 4,970.82 8,518.28 5,444.39 

------
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Particulars 

Operational deposits (all 
(i) I counterparties) 

Non-operational deposits (all 
(ii) I counterparties) 

~--¾I 
~~◊~·-

/Ip ~ ~ ""'='"' • 
ft~ Cfl\i, '} 
-)iQ.} 1 
I"' cc-,, i;- ~ ;. 

\; * * ;J --~,y .,l- // 
·O_ n-1v21s-;;,5..­

"-"-'" • 'l 
~=~ 

Unsecured debt 

,·_·.--,, 

-·· 

I 

I 

Quarter ended • ---

l 
-·• · Quarter ended Quarter ended 

March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Seotember 30, 2021 

Total Total 
Total Total 

Unweight Total Unweig Total 
Unweighted Weighted 

ed Weighted hted Weighted 
Value(Averag Value(Aver 

Value(Av Value(Av Value( Value(Aver 
e) age) 

erage) erage) Averag age) 
~' 

o.oo I o.oo I o.oo 1 o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I 

2,784.73 2,728.79 3,394.71 3,323.61 I 3,103.85 I 3,os1.26 I 

0.71 0.71 7.04 7.04 I 0.28 I 0.28 I 

-----.,. ----- ·-

[<. in Crore] 
Quarter ended 
June 30, 2021 

Total 
Unweigh Total 

ted Weighted 

Value(A Value(Av 

verage) erage) 

o.oo I 0.00 

2,940.19 I 2,885.11 

t.94 I 1.94 
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Out.flows related to derivative 
exposures and other collateral 

(i) I req_uirements 
Out.flows related to loss of 

(ii) I funding on debt products 

Secured lending ( e.g. reverse 
9 I repos) 

Inflows from fully performing 
10 exposures 

11 Other cash inflows 

12 TOT AL CASH INFLOWS 

·~ 
/"-/~ \\ "' &~ 
;teo"' Cff' ~'-" .,~ ~ ill =r:-. 
~l..r=; .-> a:::- ;:::.:; 
\_\W( ,.\, /j 
'k):o- ,/,# 
~~~? 

I 
0.23 1 0.23 1 1.25 I 

I o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I 

I o.oo 1 o.oo I o.oo I 

4,304.87 2,1s2.43 I 4,ss6.56 I 

1,826.47 1,724.141 2,93s.4o 1 

6,131.34 3,876.571 7,494.96 [ 

1.25 I o.oo I o.oo I 5.86 I 5.86 

o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I 0.00 

o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I o.oo I 0.00 

2,218.28 I 4,1sus I 2,31s.69 I 4,sss.1s I 2,279.07 

2,s21.1s I 3,363.19 I 3,271.05 2,184.49 I 2,752.08 

5,105.461 8,114.571 5,646.74 7,342.64 I 5,031.15 
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c) Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) 

i) Qualitative Disclosure 

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) had introduced the Net Stable Funding 
Ratio (NSFR) in order to ensure that banks maintain a stable funding profile in relation to the 
composition of their assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet activities. NSFR ensures resilience 
over a longer-term time horizon by requiring banks to fund their activities with more stable 
sources of funding. 

NSFR is defined as the amount of available stable funding relative to the amount of required 
stable funding. "Available stable funding" is defined as the portion of capital and liabilities 
expected to be reliable over the time horizon considered by the NSFR, which extends to one 
year. The amount of stable funding required ("Required stable funding") of the Bank is a 
function of the liquidity characteristics and residual maturities of the various assets as well as the 
off-balance sheet (OBS) exposures of the Bank. As per the RBI Guideline, Bank is required to 
maintain a minimum NSFR of 100% on an ongoing basis effective from October 1, 2021. 

The NSFR of the Bank as on 31st March 2023 is at 158.92% as against the regulatory minimum 
of I 00% and the table given below sets out the details of NSFR of the Bank as on the aforesaid 
date. 

ii) NSFR Quantitative Disclosure Template 
NSFR Disclosure Tern late 

Unweighted value by residual maturity 

No < 6 6 months to ,:: lyr 
maturity months < lyr 
* 

[t. in Crore] 

Weighted 
value 
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/}; -~ 

liabilities 
12 All other liabilities 

and equity not 
included in the 
above t 

17 Petforming loans to 
financial institutions 
secured by Level I 
HQLA 

18 Performing loans to 
financial institutions 
secured by non-
Level I HQLA and 
unsecured 
performing loans to 
financial institutions 

19 Petforming loans to 
non-financial 
corporate clients, 
loans to retail and 
small business 
customers, and loans 
to sovereigns, central 
banks, and PSEs, of 
which: 

20 With a risk weight of 
less than or equal to 
35% under the Basel 
II Standardised 
Approach for credit 
risk 

21 Performing 
residential 
mortgages, of which: . 

22 With a risk weight of 
less than or equal to 
3 5% under the Basel 
II Standardised 
A roach for credit 

f\\J\ •.,::- \\ 

~-··1· P· 
1:-S: ' ,, I, 

0 
. "~;,'l, 

. Tt\'\\~✓-
~.:;-;;;,;";.,.--" 

25,977.01 

91,010.20 

1313.24 187.23 5,423.54 5714.14 

29,140.68 12,953. I 0 15,813.77 33,742.08 

3,732.58 2,426.18 

0.93 3.42 3,547.88 2,418.52 

2,996.78 1,947.91 
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risk 

23 Securities that are 
not in default and do 
not qualify as 
HQLA, including 
exchange-traded 
equities - 833.94 426.83 1,044.06 1,517.84 

24 Other assets: (sum of 
rows 25 to 29) 997.11 510.14 657.16 8,315.74 10,418.55 

25 Physical traded - - - - -
commodities, 
including gold 

26 Assets posted as 
initial margin for 
derivative contracts 
and contributions to 
default funds of 
CCPs - - - 410.62 349.03 

27 NSFR derivative 
assets - - - 11.29 11.29 

28 NSFR derivative 
liabilities before 
deduction of 
variation margin 
posted - - - 6.90 6.90 

29 All other assets not 
included in the 
above categories 997.11 510.14 657.16 7,886.92 10,051.33 

30 Off-balance sheet 
items - - - 27,270.77 1,273.21 

31 Total RSF 
(14+15+16+24+30) - - - - 57,269.14 

32 Net Stable Funding 
Ratio(%) - - - - 158.92% 

* Items to be reported in the 'no maturity' time bucket does not have a stated maturity. These may include, but are not 
limited to, items such as capital with perpetual maturity, non-maturity deposits, short positions, open maturity 
positions, non-HQLA equities, and physical traded commodities. 

-;:f!~).\, 
CFM \;,. 

['" 

;~; 
f: 

{"· 
fJ;;;{~/-.~', 
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3. Investments 

a) Composition of lnY!'St[!lenLPoctfoliQ 
j!.in Crore] 

As at 31.03.2023 

Investments in India Investments outside India 

Government 
Total 

Other Subsidiaries Total securities Subsidiaries Total 
Government 

Approved Shares 
Debentures and/or joint Others investments (including and/or joint Others 

Investments Investments 
Securities 

Securities 
and Bonds 

ventures in India local ventures 
outside 

authorities) 
India 

Held to 
Maturitv 
Gross 19,687.13 - - - 0.50 - 19,687.63 - - - - 19687.63 
Less: - - - - - - - - - - - -
Provision 
for non-
performing 
investments 
(NPI) 

Net 19,687.13 - - - 0.50 - 19,687.63 - - - - 19687.63 
Available 
for Sale 

Gross 2,436.59 - 304.95 
1,334.08 - 1,995.77 6,071.39 - - 0.20 0.20 6071.59 

Less: 
Provision 
for - - 88.69 36.13 - 1,247.56 1,372.37 - - - - 1372.37 
depreciation 
and NP! 

Net 2436.59 - 216.26 1297.95 - 748.21 4669.02 - - 0.20 0.20 4669.22 
.-=, ,Held for 

~\ndi ~dine ~ 
--

~
~~ CFM -~- . • -::. ~<;,\\• /:!lltf 4 
~ f ~ ~ ~ 
';~1/ It, ·:c> 5 ,-' § Er~ ;fiam )~ 

,,::J, .. ':d. Kochi-18 f;; 
* * CJ; ~ 

l '<.;.,,~c1c; 0,...,, - ~'<>~ 
0red Acco\\~ 

l ----~~- -~•-.,.rn,-
-,. 
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Gross 252.89 -
Less: 
Provision 
for - -
depreciation 
and NP! 

Net 252.89 -
Total 

22,376.61 
Investments -
Less: 
Provision 
for non- - -
performing 
investments 
Less: 
Provision 
for - -
depreciation 
and NP! 

Net 22,376.61 

As at 31.03.2022 

Held to 
Maturity 

Investments in India 

Government 
Securities 

Other 
Approved 
Securities 

2.10 -

0.03 -

2.07 -
307.05 

1,334.08 

- -

88.72 
36.13 

218.33 1,297.95 

Debentures 
Shares I and Bonds 

-

-

-

-

-

0.50 

Subsidiaries 
and/or joint 
ventures 

- 254.99 

0.03 

- 254.96 

1,995.77 26,014.01 

- -

1,247.56 1,372.41 

748.21 24,641.61 

Total 
Others investments 

in India 

254.99 

- - - - 0.03 

- - - - 254.96 

- - 0.20 0.20 26014.21 

- - - - -

- - - - 1372.40 

- - 0.20 0.20 24641.81 

[~.in Crore] 

Investments outside India 

Government 
Total I Total securities Subsidiaries 

(including and/or joint Others Investments Investments 

local ventures outside 

authorities l India 

.. ''-'Gross I JJ;~jlf~S,J.. O. I 0 L 0 
,-,,\':/. inuia,,],_~----t-;"-'-i-7'~-?ft;-

<o<; c ~- ss: 

,, ,,, FM 1i··',---1trTL~~t-;-~~ri1f~~~~O_L ___ ~l_ __ ~L---~--====~====D==~===~~=::j~ 
~~'l~_ -<F)) ~~ '•C•. •••- • _, * 

0.5 

0 

0 

0 

19,365.45 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

19,365.45 

0 

' ~ ,~" 
Bd Acco~~ 

------~----- ---
----------w,.o ------------------
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Provision for 
non-
performing 
investments 
(NPD 
Net 19,364.95 - - - 0.5 - 19,365.45 

Available -
for Sale 
Gross 16.1 0 211.81 588.32 0 2219.69 3,035.92 

Less: 
Provision for 

0 0 160.28 40.72 0 887.25 1,088.25 
depreciation 
and NP! 

Net 16.1 0 51.53 547.59 0 1,332.45 1,947.67 

Held for 
Tradin!! 
Gross 84.48 0 3.03 25 0 19.93 132.44 

Less: 
Provision for 

0 0 0 0.75 0 0 0.75 
depreciation 
and NP! 

Net 84.48 0 3.03 24.25 0 19.93 131.69 

Total 
19,465.53 0 214.84 613.31 0.5 2,239.62 22,533.8 

Investments 
Less: 
Provision for 
non- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
performing 
investments 
Less: 
Provision for 

0 0 160.28 41.47 0 887.25 1089 
depreciation 
and NP! 

Net 19,465.53 - 54.56 571.85 0.50 1,352.37 21,444.81 

f:tfi~i 
;:__:,, i' f, _); _- ~i,' 

- - - - 19,365.45 

0 0 0.2 0.2 . 3,036.12 

0 0 0 0 1,088.25 

0 0 0.2 0.2 1,947.87 

0 0 0 0 132.44 

- - - 0 0.75 

- - - - 131.69 

0 0 0.2 0.2 22,534.01 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 1,089.00 

- - 0.20 0.20 21,445.01 
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b) Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve 

[~. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 

i) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on 
investments 
a) Opening balance 899.03 634.82 

b) Add: Provisions made during the year 445.60 267.33 

c) Less: Write off/ write back of excess provisions during 24.65 3.12 
the year 

d) Closing balance 1,319.98 899.03 

ii) Movement of Investment Fluctuation Reserve 

a) Opening balance 22.15 22.15 

b) Add: Amount transferred during the year 104.38 0.00 

c) Less: Drawdown 0.00 0.00 

d) Closing balance 126.53 22.15 

iii) Closing balance in !FR as a percentage of closing 2.55% 1.06% 

balance ofinvestments' in AFS and HFT/Current category 

' Carrying .value less net depreciat10n 

c) Sale and transfer to/from HTM category/Permanent Category 

During the year ended March 3 I, 2023, the aggregate book value of sales and transfer of securities 
to/from HTM category did not exceeded 5% of the book value of investments held in HTM category 
at the beginning of the year. 

In accordance of RBI guidelines, the 5% threshold limit referred to above is excluding the following: 
i) The one-time transfers of securities to/from HTM category with the approval of Board of Directors 

permitted to be undertaken by banks at the beginning of the accounting year. 

ii) Additional shifting of securities explicitly permitted by the Reserve Bank of India from time to 
time and direct sales from HTM for bringing down SLR holdings in HTM category consequent to 

a downward revision in SLR requirement by RBI. 

iii) Sales to Reserve Bank oflndia under pre-announced open market auctions. 

iv) Repurchase of Government Securities by Government oflndia from banks. 

v)Repurchase of State Development Loans by respective state governments under buyback/switch 
operations and 
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d) Disclosure in respect of Non-SLR investments: 

i) Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments as at March 31, 2023: (<. in Crore] 

Extent of Extent of 'Below Extent of Extent of 
No Issuer 

11 I [2] 

(i) PSUs 
(ii) Is 
(iii) Banks 
(iv) Private Corporate 

(v) Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures 

(vi) Others3 

(vii) 
Total Book Value of 
investments 

(viii) Less: Provision for NPI 

(ix) 
Less: Provision held towards 
depreciation 
Total 

Amount Private 
Placement 

[3] [4]1 

332.59 328.91 
955.6 812.40 
525.10 485.22 
395.60 325.90 

0.50 0.50 

1514.92 1514.92 

3724.31 

(52.43 

(1319.98 

Investment 
Grade' Securities 

[5]1,2 

7.1 

20.00 

'Unrated' 
Securities 

[6]1,2 

7. 19 

20.00 

'Unlisted' 
Securities 

[7] 1,2 

5.00 

1 Amounts reported under Colunms 4, 5,6 and 7 above are not mutually exclusive. 
2Excludes investments in equity shares, units of equity oriented mutual funds, Non SLR State 

Government securities, securities acquired by way of conversion of debt and security receipts 
in line with extant RBI guidelines. 

3Includes Non SLR State Government special bonds with Book Value t 86.71Crore 

(ii) Issuer composition of non-SLR investments as at March 31, 2022: [t. in Crore] 

Extent of Extent of 'Below Extent of Extent of 
No Issuer Amount Private Investment 'Unrated' 'Unlisted' 

Placement Grade' Securities Securities Securities 
[1] [2] [3] [4] 1 [5] 1,2 [6] I) [7] 1) 

(i) PSUs 40.34 35.34 
(ii) Fis 534.95 265.39 9.96 9.96 
(iii) Banks 502.94 500.91 
(iv) Private Corporate 384.80 383.76 20.00 20.00 5.00 

(v) 
Subsidiaries/ Joint 

0.50 0.50 
Ventures 

(vi) Others3 1,710.23 1,710.23 
Total Book Value of 

(vii) 
investments 

(viii) Less: Provision for NP! (189.97) 

(899.03) 
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!Total 1 2,os4.11 1 2,896.13 1 29.96 1 29.96 

1Amounts reported under Columns 4, 5,6 and 7 above are not mutually exclusive. 
2Excludes investments in equity shares, units of equity oriented mutual funds, non SLR State 

Government securities and securities acquired by way of conversion of debt in line with extant 
RBI guidelines. 

3Includes Non SLR State Government special bonds with Book Value no5.28 Crore 

Non-SLR investments as on 31.03.2023 [at. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
A Shares 218.53 54.76 

B Debentures & Bonds1 1384.66 677.14 

C Subsidiaries/ joint ventures 0.50 0.50 

D Others 748.21 1,352.37 

E Total 2351.90 2,084.77 

1 Including Non SLR State Government special bonds with Book Value { 86.71 Crore (Previous 
Year: a:'105.28Crore). 

(i) Non- Performing Non-SLR investments [{. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Opening Balance 218.35 267.74 

Additions during the year 1.66 -
Reductions during the year 167.58 49.39 
Closing balance 52.43 218.35 

Total provisions held 52.43 189.97 

e) Repo Transactions: 
Transacted during the Financial year 2022-23: [{. in Crore] 

Minimum Maximum Daily Average 
outstanding outstanding outstanding Ason 
during the during the during the March 31, 

Particulars [Book value] year year year 2023 
A) Securities sold under RBI 
Repos 
i) Government Securities 100.00 900.00 30.63 275.00 

ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
Securities purchased under 
RBI Reverse Repos 
i) Government Securities 1800.00 3600.00 224.55 -
ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
B) Securities sold under 
Market Repos 
i) Government Securities 1.02 762.02 56.12 307.92 

,ii) Corporate Debt Securities . - - - ---· .. ,:,, 

d0:f:[siE~,, .. .'l-Eli,.<:Y• NLAfl14,~ ,?,, ·i1 .-· 

fJJ 
~ ,__. ~ 

/,
--• 1~..:~<f1i~\ ft; E lrnllirn I~ 

! ,··( '\("· " ._.) • ··c'l :,,! Kochi • 18 ·"' 
J 11-'-, MUMB/\1 , 'f:. * * ··,.1''...,\ /''!'.} 

<1 "' 'I~':;:\ , :l:?~,il 19'/". '!,,~~ 
'/ '-~ .,;,-.,... ·. ,, '":<i'~'// 

' 0red Accei\).~ 
1. 1~·!1/ /\(:r;0'? • ,, 

5.00 
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Securities purchased under 
Reverse Market Repos 
i) Government Securities 4.75 111.23 7.88 -
'i) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
C) Securities sold under Tri 
Party Repos 
i) Government Securities 99.97 4503.14 1733.48 2598.56 

ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
Securities purchased under Tri 
Party Reverse Repo 
i) Government Securities 49.97 1009.28 41.87 49.97 

ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
b) Transacted during the Financial year 2021-22: [at. in Crore] 

Minimum Maximum Daily Average 
outstanding outstanding outstanding As on 
during the during the during the March 31, 

Particulars [Book value] year year year 2022 
A) Securities sold under RBI 
IRepos 
i) Government Securities 8.00 1,913.00 9.73 -
ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
Securities purchased under 
RBI Reverse Repos 
i) Government Securities 858 12,061.00 5,917.39 3,600.00 

ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
B) Securities sold under 
Market Repos 
i) Government Securities- 107.69 107.69 0.29 -
ii) Corporate Debt Securities C - - -
Securities purchased under 
Reverse Market Repos 
i) Government Securities 4.95 169.29 22.30 -
ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
C) Securities sold under Tri 
Party Repo 
i) Government Securities- 29.99 4,999.58 1,797.59 999.59 

ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -
Securities purchased under Tri 
Party Reverse Repo 
i) Government Securities 60.69 1,695.01 26.39 -
ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -

[at. in Crore] 
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Backed by NP As sold by 
Backed by NPAs sold other banks/ financial 
by the bank as institutions/ non-banking Total 

Particulars underlying financial companies as 
underlying 

March March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 
31,2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 31, 2022 

Book value of 
investments in 

1396.79 1,573.54 1396.79 1,573.54 
security 

- -
receipts 

Note- In addition to the above, Bank holds security receipt of n6.75 Crore (Previous. Year 
~16.75 Crore) which are backed by Standard assets sold by the Bank. Bank was holding 
investments in the Security Receipts issued by a Trust managed by an Asset 
Reconstruction Company (ARC). 

'Amount represents gross book value of Security Receipts held 

g)Details of ageing of Investments held as Security Receipts: 

(i) As at March 31, 2023: 
[~. in Crore] 

SRs issued 
SRs issued more 

SRs issued 
Particulars within past 5 

than 5 years ago 
more than 

years 
but within past 8 

8 years ago 
years 

i) 
Book value of SRs backed by NP As 

459.47 884.53 52.79# 
sold by the bank as underlying 
Provision held against (i)' 293.49 884.53 52.79 
Book value of SRs backed by NP As 

ii sold by other banks / financial - - -) institutions I non-banking financial 
companies as underlying 
Provision held against (ii) - - -

Total (i) + (ii) 459.47 884.53 52.79 

# In addition to the above, Bank holds security receipt of n6.75 Crore which are backed by 
Standard assets sold by the Bank. The bank maintains 100% provision of n 6. 75 Crore against 
the same. 

'Provision amount represents Depreciation as per latest rating of SR/Provision as per RBI 
norms whichever is higher 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part ,Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

[<. in Crore] 
SRs issued SRs 

SRs issued more than 5 issued 
Particulars within past years ago more than 

5 years but within 8 years 
past 8 years ago 

i Book value of SRs backed by NP As sold by 
554.10 1,019.44 the bank as underlying -

Provision held against (i)* 235.51 634.99 -
Book value of SRs backed by NP As sold by 

ii other banks / financial institutions / non- - - -
banking financial companies as underlying 
Provision held against (ii) - - -

Total (i) + (ii) 554.10 1,019.44 -

# In addition to the above, Bank holds security receipt of'it'J6.75 Crore which are backed by Standard 
assets sold by the Bank. The bank maintains 100% provision oHl6.75 Crore against the same. 

'Provision amount represents Depreciation as per latest rating of SR/Provision as per RBI norms 
whichever is higher 

h) Details of Non-Performing financial assets purchased/ sold [<. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Non performing financial assets purchased/ sold 
Nil Nil ( from/to banks) 

f--
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4. Asset Quality 
a) Classification of advances and provisions held as on 31.03.2023 [~. in Crore] 

Gross Standard Advances and 
NPAs 

Opening Balance 

Add: Additions during the year 
Less: Reductions during the year 
Closing balance 
Reductions in Gross NP As due to: 
i) Upgradation 
ii) Recoveries ( excluding recoveries 
from upgraded accounts) 
iii) Technical/ Prudential Write-offs 
iv) Write-offs other than those under 
(iii above 
Provisions (excluding Floating 
Provisions 
Opening balance of provisions held 
Add: Fresh provisions made during 
the ear 
Less: Excess provision reversed/ 
Write-off loans 
Closing balance of provisions held 
NetNPAs 
Opening Balance 
Add: Fresh additions during the year 
Less: Reductions during the year 
Closing Balance ofNetNPAs 
Floating Provisions 
Opening Balance 
Add: Additional provisions made 
during the ear 
Less: Amount drawn down during 
the year 
Closing balance of floating 

revisions 
Technical write-offs and the 
recoveries made thereon 
Opening balance of Technical/ 
Prudential written-off accounts 

Standard Non-Performing 
Total 

Standard 
Advances 

Sub-
standa Doubtful Loss 

rd 

Total Non­
Performing 
Advances 

Total 

58167.67 1350.48 2225.17 72.44 __ 3"-'6'--'4"'8"'.0"--9.,_6'--'1"'-8-'--'15c.c..7c;6'-" 
1513.22 
1453.05 
3708.26 72092.06 

297.37 

998.45 
53.02 

104.21 

0.00 

2189.93 

53.02 
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Less: Recoveries made from 
previously technical/ prudential 
written-off accounts durin the year# 
Closing balance of Technical Write 
off 

379.39 

1863.56 

# includes Reduction due to sale of NP As to AR Cs from previously technical/prudential written-off 
accounts during the year and Sacrifice made from previously technical/prudential written-off accounts 
during the year 

Classi ,cation of advances and rovisions held as 011 3L03.2022 

Gross Standard Advances 
andNPAs 

Opening Balance 

Add: Additions during the 
ear 

Less: Reductions during the 
ear 

Closing balance 
Reductions in Gross NP As 
due to: 
i) Upgradation 
ii) Recoveries ( excluding 
recoveries from upgraded 
accounts 
iii) Technical/ Prudential 
Write-offs 
iv) Write-offs other than 
those under (iii) above 
Provisions (excluding 
Floatin Provisions 
Opening balance of 
rovisions held 

Add: Fresh provisions made 
during_the year 
Less: Excess provision 
reversed/ Write-off loans 
Closing balance of provisions 
held 
NetNPAs 
Opening Balance 
Add: Fresh additions during 
the ear 

Standard 
Total 

Standard 
Advances 

Non-Performing 

Sub-
standa Poubtful Loss 

rd 

Total Non­
Performing 
Advances 

4,143.24 

2,159.23 

2,654.38 

3,648.09 

801.66 

1,151.08 

101.35 

600.29 

1,361.33 

1,586.68 

1,127.44 

1,820.57 

2,734.52 

1,636.34 

2,593.09 

[<. in Crore] 

Total 

59,418.40 

61,815.76 

1651.36 
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Closing Balance 
Floating Provisions 
Opening Balance 
Add: Additional provisions 
made durin the ear 
Less: Amount drawn down 
during the ear 
Closing balance of floating 
revisions 

Technical write-offs and 
the recoveries made 
thereon 
Opening balance of 
Technical/ Prudential 
written-off accounts 
Add: Technical/ Prudential 
write-offs during the year 
Less: Recoveries made from 
previously technical/ 
prudential written-off 
accounts during the ear# 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2,482.12 

101.35 

393.54 

Closing balance 2,189.93 

# includes Reduction due to sale of NP As to ARCs from previously technical/prudential written-off 
accounts during the year and Sacrifice made from previously technical/prudential written-off accounts 
during the year 

Ratios March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Gross NPA to Gross Advances 5.14% 5.90% 
Net NPA to Net Advances 1.86% 2.97% 
Provision coverage ratio (Including technical/ 76.78% 69.55% 
nrudential written off accounts) 
Provision coverage ratio (Excluding technical / 65.12% 51.27% 
nrudential written off accounts) 

*Provisions on Standard Assets [~. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Provisions towards Standard Assets (including provision towards stressed 
252.02 208.72 

sector) 

Standard Restructured Accounts under MSME - Restructuring Scheme 75.40 111.98 

Provision for Specific Standard Assets on Stressed Sectors 1.53 1.85 
Standard Restructured Accounts under other Restructuring schemes 3.40 5.21 

Standard Restructured Accounts under COVID 19 restructuring scheme 61.52 124.72 

Subtotal 393.87 452.48 
Provision for Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of Borrowers 13.72 12.06 

Grand Total (Refer Schedule 5.Point 4- Other liabilities and provisions) 407.59 464.54 
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b) Sector-wise Advances and Gross NPAs 

Priorit Sector 
Agriculture and 
allied activities 14,746.22 668.89 

4.54% 12,709.12 654.44 5.15% 

Advances to 
industries sector 
eligible as priority 5,960.15 372.71 

6.25% 6,587.59 569.19 8.64% 

2 sector lendin 

2.a Textile 1,495.10 77.92 
5.21% 1,809.99 162.90 9.00% 

2.b Basic Metal 762.00 35.58 4.67% 715.35 46.17 6.45% 

2.c In a 95.47 I.II 
1.16% 68.36 0.43 0.63% 

3 Services 8 413.02 811.92 
9.65% 9,812.47 1,155.69 11.78% 

3.a Pro essional 1,687.35 144.55 8.57% 2,054.39 158.10 7.70% 

3.b Trade 4,857.60 497.72 10.25% 5,798.62 721.40 12.44% 

3.c NBFC 298.77 0.00% 170.51 0.00% 

4 Personal loans 1,462.99 58.71 
4.01% 1,722.28 84.73 4.92% 

4.a Housin Loan 1,208.67 37.76 3.12% 1,411.01 55.44 3.93% 

Other Personal loans 
4.b incl. Gold Loans 254.32 20.95 8.24% 311.27 29.29 9.41% 

Sub-total A 30,S82,38 I 912.23 6.25% 30,831.46 2,464.05 7.99% 

B Non Priori Sector 
Agriculture and 

4.51% 468.61 allied activities 695.54 31.37 34.41 7.34% 

2 Indus 12116.76 608.51 
5.02% 6,363.65 306.65 4.82% 

2.a Textile 735.56 169.70 23.07% 826.47 59.34 7.18% 

2.b Basic Metal 2,866.64 18.00 0.63% 1,042.87 28.69 2.75% 

2.c In a 3,251.18 221.03 6.80% 1,840.35 132.35 7.19% 

3 Services 15,541.83 777.89 
5.01% 13,408.50 455.19 3.39% 

3.a Pro essional 1,848.71 72.76 3.94% 2,107.88 43.25 2.05% 

3.b Trade 4,175.96 565.03 13.53% 2,227.60 162.22 7.28% 

3.c NBFC 5,763.52 13.15 0.23% 5,444.04 60.49 1.11% 

4 Personal loans 13,155.55 378.26 
2.88% 10,743.54 387.79 3.61% 

4.a Housin Loan 2,679.40 126.21 4.71% 2,670.98 147.90 5.54% 

Other Personal loans 
4.b incl. Gold Loan 10,476.15 252.05 2.41% 8,072.56 239.89 2.97% 

Sub-total B 41,509.68 
1,796.03 

4.33% 30,984.30 1,184.04 3.82% 

' .~;~~~:J ~·,:~~·::'. · ,.Total A+B 72,092.06 5.14% 61,815.76 3,648.09 5.90% 

II:
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c) Overseas Assets, Branches, NP As and Revenue - Nil 

d) Particulars of resolution plan and restructuring 

I) Particulars ofresolution nlan [~ in Crore] 
SI Particulars March 31, March 31, 
No 2023 2022 
I. No of Accounts where Resolution Plan was imolemented 0 I 
2. Exposure to accounts as on date of Implementation of 0 8.38 

Resolution Plan. 

II) d Details of accounts sub ecte to restructuring '!'. m Crore [ . 

Standard 

Sub 
Standard 

< 

Doubtful 
(Including 
Loss 
Assets) 

Total 

Agriculture Corporates Micro, Small and Retail ( excluding Total 
and allied Excluding Medium agriculture and 
activities MSMEs Enterprises MSME) 

(MSME) 
Mar' Mar' Mar' Mar' Mar' 23 Mar' 22 Mar' Mar' Mar' 23 Mar' 22 

23 22 23 22 23 22 
Number 
of 
Borrowers 0 0 14 24 215 316 438 500 667 840 
Gross 
Amount 0.00 0.00 347.78 725.07 907.80 1412.81 260.63 279.12 1516.21 2417.00 
Provision 
held 0.00 0.00 34.89 96.66 76.39 113.67 29.04 31.56 140.32 241.89 
Number 
of 
Borrowers 0 53 2 I 48 72 12 66 62 192 
Gross 
Amount 0.00 4.33 10.82 43.03 195.58 252.88 5.96 5.99 212.36 306.23 
Provision 
held 0.00 1.02 2.49 6.45 50.63 105.65 1.50 4.52 54.62 117.64 
Number 
of 
Borrowers 66 35 5 4 155 134 156 188 382 361 
Gross 
Amount 16.40 3.27 344.51 187.60 355.73 224.98 29.78 14.45 746.42 430.30 
Provision 
held 9.02 1.21 339.60 148.24 218.52 136.90 13.96 14.45 581.10 300.80 
Number 
of 
Borrowers 66 88 21 29 418 522 606 754 1111 1393 
Gross 
Amount 16.40 7.60 703.11 955.70 1459.11 1890.67 296.37 299.56 2474.99 3153.53 
Provision 
held 9.02 2.23 376.98 251.35 345.54 356.22 44.50 50.53 776.04 660.33 

e) Disclosure on Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning for NP As: 
RBI armual supervision process is not completed for the FY 2022-23 and hence no disclosure is 
made in this regard. 
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I) Disclosure of Transfer of Loan Exposures 
Disclosures as per Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) 
Directions 2021 dated September 24, _2021 for the loans transferred/acquired during the year 
ended March 31, 2023 are given below: 

i. Details of loans not in default acquired through assignment are given below 
[,. in Crore] 

Aggregate amount of loans acquired 2146.10 
Weighted average residual maturity (in months) 38.95 
Weighted average holding period by originator (in months) 6.13 
Retention of beneficial economic interest by the originator 10.00% 
Tangible security coverage 162.30% 

The Loans acqwred are not rated as these are of non-corporate borrowers. 

ii. Details of Non-Performing Assets transferred are given below; [,. in Crore] 

To To other 

Particulars ToARCs permitted transferees 
(please transferees 
specify) 

No: of accounts 3 - -
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred 19.23 - -
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred in months - - -
Net book value ofloans transferred (at the time of transfer) 8.05 - -
Aggregate consideration 16.86 - -
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts - - -
transferred in earlier years 

Provision reversed to the profit and loss account on account of sale 8.81 - -
of stressed loans 

iii. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the bank did not acquire any stressed loans or transfer 
any loan not in default I Special Mention Accounts (SMA) 

iv .. Details of recovery ratings assigned to Security Receipts as at March 3 l, 2023 
[,. in Crore] 

Recovery Ratings • Anticipated Recovery as per Recovery Rating Book value 
NRI I RI +/RR! + > 150% 0.00 
NR2/Rl /RR! 100% - 150% 0.00 
NR3/R2/RR2 75%- 100% 525.72 
R3/NR4/RR3 50%-75% 34.87 
NR5/RR4/R4 25%-50% 783.41 
NR6/RR5 !R5 0%-25% 52.79 
Yet to be rated• - 0.00 

Unrated - 16.75 
Total 1,413.54 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forniing part of Reformatted Standalone- Financial Statements for the year ehded March 31, 2023 

g) Fraud accounts 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Number of frauds reported during the year 417 402 

Amount involved in fraud'(< Crore) 77.74 40.31 

Amount of provision made for such frauds (< 
44.79 35.48 

Crore)• 
Amount of Unamortised provision debited from 

NA 
'other reserves' as at the end of the year (< Crore) 

* Amount involved in credit related fraud is incl_usive of Interest on NP A while the provisipn created is for Gross NP A 
Net of recovery and technical write off. 

h) Disclosure under Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress 
Details of Resolution Plan implemented under Resolution Framework for COVID 19 related stress as 
per RBI circular dated August 06, 2020 (DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 - Resolution 
Framework 1.0) and May 05, 2021 (DOR.STR.REC.l l/21.04.048/2021-22 - Resolution Framework 
2.0). [<. In Crore] 

Type of borrower Exposure to accounts Of(A), Of(A) Of(A) Exposure to accounts 
classified as Standard aggregate amount 
consequent to debt that written 
implementation of slipped off 
resolution plan - Position into NPA during 
as at the end of the during the the half-
previous half year (A) half-year year 

Personal Loans# 308.19 23.93 0.00 

Corporate persons 
. 

297.24 92.73 0.00 
Of which, MSMEs 0.10 0.00 0.00 
Others 112.62 0.00 0.00 

Total 718.05 116.66 0.00 
• As defined m Sect10n 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
'Includes Rs.8.12 Crores which was restructured during earlier period. 

amount classified as Standard 
paid by consequent to 

the implementation of 
borrowers resolution plan -
during the Position as at the end 
half-year' of this half-year2 

5.76 278.50 

12.63 191.87 

0.10 0.00 

22.12 90.51 

40.51 560.88 

1 Amount paid by the borrower during the half year is net of additions in the borrower account including 
additions due to interest capitalization. 

'Includes other facilities to the borrowers which have not been restructured. 

Disclosure related to clause 28 of RBI circular dated May 05, 2021 where the number of borrowers 
accounts in which modifications were sanctioned and implemented in terms of Clause 22 of the 
aforesaid circular 

Tvne of Borrower No of Accounts Aggregate exposure to such borrower(< in crore) 

Personal Loans 6 2.81 

Coroorate Persons 0 0.00 
Of which MSMEs 0 0.00 

Others 0 0.00 

Total 6 2.81 



The Soutli"lndian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part.of Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

5. Exposures 

a) Exposures to Real Estate Sector ['-t. in Crore] 

Category March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
I) Direct Exposure 

(a) Residential Mortgages - 4005.08 4,209.54 

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is 
or will be occupied by the borrowers or that is rented; 
of which Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in 1228. 73 1,435.28 

priority sector advances .Exposure would also include non-fund 
based(NFB) limits. 

(b) Commercial Real Estate - 514.96 832.23 

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate ( office 
buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-
family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, 
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, 
development and construction, etc.). Exposure include Non-Fund 
Based (NFB) limits 

( c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other 
securitized exposures -

a. Residential Nil Nil 

b. Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil 

2) Indirect Exposure 

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank 
2614.52 1,008.49 

(NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 7134.56 6,050.26 

b) Exposure to Capital Market sectors ['-t. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(i) Direct Investments in equity shares, convertible bonds, 
convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual 
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in 
corporate debt;' 

(ii) Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other 
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in 
shares (including IPOs/ESOPs ), convertible bonds and 
convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual 
funds 

(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible 
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 

152.86 27.34 

mutual funds are taken as primary security; 
//:/\\,1cl;i;,;·;·:f::,;0,_'-------------'---'-:;:;"'l':~;;:------~-----~-----~ 
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Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the 

collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or 
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual - -
funds i.e where the primary security other than shares/ 
convertible bonds/ convertible debentures/ units of equity 
oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances; 

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and 
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market 7.78 7.25 
makers: 

(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares/ -
bonds/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis for -meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new 
companies in anticipation of raising resources; 

(vii)Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/ - -issues 

(viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in -
respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or -convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual 
funds; 

(ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading - -
(x) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and - -unregistered) 

Total Exposure to Capital Market 160.64 34.59 
'Shares acquired by banks as a result of Conversion of debt under CDR mechanism for ~139. 73 Crore 
(Previous Year ~108.39 Crore) is excluded in line with extant RBI guidelines. 

c) Risk category wise country exposure: 
Country Risk exposure has been classified on the following basis: [~. in Crore] 

Risk Category* Exposure (net) Provision held Exposure (net) as Provision held 
as at March as at March at March 31, 2022 as at March 31, 

31,2023 31, 2023 2022 
Insignificant 1901.28 - 3,270.85 -
Low 1342.08 - 1,478.33 -
Moderately Low 23.39 4.55 
Moderate 9.19 - 0.02 -
Moderately High 8.81 - 5.20 -
High 12.47 -
Very High - - - -
TOTAL 3297.22 - 4,758.95 -

As the Bank's net exposure with each country for the year in respect of foreign exchange 
transaction is less than 1% of the total assets of the Bank, no provision is required. 
'The above figures include both funded as well as non-funded exposure. 
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d) Unsecured Advances [,. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Total unsecured advances of the bank 11404.93 3,584.52 
Out of the above, amount of advances for which 
intangible securities such as charge over the 0.00 76.73 
rights, licenses, authority, etc. have been taken 
Estimated value of such intangible securities 0.00 76.73 

e) Factoring Exposure- Nil. 

I) Intra-Group Exposure - Nil. 

g) Unhcdged Foreign Currency Exposure 
The Bank has in place a policy on managing credit risk arising out of unhedged foreign currency 
exposures of its borrowers. The objective of this policy is to maximize the hedging on foreign 
currency exposures of borrowers by reviewing their foreign currency product portfolio and 
encouraging them to hedge the unhedged portion. In line with the policy, assessment of unhedged 
foreign currency exposure is a part of assessment of borrowers and is w1dertaken while proposing 
limits or at the review stage. 

Further, the Bank reviews the unhedged foreign currency exposure across its portfolio on a periodic 
basis. The Bank also maintains incremental provision towards the unhedged foreign currency 
exposures of its borrowers in line with the extant RBI guidelines. The Bank has maintained provision 
of ,13.72 Crore and additional capital of , 14.96 Crores on account of Unhedged Foreign Currency 
Exposure of its borrowers as at March 31, 2023. 

Movement of Unhedgcd Foreilm Currencv Exnosure 
Date Category No. of borrowers with Unhedged Foreign Provision 

provision for UFCE Currency Exposure [,. in Crore] 
[,. in Crore] 

31.03.2022 Above Rs.5.00Crs 42 6308.25 4.76 
Below Rs.5.00Crs 15906 - 7.30 

Total 12.06 
30.06.2022 Above Rs.5.00Crs 41 9841.98 5.87 

Below Rs.5.00Crs 15784 - 7.12 
Total 12.99 

30.09.2022 Above Rs.5.00Crs 46 8838.84 4.35 
Below Rs.5.00Crs 15675 - 7.01 

Total 11.36 
31.12.2022 Above Rs.5.00Crs 39 5957.79 4.62 

Below Rs.5.00Crs 15543 - 6.95 
Total ll.57 

31.03.2023 Above Rs.5.00Crs 64 69116.00 7.03 
Below Rs.5.00Crs 15683 - 6.69 

Total 13.72 

* As per RBI guideline, for exposures to smaller entities which are having unhedged foreign currency 
exposure, banks may have the option of following a standardised method which would require an 

6 ,,,.,, ·'>>,incremental provisioning of 10 bps over and above extant standard asset provisioning. Banks 
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entities. Smaller entities are entities on which total exposure from banking system is at ~ 50 Crore or 
less. 

As per bank's Board approved policy, it was decided to collect UFCE data from all customers who 
are having exposure above ~ 5.00 Crore and for exposure below Rs.5.00 Crore bank is not collecting 
UFCE data. However for such accounts the bank is maintaining an incremental provision of 1 0bps 
over and above the extant standard asset provision on the outstanding balance. 

6. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NP As 

a) Concentration of Deposits [~. in Crore] 
. 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 2572.31 4,343.56 
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest 

2.81% 4.87% depositors to Total Deposits of the bank 

b) Concentration of Advances* [<. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 9109.98 6,261.62 
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest 

9.45% 7.50% borrowers to Total Advances of the bank 
. .. 

* Advance 1s computed as per defimt1on of Credit Exposure mcludmg denvat1ves furmshed m RB I's 
Master Circular on Exposure Norms 

c) Concentration of Exposures* [<. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 9906.67 6,361.19 
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ 
customers to Total Exposure of the bank on borrowers/ 8.09% 6.00% 
customers 

*Exposure 1s computed based on credit and investment exposure as prescnbed m RBI's Master 
Circular on Exposure Norms 

d) Concentration ofNPAs* [~. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Total Exposure to the top twenty NP A accounts 778.85 685.21 
Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest NP A 

21.00% 18.78% exposure to total Gross NP As. 
*Represents funded balance 
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7. Derivatives: 

a) Forward Rate A!!reement / Interest Rate Swan 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

i) 8The notional principal of swap agreements 150.00 
ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterpartics failed 0.00 

to fulfil their obligations unjer the agreements 
Nil iii) Collateral required by the benk upon entering into swaps 

0.00 
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps 0.00 
v) The fair value of the swap book (0.07) 

The nature and terms of the IRS as on March 31, 2023 are set out below: 
Nature Nos Notional Benchmark Terms 

Principal 
Trading 6 150.00 MIOIS Fixed Receivable/ 

Floating Payable 

b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives. 

Sr. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 202; 
Notional principal amount of exchange traded 

(i) interest rate derivatives undertaken during the year 
(instrument wise) 

Notional principal amount of exchange traded 
(ii) interest rate derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 

2023 (instrument wise) 

Notional principal amount of exchange traded 
Nil Nil 

(iii) interest rate derivatives outstanding and not 'highly 
effective' (instrumel)t wise) 

Mark to market value of exchange traded 

(iv) il)terest rate derivatives outstanding and not 'highly 
effective' (instrument wise) 

The bank had dealt 111 exchange traded currency futures durmg the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 
As at March 31, 2023 the open contracts on the exchange was Nil. 

c) Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives. 

i) Qualitative Disclosure. 
The Bank undertakes over the counter and exchange traded derivative transactions for Balance Sheet 
management and also for proprietary trading/ market making. Bank offers derivative products to the 
customers to enable them to hedge their exposure within the prevalent regulatory guidelines. 

These transactions expose the Bank to various risks primarily credit, market, operational, legal, and 
reputation. There is functional separation between the Front Office, risk and Back Office for 
undertaking derivative transactions. The derivative transactions are governed by the Investment, forex 

,, ,. :,liJid,derivative policy and market risk m:f\f,P! of the Bank as well as by the extant RBI 
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guidelines. Various operational/risk limits are set up and actual exposures are monitored vis-a-vis the 
limits allocated. Risk Limits are in place for risk parameters viz. VaR, Stop Loss, Dealer Limit, Deal 
size limit. Actual positions are monitored against these limits on a daily basis and breaches, if any, are 
reported promptly. The MTM position of the derivative portfolio is monitored on a regular basis. The 
impact on derivative portfolio on account of the probable market movements are assessed on regular 
basis. 

Bank deals in derivatives for hedging foreign currency assets/liabiHties subject to the prevailing 
regulatory guidelines. Transactions for hedging and trading are recorded separately. For hedge 
transactions, the Bank identifies the hedged item (asset or liability) at the inception of the transaction 
itself. The effectiveness is ascertained at the time of inception of the hedge and periodically thereafter. 
Transactions related to foreign exchange forwards, Currency futures etc. are marked to market 
(MTM) on the reporting dates and the MTM is accounted in the books. Collateral requirements for 
derivative transactions are determined based on usual credit appraisal process. For the purpose of 
credit risk mitigation, most of the deals have been contracted with Banks/ Major primary dealers and 
no default risk is anticipated on the deals with them. 

ii) Quantitative Disclosures: [at. in Crore] 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

SI. 
Particulars Currency 

No Derivativ 
Interest rate Currency Interest rate 

es* 
derivatives Derivatives* derivatives 

Derivatives (Notional 
- - - -

I 
Principal Amount) 

a) For hedging - - - -
b) For trading - 150.00 - -
Marked to Market Positions - - - -

2 a) Asset(+) - - - -
b) Liability(-) - 0.07 - -

3 Credit Exposure - 0.75 - -
Likely impact of one 
percentage change in - - - -

4 interest rate ( IO0*PV0 I) 

a) on hedging derivatives - - - -
b) on trading derivatives - 1.32 - -
Maximum and Minimum of 
IO0*PV0 I observed during - - - -

5 
the year 

a) on hedging - - - -
b) on trading - - - -
Max (l00*PV0I)-Trading 7.37 9.03 - 1.38 
Min (IO0*PV0l)-Trading 0 0 0 0 

*Only Currency futures are reported m currency denvatJves. There was no contract outstandmg as on 31-03-
2023. 
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Foreign exchange forward contract has not been included in the above disclosure. The notional 
principal amount of foreign exchange contracts classified as trading on March 31, 2023 amounted to 
n6,269.20 Crore (Previous Year U4,286.43 Crore) and mark to market position was asset of 
~123.15 crore (previous year ~139.11 Crore) and liability of { 102.64 crore (Previous year {94.51 
crore). The notional principal amount of Foreign exchange contacts classified as hedging on March 
31 2023 amounted to { 3334.66 Crore (Previous year~ 2865.58 Crore). 

The notional principal amounts of derivatives reflect the volume of transactions outstanding as at the 
Balance Sheet date and do not represent the amounts at risk. Interest rate derivative represents interest 
rate swaps. 

d) Credit Default Swaps 
The bank has not undertaken any transactions in credit default swaps during the year ended March 

31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

8. Securitisation Transactions 
The Bank has not undertaken any securitisation transactions during the year ended March 31, 2023 
and March 31, 2022. 

9. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored 
There are no SPV s sponsored by the Bank as at March 31, 2023 and March 3 I, 2022. 

10. Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEA Fund): 
In accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI, the Bank transfers the amount to the credit of 
any account which has not been operated upon for a period of ten years or any deposits or any 
amount remaining unclaimed for more than ten years to DEAFund. 

Details ofamounts transferred to DEAFund are set out below: [{, in Crore] 

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 183.70 149.85 

Add : Amounts transferred to DEA Fund during the 39.99 37.25 

year 
Less : Amounts reimbursed by DEA Fund towards 5.05 3.40 

claims 
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 218.64 183.70 
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11. Status of Complaints 

a) Summary information on complaints received by the bank from customers and from the 
Offices of Ombudsman 

Sr. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
No 

Complaints received by the bank from its customers 
I. Number of complaints pending at beginning 1446 1,175 

of the year 
2. Number of complaints received during the 43091 43,099 

year 
3. Number of complaints disposed during the 

year 
43677 42,828 

3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by 
8761 9,396 

the bank 
4. Number of complaints pending at the end of 860 1,446 

the year 
Maintainable comolaints received bv the bank from Office of Ombudsman 
5. Number of maintainable complaints 

received by the bank from Office of 279 251 
Ombudsman 

5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in 162 129 
favour of the bank bv Office of Ombudsman 

5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved 
through conciliation/mediation/advisories 117 121 
issued by Office of Ombudsman 

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after 
passing of A wards by Office of Ombudsman 0 l 
against the bank 

6. Number of Awards unimplemented within 
the stipulated time (other than those 0 0 
appealed) 

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in 
Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously Banking Ombudsman Scheme, 2006) and 
covered within the ambit of the Scheme. Previous year figures updated wherever considered 
necessary so as to align the same with current year data. 

b) Top five grounds of complaints received by the bank from customers 
Grounds of complaints, Number Number of % increase/ Number Of 5, 
(i.e. complaints relating of complaint decrease in of number of 
to) complaint s received the number complaint complaints 

spending during the of complaints spending pending 
at the year received over at the end beyond 30 
beginning the previous ofthe days 
ofthe year year 
vear 

1 2 3 4 5 6 
Current Year 

ATM/Debit Card 409 15898 -23.62 123 
Internet Banking/Mobile 430 12692 46.98 287 Banking/Electronic Bankinl! 
Account Opening /difficulty 9 2876 49.17 33 

( ,\ _: 
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in operation of accounts 
Charg~s 61 1181 84.82 76 
Credit Cards 1 416 1385.71 4 
Others 536 10028 -4.15 337 
Total 

' 1446 43091 -0.018 860 
Previous Y car 

A lM/Debit Card 122 20,817 35.25 409 -
Internet Banking/Mobile 

389 8,635 15.70 430 -Bankino/P.lectronic Banking 
Account Opening /difficulty 

64 1,928 83.61 9 -in ooeration of accounts 
Charges 36 639 18.11 61 -
Loans and Advances 23 617 -12.97 15 1 
Others 541 10,463 -3.75 522 17 
Total 1.175 43.099 19.64 1,446 18 

12. Penalties levied by the Reserve Bank oflndia 

The penalty imposed by RBI during the year ended March 31, 2023 was ~15,90,650/- (Previous 
year a!'l,01,86,000/-) 

Penalties Imposed By RBI in FY 2022-23 
SI Imposed ' 

No date Amount(Rs) 
,, 

Nature of breach 

l 28-03-2022 10,000.00* A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
2 07-04-2022 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
3 12-05-2022 10,000.00 A.TM Cash-out penalty imposed bv RBI. 
4 13-05-2022 20,000.00 A TM Cash-out oenalty imposed by RBI. 
5 20-05-2022 20,000.00 A TM Cash-out oenalty imposed by RBI. 
6 24-05-2022 4,00,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
7 01-06-2022 70,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
8 03-06-2022 1,00,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
9 05-07-2022 50,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed bv RBI. 
10 21-07-2022 2,150.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currency chest. 
II 10-08-2022 150.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currency chest. ', 

12 03-08-2022 3,750.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 
currency chest. 

13 16-08-2022 1,200.00 Late fee due to delay in filing Fonn GSTR-6 return for the month of 
July2022. 

14 04-08-2022 10,000.00 Penalty imposed by RBI for non-reporting of A TM cash-out. Later, 
based on bark's representation, the penalty amount was reversed to 
our account. 

15 22-08-2022 40,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed bY RBI. 
16 02-09-2022 60,000.00 ATM Cash-out oenalty imposed by RBI. 
17 06-09-2022 30,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
18 07-10-2022 30,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed bv RBI. 
19 03-11-2022 10,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
20 18-11-2022 4,850.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance I 

shortage in remittance by currency chest. 
21 08-12-2022 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed bv RBL 
22 12-12-2022 15,000.00 Penaltv imposed by RBI for irre,mlarities observed during their visit. 

"': ,,23,,., 16-01-2023 15,000.00 Penalty imposed by RBI for irregularities observed during their visit. 
'''214Ji 1'7.9-12-2022 5,000.00 Penalty iI RBI for irregularities observed during their visit. ,. 
FM ·•~;·: ,, 
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16-02-2023 90,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
27-02-2023 100.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currency chest. 
08-02-2023 950.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currency chest. 
08-03-2023 10,000.00 Penalty imposed by RBI for Non Frisking by Currency chest. 
17-03-2023 12,500.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by 

currency chest.-
10-03-2023 10,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
17-03-2023 10,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
29-03-2023 1,30,000.00 A TM Cash-out penalty imposed bv RBI. 
30-03-2023 4,00,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
Total 15,90,650.00 

*This penalty was pertaining to the month of March 2022 (i.e. Q4 of FY 2021-22). This case was further 
analysed and reported in the month of April 2022. Hence the same has been reported in QI of FY 2022-23. 

Penalties Imposed by RBI In FY 2021-22 
Imposed Amount 

Nature of Breach 
date 

06.07.2021 l,00,00,000.00 We were in receipt of a show cause notice from RBI dated 22nd January 
2021 with respect to the account IL & FS Group companies with regards to 
non-adherence of RBI Circular IECD.No.29/08.12.01/98-99 dated May 25, 
1999 on "Lending to Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs)". Vide 
letter SIB/COMP/RBV77/20-21 dated February 09,2021. 

06.09.2021 35,000.00 We were in receipt ofa Show Cause Notice on the following discrepancies 
observed during RBI Inspection in Currency Chest, 
1. Non-Frisking of person entering/exiting the vault. 
2. Non Maintenance of charge certificate 
3. Delay in sorting of Soiled notes. 
4. Grill Gate of strong room kept open during operation. 

11.11.2021 200.00 
Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled Note Remittance by currency 
chest. 

28.12.2021 1,00,000.00 On 22.12.21, Short Sale amounting to Rs.45 crores was kept open for value 
23.12.21. On 23.12.2021, inadvertently, purchase of Market Revere Repo 
was not communicated to Money Market Desk by SLR Desk & thus they 
did not strike reverse repo deal to cover the security short sold. Hence, 
reverse repo for Rs. JO crores against the security short 6.67% GS 2035 was 
not taken. This lead to shortage of security balance by Rs. IO crores in 
Subsidiary General Ledger (SGL). The securities that were short, had to be 
bought under reverse repo to negate security short sold commitment to 
CCII. 

18.01.2022 5,300.00 Penalty imposed on account of deficiencies noticed during RBI visit of 
currency chest. 

07.03.2022 15,950.00 Penalty imposed on account of deficiencies noticed during RBI visit of 
currency chest. 

10.03.2022 9,550.00 Penalty imposed for discrepancies in Soiled I forged I defective note 
Remittance by currency chest. 

14.03.2022 10,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 
17.03.2022 10,000.00 ATM Cash-out penalty imposed by RBI. 

Total 1,01,86,000.00 .. 
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Reverse Repo for~ IO Crore against the securities short 6.67% GS 2035 was not taken which lead to 
shortage of security balance by ;t'l O Crore in Subsidiary General Ledger (SGL). The same has been 
reported to the appropriate authority. There is no other such incidence incurred during the period. 
Further we also confirm that all investments and Forex transactions are in compliance with RBI 
directives and Banks Investment Policy. 

13. Disclosures on Remuneration 
a) Information relating to the composition and mandate of the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee. 
Composition: 

The Nomination & Remuneration committee of the Board consists of three members and all 
three members are members of Risk Management committee of the Board to facilitate 
effective governance of compensation. 
The roles and responsibilities of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee inter-alia 
includes the following: 

SJ. Name of Agenda item 
No. 

1 Scrutinizing the declarations received from persons to be appointed as Directors as well as from the 
existing Directors seeking re-appointment and to decide whether to extend or continue the term of 
appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of 
independent directors. and make references to the appropriate authority/persons to ensure compliance 
with the requirements indicated by Reserve Bank oflndia vide their directive dated May 23, 201 I on 
Fit & Prooer Criteria of the Banks. 

2 Recommend to the Board for its consideration and approval on the size and composition of the Board 
taking into account the available and needed diversity and balance in terms of experience, 
knowledge, skills, andjndgrnent of the Directors 

3 To devise a Succession Planning Policy for the Board and Senior Management. 
4 To formulate a Nomination policy of the Board to guide the Board in relation to appointment/re-

aooointment/removal of Directors .. 
5 To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors/ KMPs and who may be appointed in 

senior management as defined in the Succession Policy in accordance with the criteria laid down and 
to recommend to the Board their aooointment and/or removal. 

6 To {ormulate the criteria for evaluation of Indeoendent Directors and the Board/Committees. 
7 To devise a oolicv on Board diversity, 
8 To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced by 

any statutorv notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable. 
9 To perform such other functions as may be necessarv or aoorooriate for the performance of its duties. 
IO To oversee the framing, review and implementation of Bank's overall compensation structure and 

related polices on remuneration packages payable to the WTDs/MD & CEO and other staff including 
performance linked incentives, perquisites, Stock option scheme etc. with a view to attracting, 
motivating and retaining employees and review compensation levels vis-a-vis other Banks and the 
industrv in general. 

II The Committee shall work in close coordination with the Risk Management Committee of the Bank, 
in order to achieve effective aligmnent between remuneration and risks. The Committee will also 
ensure that the cost/income ratio of the Bank supports the remuneration package consistent with 
maintenance of sound capital adequacy ratio. 

12 With respect to the variable pay, both cash and non-cash Performance Linked Incentive Schemes, the 
Committee is empowered to: 

a) Draw up terms and conditions and approve the changes, if any, to the Performance Linked 

; ~;:;-~j~::.:;: ;':;,. Incentive schemes; 
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b) Moderate the scheme on an ongoing basis depending upon the circumstances and link the 
same with the recommendations of Audit Committee; 

c) Coordinate the progress of growth of business vis -a- vis the business parameters laid 
down by the Board and Audit Committee and effect such improvements in the scheme as 
are considered necessary; 

d) On completion of the year, finalize the criteria of allotment of marks to ensure 
objectivity/equity. 

e) To identify Material Risk Takers (MRTs) as per the recommendations made by MD & 
CEO and to fix variable pay and other terms of payment including component (Cash and 
non-cash), deferment and divergence clause in line with compensation policy and other 
RBI guidelines and other policies and guidelines of the bank. 

13 The Committee shall also function as the Compensation Committee as prescribed under the SEBI 
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and is empowered to formulate detailed terms 
and conditions of the Scheme, administer, supervise the same and to allot shares in compliance with 
the <!Uidelines and other annlicable laws. 

14 To obtain necessary clearances and approvals from regulatory authorities, appoint Merchant Bankers 

15 

16 

17 

18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

and do such other thin<!s as mav be necessary in resoect of the Emolovees Stock Ootion Scheme. 
To oversee the administration of Employee benefits, such as Provident Fund, Pension Fund, Gratuity, 
Compensation for absence on Privilege/Sick/Casual Leave etc., which are recognized in accordance 
with Accounting Standard-IS (revised) specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2006. 
The Co,!111llittee may suggest amendments to any stock option plans or incentive plans, provided that 
all amendments to such plans shall be subiect to consideration and annroval of the Board. 
Any other matters regarding remuneration to WTDs/MD & CEO and other staffs of the Bank as and 
when oermitted by the Board. 
To conduct the annual review of the Comnensation Policv. 
To fulfil such other oowers and duties as mav be dele<!ated to it bv the Board. 
To review HR StratePV aliPTiing with business strategv of the Bank. 
To review the skill gaps and talent nool creation. 
To do any other matters regarding remuneration to whole-time directors/ non-executive directors 
/part-time chairman, Chief Executive Officers / Material Risk Takers (MR Ts) and employees (risk 
control and compliance staff and all other categories of staff) of the Bank including signing/ joining 
bonus occurring in the context of hiring new staff and be limited to first year, in the form of share-
linked instruments only, as and when permitted by the Board. Such bonus will neither be considered 
nart of fixed nav nor part of variable oav. 

b) Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes and the key 
features and objectives of remuneration policy. 

• The Bank has formed the compensation policy based on the Reserve Bank of India 
guidelines vide its Circular No. DBOD.No.BC.72/29.67.001/2011-12 dated January 
13, 2012. 

• The fixed remuneration and other allowances including retirement benefits of all 
subordinate, clerical and officers up to the rank of General Manager (Scale VII) is 
governed by the industry level wage settlement under Indian Banks Association (IBA) 
pattern. In respect of officers above the cadre of General Manager, the remuneration is 
fixed by Board / Committee. 

• Further, the compensation structure for the Whole Time Directors (WTDs) / Managing 
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Director & Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEO) of the bank are subject to approval 
of Reserve Bank of India in terms of Section 35 B of the Banking Regulation Act, 
1949. TI1e payment of compensation also requires approval of the shareholders of the 
Bank in the General Meeting pursuant to clause 95 of Articles of-Association of the 
Bank read with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Section 35B (I) of 
Banking Regulation Act 1949. 

• The Reserve Bank of India vide circular DOR.Appt.BC.No.23/29.67.001/2019-20 
dated November 4, 2019 issued a detailed revised Guidelines on Compensation of 
Whole Time Directors/ Chief Executive Officers/ Material Risk Takers and Control 
Function staff. Accordingly, the Compensation Policy has been modified by 
incorporating the revised provisions of the RBI circular. 

c) Description of the ways in which current and future risks arc taken into account in the 
remuneration processes. It will include the nature and type of the key measures used to take 
account of these risks. 

The Board of Directors through the NRC shall exercise oversight and effective governance 
over the framing and implementation of the Compensation Policy. Human Resource 
Management under the guidance of MD & CEO shall administer the Compensation and 
Benefit structure in line with the best suited practices and statutory requirements as applicable. 

For Material Risk Takers: 

The Bank will refer to the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) report entitled 
Range of Methodologies for Risk and Performance Alignment of Remuneration published in May 
201 I for guidance wherever required. It intends to enhance the banks' and supervisors' 
understanding of risk-adjusted remuneration. This rep01i, by providing some clarification on 
design of risk-adjusted remuneration schemes, will support and facilitate the greater adoption of 
sound practices in the banking sector. Some of the key stipnlations of the report are as under: 

I. In order for incentive-based remuneration to work, the variable part of remuneration will be 
truly and effectively variable and can even be reduced to zero in line with the symmetry principle 
defined by the FSB. A key element that supervisors expect is the ability for banks to demonstrate 
that the methodologies they developed to adjust variable remuneration to Iisk and performance are 
appropriate to their specific circumstances. 

2. The methodologies for adjusting remuneration to risk and performance will also be consistent 
with the general risk management and_ corporate governance framework. 

3. Perforntance measures and their relation to remuneration packages will be clearly defined at the 
beginning of the performance measurement period to ensure that the employees perceive the 
incentives mechanism. The usual annual determination of bonuses will be based on rnles, 
processes and objectives known in advance, recognizing that some discretion will always be 
needed. 

4. Bank will use a combination of financial and non-financial measures to assess employee 
perforntance and adapt the measurement to each employee's specific situation. Qualitative factors 
(like knowledge, skills or abilities), might play an important role when it comes to judging and 
rewarding some activities- particularly when these serve to reinforce the bank's risk management 
goals. 

5. The nature and extent to which risk adjustments are needed depends first on the extent to which 
perforntance measures capture risks, but in all cases, some form of risk adjustment is needed as 
remuneration is often awarded before the final outcome of an activity is !mown. Risks taken need 
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to be estimated ( ex ante), risk outcomes observed ( ex post) and both ex ante estimates and ex post 
outcomes will affect payoffs. 

6. Risk adjustments need to take into account the nature of the risks involved and the time horizons 
over which they could emerge. The impact of remuneration adjustments will be linked to actions 
taken by employees and/or business units, and their impact on the level of risk taken on by the 
bank. 

7. The nature of the award process, which links the variable remuneration of each individual 
employee with bonus pools and the total amount of variable remuneration at a bank's level, is also 
an area that will be carefully considered by banks and supervisors, as it directly influences how 
and when performance and risk adjustment are or can be used. 

8. Considering the above parameters, the Board may approve suitable methodologies for fixing of 
risk adjusted remuneration, as appropriate, based on the recommendations of Risk Management 
committee and review/approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on the same. 

The compensation structure for the Whole-Time Directors/ Chief Executive Officers I Material 
Risk Takers (MRTs)of the bank shall be as under: 

Fixed Pay and Perquisites 
Based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and subject to 
the approval of Reserve Bank of India (for MD & CEO and Executive Directors), Board shall fix 
the fixed portion of compensation payable which is reasonable, taking into account all relevant 
factors including adherence to statutory requirements and industry practice. 

Variable Pay 
In order to have a proper balance between the cash and share-linked components in the variable 
pay, the variable pay are to be structured in the form of share-linked instrument (including Cash­
linked Stock Appreciation Rights (CSARs)), or a mix of cash and share-linked instruments. Only 

,, in cases where the compensation by way of share-linked instruments is not permitted by 
law/regulations, the entire variable pay can be in cash to be exercised. 

d) Description of the ways in which the bank seeks to link performance during a 
performance measurement period with levels of remuneration. 

a) The factors taken in to account for the annual review and revision in the variable pay and 
performance bonus are: 

► The performance of the Bank 
► The performance of the business unit 
► Individual performance of the employee 
► Other risk perceptions and economic considerations. 

The criteria for identification of MR Ts are subject to the following: 

The persons who satisfy the qualitative criteria and any one of the quantitative criteria as detailed 
below: 

(I) Standard Qualitative Criteria: 
• Relate to the role and decision-making power of staff members (e.g., General manager, member 
of management body) having jointly or individually, the authority to commit significantly to risk 
exposures, etc. 

and 
(II) Standard Quantitative Criteria: 
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• Their total remuneration exceeds a certain threshold (to be recommended by MD & CEO to 
NRC for approval); the determination of which may be done prudently by the bank, 

or 
• They are included among the 0.3% of staff with the highest remuneration in the bank, 

or 
• Their remuneration is equal to or greater than the lowest total remuneration of senior 
management and other risk-takers. 

MD & CEO is considered as Material Risk Taker, whose compensation wi!L.be guided by the 
provisions applicable to WTD/CEO as per the policy. However the Board, on recommendation of 
NRC, will specify additional Material Risk Takers (MR Ts) whose actions have a material impact 
on tl1e risk exposure of the bank from time to time. 

e) A discussion of the bank's policy on deferral and vesting of variable remuneration and 
a discussion of the bank's policy and criteria for adjusting deferred remuneration before 
vesting and after vesting. 

► Variable Pay 
In order to have a proper balance between the cash and share-linked components in the variable pay, 
the variable pay are to be structured in the form of share-Jinked instrument (including Cash-linked 
Stock Appreciation Rights (CSARs )), or a mix of cash and share-linked instruments. Only in cases 
where tl1e compensation by way of share-linked instruments is not permitted by law/regulations, the 
entire variable pay can be in cash to be exercised. 

The assessment of the variable pay will be based on 'Key Performance Indicators' (KP!) achievement 
ofrespective whole-time directors/ Chief Executive Officers I Material Risk Takers (MR Ts). 

a. Limit on Variable Pay: 

A. For Whole-Time Directors and Chief Executive Officers 
i. In compliance to the RBI Guidelines and other applicable rules and regulations 

at least 50%, should be variable and paid on the basis of individual, business­
unit and firm0wide measures that adequately measure performance. The total 
variable pay shall be limited to a maximum of 300% of the fixed pay (for the 
relative performance measurement period). 

ii. In case variable pay is up to 200% of the fixed pay, a minimum of 50% of the 
variable pay; and in case variable pay is above 200%, a minimum of 67% of 
the variable pay should be via non-cash instruments. 

iii. In the event that an executive is barred by statute or regulation from grant of 
share-linked instruments, his/her variable pay will be capped at I 50% of the 
fixed pay, but sha!l not be Jess than 50% of the fixed pay. 

iv. The deterioration in the financial performance of the bank should generally 
lead to a contraction in the total amount of variable compensation, which can 
even be reduced to zero. 

B. For Material Risk Takers (MRTs) 

i. In compliance to the RBI Guidelines and other applicable rules & regulations 
50% of total pay for all MR Ts should be variable pay and paid on the basis of 
individual, business-unit and firm-wide measures that adequately measure 
performance. >J 
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ii. 50% of the variable pay should be via non-cash instruments. 
iii. The deterioration in the financial performance of the bank should generally 

lead to a contraction in the total amount of variable compensation, which can 
even be reduced to zero. 

The Board willfrom time to time specify the Material Risk Takers (MR Ts). 

b. Deferral of Variable Pay 

(i) For senior executives, including WTDs, and other employees who are MRTs, a minimum 
of 60% of the total variable pay must invariably be under deferral arrangements. Further, if 
cash component is part of variable pay, at least 50% of the c.ash • bonus should also be 
deferred. 

(ii) However, in cases where the cash component of variable pay is under Rs.25 lakh, deferral 
requirements is not applicable. 

c. Period of Deferral Arrangement 
The deferral period should for a period three years. This would be applicable to both the 
cash and non-cash components of the variable pay arrangements. 

d. Vesting: 
Deferred remuneration should be spread out over the course of the deferral period on a pro rata basis 
as follows: 

• not more than 33.33 % of the total deferred variable pay should vest at the end of first year. 
• Further, not more than 33.33 % of total deferred variable pay should vest at the end of second 

year. 

Additionally, vesting should not take place more frequently than on a yearly basis to ensure a proper 
assessment of risks before the application of ex post adjustments. 

In case of employee's death or permanent disability, whole of the deferred variable pay (Cash 
component) shall immediately vest in the employee's legal heirs, or the employee, as the case maybe. 

e. Share-linked Instruments 
Such instruments shall be included as a component of variable pay. Norms for grant of share-linked 
instruments should be framed by banks in conformity with relevant statutory provisions and should 
form part of the bank's compensation policy. The details of share-linked instruments granted should 
also be disclosed in terms of the disclosure requirements stipulated in these Guidelines. Share-linked 
instruments should be fair valued on the date of grant by the bank using Black-Scholes model. 
Malus / Clawback 

(a)The deferred compensation should be subject to malus/clawback arrangements in the event of 
subdued or negative financial performance of the bank and/or the relevant line of business in any 
year. 

(b) A set of situations as detailed below are hereby identified, which require the invocation of the malus 
and clawback clauses that may be applicable as detailed below: 

i) Applying of Mal us / Clawback arrangement on entire variable pay on occurrence of the 
following Situations: 

• identified fraud / misconduct by the executive (whole-time directors, Chief 
Executive Officers/ Material Risk Takers (MR Ts)) pertaining to the corresponding 
period for which the clause to be applied. 
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ii) Applying of Malus / Clawback atrangement on unvested portion of deferred variable pay on 
occurrence of the following situation: 

• Reporting of operating loss or more than 50% fall in operating profit in any year 

iii) Applying of Mal us clause on unvested portion of deferred variable pay on occurrence of the 
following situation: . 

• Wherever the assessed divergence in bank's provisioning for Non-Performing Assets 
(NPAs) or asset classification exceeds the prescribed threshold for public disclosure 
as detailed below: (As referred in RBI circular No. 
DBR.BP,BC.No.32/21.04.018/2018-!9 dated April I, 2019, as amended from time to 
time), 

a. the additional provisioning for NP As assessed by RBI exceeds IO per cent of the 
reported profit before provisions and contingencies for the reference period, and 

b. the additional Gross NP As identified by RBI exceed 15 per cent of the published 
incremental Gross NP As for the reference period 

Further, in such situations, no proposal for increase in variable pay (for the assessment year) shall be 
entertained. In case the bank's post assessment Gross NPAs are less than 2.0%, these restrictions will 
apply only if criteria for public disclosure are triggered either on account of divergence in 
provisioning (clause (a) or both provisioning (clause (a) and asset classification (Clause (b). 

Any other act detrimental to the interest of the Bank including and not restricted to violation of Code 
of Conduct, violation of Framework for dealing with Conflict of Interest, violation of rules and 
regulations of the Bank, failure to discharge fiduciruy and regulatory duties - and in respect of which 
the Bank would reserve the right to institute appropriate civil, criminal or other proceedings at the 
risks, costs and consequences of such individual's, 

As part of the criteria for the application of mauls and claw back, the following period during which 
malus and/or clawback can be applied will be 36 months from application of the clause. covering at 
least deferral and retention periods (a period of time after the vesting of instruments which have been 
awarded as variable pay during which they cannot be sold or accessed) 

Members of staff engaged in financial and risk control, including internal audit, should be 
compensated in a manner that is independent of the business areas they oversee and commensurate 
with their key role. in the bank. Effective independence and appropriate authority of such staff are 
necessruy to preserve the integrity of finru1cial and risk management's influence on incentive 
compensation. Back office and risk control employees play a key role in ensuring the integrity of risk 
measures. If their own compensation is significantly affected by short-tem1 measures, their 
independence may be compromised. If their compensation is too low, the quality of such employees 
may be insufficient for their tasks and their authority may be undermined. The mix of fixed and 
variable compensation for control function personnel should be weighted in favour of fixed 
compensation. Therefore, the requirement of minimum 50% of total compensation to be paid in the 
form of variable pay will not be applicable for this category of staff. However, a reasonable 
proportion of compensation has to be in the form of variable pay, so that exercising the options of 
malus and/or clawback, when warranted, is not rendered infructuous. 

For calculating the Variable Pay of Risk Control and Compliance Staff the 'Key Perfom1ance 
.c,:":<·"':>-:::.::, Indicators' (KP!) will be totally different and the modalities of the sam • , ·-· ded 
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t) Description of the different forms of variable remuneration (i.e. cash and types of share 
linked instruments) that the bank utilizes and the rationale for using these different 
forms. 

For Material Risk Takers 

both cash and non-cash Performance Linked Incentive Schemes to those employees who 
are eligible for incentives., 

In this regard the Committee is empowered to: 

i) Draw up terms and conditions and approve the changes, if any, to the Performance 
Linked Incentive schemes; 

ii) Moderate the scheme on an ongoing basis depending upon the circumstances and link 
the same with the recommendations of Audit Committee; 

iii) Coordinate the progress of growth of business vis -a- vis the_business parameters laid 
down by the Board and Audit Committee and effect such improvements in the scheme as 
are considered necessary; 

iv)On completion of the year, finalize the criteria of allotment of marks to ensure 
objectivity/equity. 

v) To identify Material Risk Takers (MRTs) as per the recommendations made by MD & 
CEO and to fix variable pay and other terms of payment including component (Cash and 
non-cash), deferment and divergence clause in line with compensation policy and other 
RBI guidelines and other policies and guidelines of the bank. 

For Others 

The Board will from time to time specify the Risk Control and Compliance Staff. 
,•,i-: 

a) Based on the recommendations of the Committee, Board may fix the variable pay not 
exceeding 50% of the fixed pay in a year. Within this ceiling, at higher levels of 
responsibility, the proportion of variable pay will be higher. The variable pay may be in cash, 
or stock linked instruments or a mix of both. 

b) 'Variable pay' means the compensation as fixed by the Board on recommendation of the 
Committee, which is based on the performance appraisal of an employee in that role, that is, 
how well they accomplish their goals. It may be paid as: 
i. Performance Linked Incentives' to those employees who are eligible for incentives. 
ii. Ex-gratia for other employees who are not eligible for Performance linked Incentives. 
iii. Bonus for those staff members who are eligible for bonus under the Payment of Bonus 

Act, 1965 
iv. Any other incentives, by whatever name called having the features similar to the 

above. 
c) The Board may adopt principles similar to that enunciated for WTDs/CEOs, as appropriate, 

for variable pay-timing, Malus/Clawback, guaranteed bonus and hedging. 

d) Employee Stock Option Scheme/Employee Stock Option Plan as may be framed by the Board 
from time to time in conformity with relevant statutory provisions and SEBI guidelines as 
applicable. 
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[{ in Crore] 
. 

2022-23 2021-22 
(a) i. Number of meetings held by the 10 12 

Quantitative Remuneration Committee during the 
disclosures financial year 

ii. Remuneration paid to its members 0.15 0.21 
(b) i. Number of employees having I I 

received a variable remuneration 
award during the financial year. 

ii. Number and total amount of sign-on 
awards made during the financial 
year. 

0 Number Nil Nil 
0 Total amount 

iii. Details of guaranteed bonus if any Nil Nil 
iv. Details of severance pay, in addition Nil Nil 

to accrued benefits, if anv. 
(c) (i) Total . amount of outstanding deferred ESOS:0.88 Nil 

remuneration, split into cash, shares and Cash:0.38 
share-linked instruments and other 
forms. 

(ii) Total amount of deferred remuneration 
oaid out in the financial vear. Nil Nil 

(d) Breakdown of amount of remuneration 
awards for the financial year to show fixed 
and variable, deferred and non-deferred. 

i. Fixed* 1.66 1.65 
ii. Variable 1.50 0.13 

• Deferred 1.12 Nil 
• Non Deferred 0.38 0.13 

* Excluding PF and Gratuity 
. 

(e) (i) Total amount of outstanding deferred ESOS:0.88 Nil 
remuneration and retained remuneration Cash:0.38 
exposed to ex post explicit and / or 
implicit adjustments. 

(ii) Total amount of reductions during the Nil 
financial year due to ex- post explicit Nil 
adjustments. 

(iii) Total amount of reductions during the Nil Nil 
financial year due to ex- post implicit 
adiustments. 

(f) Number of MR Ts identified. l* !* 
(g) • Number of cases where malus Nil 

has been exercised. 

• Number of cases where Nil Nil 
clawback has been exercised. 

• Number of cases where both Nil 
malus and clawback have 

-;_'>-.. been exercised. - -
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General (h) The mean pay for the bank as a whole 
Quantitative ( excluding sub-staff) 0.10 0.09 
Disclosure and 

The deviation of the pay of each of its 
WTDs1 from the mean pay. 1.93 1.70 

1Gross remuneration paid to MD & CEO is 
considered for this purpose, which 
excludes the provisions made for gratuity 
and leave benefits as they are determined 

. 

on an actuarial basis for the Bank as a 
whole 

*Mr. Murali Ramakrishnan, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer is identified as MRT 

14. Other Disclosures 
a) Business ratios 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 1 6.86% 6.57o/c 

(ii) Non-interest income as a percentage to Working Funds 1 

0.77% 
l.03o/c 

(iii)Cost of Deposits 4.35% 4.75'¼ 

(iv)Net Interest Margin 3.30% 2.62o/c 

(v) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 1 1.43% l.24o/c 

(vi) Return on Assets [Based on Working Fund] 1 0.73% 0.04o/c 

(vii) Business (Customer Deposits plus Advances) per employee 2• 3 
17.24 16.48 

({ in Crore) 

(viii) Profit per employee 2 ({ In Crore) 0.082 0.005 

1. For the purpose of computmg the ratio, Workmg Fund represents the average of total assets as 

reported in Fonn X to RBI under Section 27 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. 
2. For the purpose of computing the ratios number of employees (excluding Part time employees) 

as on Balance Sheet date is considered. 
3. For the purpose of this ratio, business per employee has been recorded as gross advance plus 

deposits (excluding interbank deposits). 

b) Bancassurance Business 
Income from Bancassurance Business acquired during the FY: [~. in Crore] 

SI. Nature of Income March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
No. 

I 
From Selling Life Insurance 43.88 
Policies 27.89 

i. Traditional/Regular 41.48 25.12 

ii.Single 1.25 1.16 

iii. ULIP Regular 1.15 1.61 

2 From Selling Non-Life Insurance 8.12 - 6.49 

~~, 
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Policies 
i.General Insurance 3.74 3.36 
ii.Stand-alone Health Insurance 4.38 3.13 

3 
From Selling Govt. Security 

0.05 Schemes (PMJJBY & PMSBY) 0.17 

4 Others Nil Nil 

5 Total 52.05 34.55 

c) Marketing and Distribution 
Banks has received following fees/remuneration in respect of the marketing and distribution function 
(excluding Bancassurance business) undertaken by the bank. [t. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Centralized Direct Debit Services 2.87 3.48 

NPS 0.26 0.19 

APY/NPS -Lite 0.25 0.43 

Demat 0.19 0.22 

Sibertrade 0.90 1.21 

Mutual Funds 2.97 l.94 

Capital Gain Bonds 0.05 0.04 

ASBA 0.07 0.07 

SGB 0.18 0.19 

PIS 0.64 0.44 

Travel Card 0.37 0.14 

SBI-South Indian Bank Co-branded Credit card 0.22 0.35 

Total Income- 8.97 8.70 

d) Priority sector lending certificates [t. in Crore] 

SI No. Type of PSLCs March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Purchase Sale Purchase Sale 

I PSLC - Agriculture 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 

2 PSLC - Small and Marginal 
0.00 5100.00 0.00 3300.00 

Farmers 
3 PSLC - Micro Enterprises 750.00 0.00 745.00 0.00 

4 PSLC - General 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,800.00 

Total 750.00 5100.00 745.00 12,700.00 
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e) Provisions and Contingencies 
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and 
Loss Account: [~ in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Provision for NP As (including write off, excluding technical 

623.07 1,161.40 
write off) 

Provision for NPis (137.54) (7.91) 
Provision for taxes (Net of write back) 1 258.38 (5.95) 
Deferred Tax (net) 213.00 (131.02) 
MAT Credit (138.26) -
Provision for Standard Assets (58.61) 175.57 
Provision for Restructured Advances (0.05) 1.22 
Provision for FITL (22.17) 69.67 
Provision for unhedged foreign currency exposures 1.66 (1.06) 
Provision for Non-Banking Asset' (0.71) (62.74) 
Provision for Fraud / Other impaired assets (6.53) 3.41 
TOTAL 732.24 1,202.59 

1. Based on favourable Income Tax orders received during the financial year, the net excess provision for tax 
held in books amounting to ,54.81 Crore (Previous year < 69.60 Crore) has been written back. 
2 The Bank had acquired certain land parcels under a partial Debt Asset Swap transaction ("DAS") in earlier 
years aggregating n 10 Crores and classified them as "Non~Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims" 
in·the Balance Sheet. During the FY 2022-23 Bank had sold certain properties and W.71 Crore (Previous year 

• < 62.74 Crore) (after adjusting the expenses) was credited back to the provision . 

. • f) Implementation ofIFRS converged Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India has notified the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 on February 16, 2015. Further, a Press Release was issued by the 
MCA on January 18, 2016 outlining the roadmap for implementation of Indian Accounting Standards 
(IND AS) converged with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for banks. As per earlier 
instructions, banks in India were required to comply with the IND AS for financial statements for 
accounting periods beginning from April 01, 2018 onwards, with comparatives for the periods ending 
March 3 I, 2018 or thereafter. Progressing towards IND AS, the Bank had prepared pro forma 
financials as on June 30, 2017 as per extant regulatory guidelines and submitted the same to the RBI. 
On April 05, 2018, the RBI had announced deferment of implementation date by one year with IND 
AS being applicable to banks for accounting periods beginning April 01, 2019 onwards. In preparation 
for the same, the Bank has been submitting quarterly pro-forma financials to the RBI from quarter 
ended June 30, 2018.On March 22, 2019, the RBI has announced deferment of the implementation of 
IND AS by banks till further notice. However, the Bank continues to submit to the RBI proforma 
financials on half year basis 

" Pavment of DICGC Insurance Premium r~. in Crorel 
SI. Particulars 
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
i) Payment ofDICGC Insurance Premium (excl. 105.25 99.69 

GST) 
ii) Arrears in payment ofDICGC premium 0,00 0.00 
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h) Disclosure of facilities granted to directors and their relatives 
Bank has not extended any fund or non-fund (guarantees, Letter of Credit, etc) facilities to directors, 
their relatives, companies or firms in which they are interested for the Financial year 2022-23 as per 
section 20 of BR Act, 1949. 

i) Details of Single Countcrparty Limit / Limit for Group of Connected Counterparties 
exceeded by the Bank 

RBI has prescribed limits linked to bank's eligible capital base in respect of exposure to single counter 
party and group of com1ected counter parties. During the year ended March 3 I, 2023 and March 3 I, 
2022, the Bank was within the limits prescribed by the RBI. 

l 
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B. Additional Disclosnre 

I.Details of Single Borrower Limit, Gronp Borrower Limit exceeded by the Bank 
As on March 31, 2023, the bank has not exceeded the credit exposure to single borrower and group 
borrowers limit as per prudential exposure limit prescribed by RBI. 

2.Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of Advances: 
[<. in Crore] 

Particulars 
Dorin!! FY 2022-23 Dorin!! FY 2021-22 

No of accounts I Amount No of Accounts I Amount 
MSME Restructured Accounts Nil I Nil 177 I . 657.74 
As permitted by RBI v1de its Circular DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January I, 
2019, DOR.No.BP.BC.34/21.04.048/2019-20 dated February II, 2020, DOR.No.BP. 
BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 06. 2020 and DOR.STR.REC.12/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 
May 05, 2021 the bank has not restructured any accounts during the year (Previous year 177 
accounts). Additional Standard Asset provision of Nil (Previous year '%7.87 crore) is maintained 
in the books towards such accounts. 

3.Disclosure relating to tax 
a) Provision for taxes during the year: [<. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Current Tax (net of write back) 258.38 (5.95) 

Deferred Tax (net) 213.00 (131.02) 

MAT Credit (138.26) 0.00 

Total 333.12 (136.97) 
Tax provision is created in the books after adjusting for permanent differences in Income tax, accounting of 
MAT credit and deferred tax assets/liability. Based on favourable Income Tax orders received during the 
financial year, the excess provision for tax held for different assessment years in the books of account as on 
the balance sheet date amounting to a net sum of ,54.81 Crore (Previous year < 69.60 Crore) has been 
written back. 

b) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 
Other Assets include deferred tax asset and the breakup of the same is shown below: [<. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Deferred Tax Asset (A) 
Provisions for Loans/Investments/ others 324.82 370.86 

Fixed Assets: on difference between book balances 8.40 3.11 

and tax balance of WDV of fixed assets 

Total (A) 333.22 373.97 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) 
Special Reserve created u/s 36(l)(viii) oflncome 167.52 139.56 

Tax Act 
Interest accrued but not due on investments 144.29 0.00 

Total (B) 311.81 139.56 

Deferred Tax Asset (net) (A-B) 21.41 234.41 
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4. Movement in provision for debit card reward points: [,. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Provision at the beginning of the year 2.33 0.71 
Provision made during the year 4.28 4.51 
Reductions during the year 3.10 2.89 

Provision at the end of the year 3.51 2.33 

5. Movement in provision for other contingencies: [,. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Provision at the beginning of the year 20.32 17.38 

Incremental expense during the year 21.85 3.11 
Redemption during the year 19.14 0.17 

Provision at the end of the year 23.03 20.32 

6. Letter of Comfort (LoCs) issued by Banks: 
The Bank has not issued any reportable Letter of Comfort on behalf of subsidiaries during the year 
ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively. 

7. Inter-bank participation with risk sharing 
The aggregate amount of participation purchased by the Bank, shown as advances as per regulatory 
guidelines, outstanding as of March 31, 2023 was at. 1300.00 Crores (Previous Year: atl,300.00 
Crore). 

8. Fixed Assets 
a) Fixed Assets as per Schedule 10 include Intangible Assets relating to Software and System 

Development Expenditure which are as follows: [,. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

Gross Block 
At the beginning of the year 208.98 175.90 

Additions during the year 3.25 33.08 

Deductions during the year 0.25 -
Closing Balance 211.98 208.98 

Depreciation / Amortisation 
At the beginning of the year 135.16 106.60 

Charge for the year 29.66 28.56 

Deductions during the year - -
Depreciation to date 164.83 135.16 

Net Block 47.15 73.82 
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9. Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments. 

The company has provided various share based payment schemes to its employees. As on March 
31, 2023, the following schemes were in operation; 

Tranche 12 Tranche 11 Tranche 8 
Date of grant 01.03.2023 23.04.2022 06.12.2017 
Date of Board approval 01.03.2023 . 23.04.2022 06.12.2017 
Date of Shareholders 12-07-2022 12-07-2022 18.08.2008 
approval 
Number of options ll,06,194 3,99, 171 43,04,710 
granted 
Method of settlement Equity Equity Equity 
Vesting period 0 I. 03 .2024 to 23.04.2023 to 06.12.2019 to 

01.03.2026 23.04.2025 06.12.2021 
Exercise period (for all The Grantee will be The Grantee will be Eligible to exercise the 
Tranches) permitted to exercise permitted to exercise options during any one 

their Options within their Options within of the four specific 
five years from the five years from the periods (i.e., within 30 
date of vesting date of vesting days after the end of 

each quarter) within one 
year from the date of 
vesting. 

Manner of Vesting (for 30%, which will be 30%, which will be In a graded manner over 
all Tranches) vested on completion, vested on a 5 year period with 

of I st year from the completion, of I st 30%, 30% and 40% of 
date of grant. year from the date of the grants vesting in 

grant. each year commencing 
30%, which will be from the end of Syears 
vested on completion, 30%, which will be from the grant date. 
of 2nd year from the vested on 
date of grant. completion, of 2nd 

year from the date of 
40%, which will be grant. 
vested on completion, 
of 3rd year from the 40%, which will be 
date of grant vested on 

completion, of 3rd 
year from the date of 
grant 

Bank has changed its accounting policy from the intrinsic value method to the fair value method as 
per Black - Scholes model for all share-linked instruments granted after 31 March, 2021. 

ef 
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Activity in the options outstanding under the ESOS 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Options Weighted average Options Weighted average 

exercise price (at) exercise price (at) 
Options outstanding at the 

1,005,872 18.72 1,797,019 
beginning of the year 

18.72 

Options granted during the - -year 15,05,365 14.34 
Options exercised during the - - - -year 
Forfeited / lapsed during the 

7,91,147 18.72 
year 10,05,564 18.72 
Options outstanding at the 

1,005,872 18.72 
end of the year 15,05,673 14.34 
Options Exercisable 308 18.72 1,005,872 18.72 

Details of exercise price for stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2023 
Particulars Exercise price Option Number of Remaining 

per share (at) Premium options contractual life of 
outstanding options (in years) 

Tranche 8 18.72 NA 308 0.20 
Tranche 11 8.35 3.29 399171 2.16 
Tranche 12 16.50 6.78 1106194 3.02 

Details of exercise price for stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2022 

Particulars Exercise price per Number of options Remaining contractual 
share (at) outstanding life of options (in years) 

Tranche 8 18.72 1,005,872 0.68 

Effect of the ESOS on the profit and loss account and on its financial position: [at. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Opening of ESOS Liability 1.29 2.31 
Liability on account of ESOS issued 0.88 0.00 
Reversal on account of Exercise 0.00 0.00 
Reversal on account of lapsed/forfeiture (1.29) (1.02) 
Total Employee compensation cost pertaining to ESOS 0.88 1.29 
Opening Deferred Compensation Cost 0.00 0.22 
Deferred compensation cost on ESOS issued 0.88 0.00 
Compensation Cost pertaining to ESOS amortized 

(0.1 !) (0,22) 
during the year 

Reversal on account of lapse/ forfeiture 0.00 0.00 
Deferred compensation cost 0.77 0.00 
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Impact of fair value method on net profit and on EPS 
Had compensation cost for the ESOS outstanding being determined based on the fair value approach 
instead of intrinsic value method, the Bank's net profit and earnings per share would have been as 
indicated below: [at. in Crore] 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Net Profit as reported 775.09 44.98 
Proforma Net profit based on fair value approach 775.09 45.00 
Basic EPS as reported (at) 3.70 0.21 

Basic EPS (Proforma)( at) 3.70 0.22 
Diluted EPS as reported(at) .. 3.70 0.21 
Diluted EPS (Proforma)( at) 3.70 0.22 

In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the 
management which has been relied upon by the auditors. 

SI 
No 

I 

2 

,3 

10. Related party disclosure: 
The related parties of the bank are broadly classified as: 

a. Subsidiary 

SI. No. Name of the Enti Nature of Relationshi 
I SIB Operations and Services Limited Wholl Owned Subsidi ( WOS) 

b. Key Management Personnel (As per AS 18) -MD & CEO 

SI. No. -Name of the Key Management Relative of the Key Management 
• Personnel Personnel 

1 Mr. Murali Ramakrishanan, • Mangala Santhanam 
Managing Director and CEO • Charumathv Murali 

Related Party Transaction Summary for the Financial year ended 31.03.2023 
(Rs. In Crore) 

Value of the In case monies are dne 
Details of counter Type of related related to either party as a 
party party transaction party result of the 

Value of the transaction transaction 
related party during the 
transaction as reporting 

Opening 
Relationship of the 

approved by the period (for 
Balance 

Closing 
Audited the Balance (as 

counterparty with the 
Committee Financial 

(ason 
on March 

listed entity 
year ended 

April 1, 
31, 2023) 

March 31, 2022 

2023) 

Wholly owned 
Income received for 
providing Note 6 

subsidiary (WOS) 
management service 

1.2, 0.20 0.81 

Wholly owned 
Income received for 
providing other Note 6 

subsidiary (WOS) 
services 

0.02 0.002 0.002 

Wholly owned Expense paid for 
Note 6 

.:,,_ subsidiary (WOS) HR services 9.31 0.28 1.0' 

ef 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part ofReformatte"d Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

provided by WOS 

4 Directors Sitting Fees (WOS) 
0.0 0.004 

5 Subsidiary Directors Interest received 
0.001 - . 

6 Subsidiary Directors Interest Paid 
0.09 - -

7 Subsidiary Directors Deposits Note 5 
1.38 1.22 1.38 

8 
Subsidiary Directors' 

nterest received 
Relatives 0.003 - -

9 
Subsidiary Directors' 

Jeposits Note 5 Relatives 4.632 4.45 4.63 

10 
Subsidiary Directors' 

nterest Paid 
Relatives 0.18 - . 

KMPs including MD ~s per Bank's 
nternal 

II &CEO and Subsidiary Remuneration paid 
Policies/approved 4.00 Directors - . 
by Regulator 

Sitting Fees 

12 Directors including 
honorarium to 2.r - . 
Chairman 

13 Directors Deposits Note 5 1.78 
2.10 1.78 

14 Directors nterest received 
0.0( - . 

15 Directors Interest Paid 
0.12 - . 

16 
KMPs including MD 

Deposits Note 5 11.09 &CEO 0.04 I 1.0' 

17 
KMPs including MD 

Interest received 
&CEO o.o, -

18 
KMPs including MD Interest Paid 
&CEO 0.4" -
KMPs including MD 

ESOS grant 
19 &CEO and Subsidiary 

outstanding(Nos.) 
Refer Note No 8 

15,05,365.00 10,476.00 15,05,365.0( 
Directors 

20 
Relative/ Interested 

Deposits Note 5 11.22 company- Directors 11.87 11.2: 

21 
Relative/ Interested nterest Paid 
company- Directors 0.64 - . 

22 
Relative/ Interested 

Interest received 
company- Directors o.oo: - . 

23 
Relative of KMPs & Deposits Note 5 0.80 MD&CEO 0.61 0.8( 



24 

25 

26 
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Relative of KMPs & 
Interest Paid 

MD&CEO 0.0( " . 

MD&CEO savings 
0.00' 0.19 0.00' 

Relative MD & CEO ~avings 
0.01 0,01 0.01 

Note: 
I) Transactions with WOS are shown excluding GST and TDS 
2) In compliance with the guidelines given as per annexure to SEBI circular No 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2021/662 November 22, 20'.21, The South Indian Bank Ltd, 
being a listed bank, is not required to provide the disclosures with respect to related party 
transactions involving loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made or 
given by the bank. 

3) In compliance with the guidelines given as per annexure to SEBI circular No 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD l/CIR/P/2021/662 November 22, 2021 transactions such as acceptance 
of fixed deposits by banks, undertaken with related parties, at the terms uniformly 
applicable /offered to all shareholders/ public only are reported under deposit. 

4) The Bank, being a scheduled commercial bank, as per RBI circular RBI/DBR/2015-16/19 
dated March 03, 2016, has allowed additional interest of one per cent per annum, over and 
above the rate of interest mentioned in the schedule of interest rates on savings or a term 
deposits of bank's staff and their exclusive associations as well as on deposits of Chairman, 
Managing Director and such other Executives appointed for a fixed tenure. 

5) Value of the related party transaction for deposit is the balance in fixed deposit outstanding 
as on 31.03.2023. 

6) Regulation 23 of Listing regulations, as amended from time to time, grant exemptions from 
seeking approval of the Audit Committee of the Board for the transactions entered into by 
and between the holding company and its wholly owned subsidiary company, whose 
accounts are consolidated with such holding company and placed before the shareholders at 
the general meeting for approval. 

7) None of the Directors/ KMPs/ relatives are holding substantial shares/ securities of the 
Bank. 

8) As part of additional disclosure internal KMP data are also disclosed during the period 
ended 31.03.2023 in line with reporting made for the half year ended 30.09.2022. 

9) Transactions with common directors of subsidiary and Bank is shown under Directors. 
I0)Mr. Parayil George John Tharakan (DIN-07018289), has retired from the office as a Non­

Executive Independent Director of the Bank on November 24, 2022, upon completion of his 
8-year term, as per Section I 0A(2A) of Banking Regulation Act 1949, hence in the closing 
balance (Deposits) details of his/ his relatives' deposits were not included in reporting as the 
same will not be coming under the preview of RPT. 

11) The CSR activity of Bank is carried out by a trust formed by Bank in this regard. Since the 
Trust is acting on behalf of Bank and amount are spent as Bank's CSR expenditure, these 
transactions are not treated as RPT 
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11. Employee Benefits 

a) Provident Fund: 
Employees, who have not opted for pension plan are eligible to get benefits from provident fm1d, 
which is a defined contribution plan. Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon are 
paid on retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. Both the employee and 
the Bank contribute a specified percentage of the salary to the South Indian Bank Employees' 
Provident Fund. The Bank has no obligation other than the monthly contribution. 
The Bank recognized ,0.24 Crore (Previous Year: ,0.24 Crore) for provident fund contribution 
in the Profit and Loss Account. 

b) New Pension Scheme 
As per the industry level settlement dated April 27, 2010, employees who joined the services of 
the Bank on or after April 1, 2010 are not eligible for the existing pension scheme whereas they 
will be eligible for Defined Contributory Pension Scheme (DCPS) in line with the New Pension 
Scheme introduced for employees of Central Government. Employee shall contribute 10% of 
their Basic Pay and Dearness Allowance towards DCPS and the Bank will also make a 
contribution of 14%. There is no separate Provident Fund for employeesjoining on or after April 
I, 2010. 
The Bank recognized ,45.05 Crore (Previous Year: ,35.80 Crore) for DCPS contribution in the 
Profit and Loss Account. 

c) Retirement Benefits. 
i) The bank has recognized the following amounts in the Profit and loss account towards 

employee benefits as under: 

[,. in Crore] 
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Pension Fund 116.35 244.71 
Gratuity Fund 30.37 23.92 
Compensation for absence on privilege/sick/casual 54.63 60.36 
leave 

The employee benefits on account of pens10n, gratmty and Leave have been ascertamed on 
actuarial valuation in accordance with Accounting Standard - 15 prescribed under section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 

ii) Disclosure on amortization of expenditure on account of enhancement in family pension of 
employees of banks 

"Reserve Bank of India vide letter dated October 4, 2021 has permitted all member banks oflndian 
Banks' Association covered under the 11th Bipartite Settlement to amortize the additional liability 
on account of revision in family pension over a period not exceeding five years, beginning with the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. The bank has recognized the entire additional liability 
estimated at , 43 crores and opted to amortize the same over a period of seven quarters beginning 
with the quarter ended September 30, 2021. Accordingly, an amount of, 24.57 Crore (Previous 
year, 18.43 crore) has been written off during the year ended March 31, 2023 in respect of the said 
additional liability and the balance is , Nil. 
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The following table as furnished by Actuary sets out the funded status of gratuity/ pension plan and 
the amount recognized in the Bank's financial statements as at March 31, 2023. 

d) Changes in the defined benefit obligations [~. in Crore] 

Gratuity Plan Pension Plan 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Projected defined benefit obligation, 
254.48 

beginning of the year 
245.42 1020.37 920.62 

Current Service Cost 22.19 20.06 186.53 193.26 

Past Service Cost - - - -
Interest Cost 17.89 16.55 65.47 57.17 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss 8.85 4.13 (88.47) 82.37 

Benefits paid (33.15) (31.67) (199.08) (233.05) 

Projected defined benefit obligation, 
270.27 

end of the year 
254.49 984.81 1020.37 

Liability (net) of fair value of plan 
3.13 7.63 (5.69) 4.73 

asset at the end of the year 

e) Changes in the fair value of plan assets [Z. in Crore] 

Gratuity Plan Pension Plan 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of 
246.85 

the year 
243.49 1015.64 894.16 

Expected return on plan assets 18.63 17.07 68.34 65.89 

Employer's contributions 34.88 18.21 102.21 291.00 

Actuarial gain/ (loss) (0.06) (0.25) 3.40 (2.35) 

Benefits paid (33.15) (31.67) (199.08) (233.05) 

Fair value of plan assets, end of the 
267.14 246.85 990.50 1015.63 

year 

I) Net Employee benefit expense (recognized in payments to and provisions for employees) 
[~. in Crore] 

Gratuity Plan Pension Plan 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 

2023 2022 2023 2022 

Current Service Cost 22.19 20.06 186.53 193.26 

Past Service Cost - - - -
Interest Cost 17.89 16.55 65.47 57.17 

Expected return on plan assets (18.62) (17.07) (68.34) (65.89) 

Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in 
8.92 4.38 (91.87) 84.72 

the year 

Employee cost 30.37 23.92 91.78 269.26 

Unamortized cost . - - - -
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Total 30.37 23.92 91.78 269.26 

Actual return on plan assets 18.56 16.82 71.73 63.54 

g) Categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets 
Gratuity Plan Pension Plan 

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 2023 2022 

Government Securities (Central & - - - -State) 
High quality Corporate Bonds - - - -
Equity Shares of Listed Companies - - - -
Funds Managed by Insurer • 100% 100% 100% 100% 
Others (PSU & Special Deposits) - - - -
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 

• In the absence of detailed mformat10n regardmg plan assets which 1s funded with Insurance Compames, 
the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or amount for each category to 
the fair value of plan assets has not been disclosed. 

h) Experience adjustments 
(i) Gratuity 

Defined Benefit Obligations 
Plan Assets 
(Surplus)/Deficit 
Unamortized 

Net benefit expenses 

Experience adjustments (gain) / loss on 
Plari Liabilities 
Experience Adjustments gain/ (loss) on 
Plan Assets 

(ii) Pension 

Defined Benefit Obligations 
Plan Assets 
(Surplus)/Deficit 
Experience adjustments (gain) / loss on 
Plan Liabilities 
Experience Adjustments gain/ (loss) 
on Plan Assets 

[t. in Crore] 
March March March March March 

31, 2023 31,2022 31, 2021 31, 2020 31,2019 
270.27 254.49 245.41 232.65 216.44 

267.14 246.85 243.49 227.75 210.30 

3.13 7.63 1.92 4.90 6.14 

- - - - -
3.13 7.63 1.92 4.90 6.14 

9.16 
12.43 32.70 (7.48) 5.25 

0.06 
0.25 (0.97) 0.58 (1.49) 

[t. in Crore] 
March March March March March 

31,2023 31,2022 31, 2021 31,2020 31,2019 
984.81 1,020.37 920.62 801.56 700.22 

990.50 1,015.63 894.15 747.52 674.56 
(5.69) 4.73 26.47 54.05 25.66 

(88.47) 
82.37 138.80 42.33 (1.98) 

(3.40) 
2.35 (4.77) 5.86 (1.20) 
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i) Assumptions used by the actuary in accounting for Gratuity/ Pension/Compensation for 
absence 

Discount rate 
Expected rate ofreturn on plan assets 
Increase in compensation cost 

*Not applicable 
Notes: 

Gratuity Plan 

March March 
31,2023 31,2022 

7.53% 7.52% 
7.52% 7.21% 
6.00% 6.00% 

Pension Plan Compensation for • 
absence 

March March March March 31, 
31,2023 31,2022 31,2023 2022 

• 7.52% 7.27% 7.53% 7.52% 

7.27% 7.11% * * 
5.5% 5.5% 6.00% 6.00% 

(i) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the 
balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations. 

(ii) Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the average long term rate of return expected 
on investments of the funds during the estimated term of the obligations. 

(iii) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, taken in to account 
the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. 

j) Compensation for absence on Privilege/ Sick/ Casual Leave 
The charge on account of compensation for privilege / sick / casual leave has been actuarially 
determined and an amount oft54.63 Crore (Previous year t60.36 Crore) has been debited to Profit 
and Loss account. 
The above information is as certified by actuary and relied upon by the auditor. 

12.Micro Small and Medium Industries 
Under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises development Act 2006, certain disclosures are 
required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. There have been no 
reported cases of delays in payment to micro, and small enterprises or of interest payments due to 
delays in such payments. The above is based on information available with the Bank which has 
been relied on by the auditors. 

13.Segment reporting 
Business Segments have been identified and reported taking into account, the target customer 
profile, the nature of product and services, the differing risks and returns, the organization 
structure, the internal business reporting system and guidelines issued by RBI from time to time. 
The Bank operates in the following business segments; 
a) Treasury: 
The treasury segment primarily consists of interest earnings on investments portfolio of the bank, 
gains or losses on investment operations and earnings from foreign exchange business. The 
principal expenses of the segment consist of interest expense on funds borrowed and other 
expenses. Segmental expenses are allocated as per board approved policy. 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking: 
The Corporate I Whole sale Banking segment provides loans to corporate segment identified on 
the basis of RBI guidelines. Revenues of this segment consist of interest earned on Loans made to 

.;;r•;,icii,: ·:,,,~, orporate customers and the charges / fees earned from other banking services. The principal 
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expenses of the segment consist of interest expense on funds borrowed and other expenses. 
Segmental expenses are allocated as per board approved policy. 
c) Retail banking: 
The Retail Banking segment provides loans to non-corporate customers identified on the basis of 
RBI guidelines. Revenues of this segment consist. of interest earned on Loans made to non­
corporate customers and the charges / fees earned from other banking services. The principal 
expenses of the segment consist of interest expense on funds borrowed and other expenses. 
Segmental expenses are allo.cated as per board approved policy. 
In accord_ance with RBI circuiar DOR.AUT.REC.12/22.01.00I/2022-2023 dated April 07, 2022 
on establishment of Digital Banking Units, the Bank has presented 'Digital Banking' as sub­
segment of the Retail Banking. Segment. Assets of DBU consists of mainly credit card, loan 
against deposits opened through digital mode etc. 
d) Other Banking Operations: 
This segment includes income from para banking activities such as debit cards, third party product 
distribution and associated costs. Segmental expenses are allocated as per board approved policy. 
e) Unallocated 

All items that cannot be allocated to reportable segments are included in unallocated portion. 

Geographic segment 
The Bank operations are predominantly confined within one geographical segment (India) and 
accordingly this is considered as the only secondary segment. In accordance with RBI guidelines 
in regard to business segments of banks, the bank has determined the business segments and the 
required disclosures are as follows: 

Business 
Segments 

Particulars 

Revenue 
Result 

Segment 
Assets 

Assets 
Total Assets 
Segment 
Liabilities 

Liabilities 

Treasury 

2022-23 2021-22 

1088.00 1499.70 

(158.42) 18.51 

Corporate/ 
Wholesale Banking 
2022-23 2021-22 

2323.02 2065.04 

(101.70) (656.82) 

({. in Crore] 

Retail Banking 
Other Banking 

Operations 
Total 

2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22 

4083.76 3,710.05 551.03 345.85 8045.81 7,620.64 

291.65 392. 74 254.67 1108.21 (91.99) 

1108.21 (91.99) 

333.12 (136.97) 

775.09 44.98 

Other Information: 

104189.08 96,452.51 

3509.10 3599.91 

107698.18 1,00,052.42 

99397.06 93,243.68 

1626.54 955.61 

94,199.29 
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Business 
Segments 

Particulars 
Liabilities 

Treasury 
Corporate/ 

Wholesale Banking 
Retail Banking 

Other Banking 
Total 

2022-23 2021-22 

Since the Bank operates only in domestic segment, the requirement of disclosure regarding 
geographical segment is not applicable. 

*RBI's Master Direction on Financial Statements-Presentation and Disclosures, requires to sub­

divide 'Retail banking' into (a) Digital Banking (as defined in RBI Circular on Establishment of 
Digital Banking Units dated April 07, 2022) and (b) Other Retail Banking segment. Accordingly, 
the segmental results for retail banking segment for Q4 2022-23 is sub-divided as below. 

[<. in Crore] 

Segment Segment Segment Segment 
Revenue for Results (net of Assets as on Liabilities 

the year provisions) for 31.03.2023 as on 
ended the year ended 31.03.2023 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 
Retail Banking 
(i) Digital Banking 302.53 73.17 3017.67 2887.01 

( ii) Other Retail Bank in• 3781.23 902.41 36732.67 35142.10 

Segment information is provided as per the MIS available for internal reporting purposes, which 

include certain estimates/assumptions. The methodology adopted in compiling and reporting the 
above ieformation has been relied upon by auditors. 

14.Description of contingent liabilities* 

SI. Contingent liability Brief Description 

No . 

I Claims not acknowledged This includes liability on account of, and other legal cases filed against 

as debts the bank. The bank is a party to various legal proceedings in the ordinary 
course of business and these are contested by the Bank and are therefore 
subjudice. The Bank does not expect the outcome of these proceedings 
to have a material adverse impact on the Bank's financial position. 

2 Liability on account of The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts with interbank 

outstanding forward participants on its own account and for its customers. Forward exchange 

contracts contracts are commitments to buy or sell foreign currency at a future 
date at the contract rate. 

3 Guarantees on behalf of As a part of banking activities, the Bank issues Letter of Guarantees and 

constituents in India and documentary credit on behalf of its customers, with a view to augment 

outside India, the customer's credit standing. Through these instruments, the Bank 

Acceptances, undertakes to make payments for its customers' obligations, either 

endorsements and other directly or in case the customer fails to fulfill their financial or 
obligations performance obligations. 

4 Other items for which the Includes capital commitments and amount transferred to RBI under the 

bank is contingently liable Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF). 

• Also refer schedule -12 
_ The Bank's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Bank by the clients and proceedings 

~t1,;;;,~,,'~~nding with Income Tax authorities/ Service Tax Authorities. The Bank has reviewed all its 
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pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required 
and disclosed the contingent liabilities wherever applicable, in its Reformatted summary financial 
statements. The Management believes that the possibility of outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits in these cases is possible bnt not probable and hence no provision is required in 
these cases. However, the contingent liability has been disclosed with respect to these cases. 

IS.Provision for long term contracts 
The Bank has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts (including derivative 
contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the bank has reviewed and 
recorded adequate provision as required under any Law/Accounting Standards for material 
foreseeable losses on such long-term contracts (including derivative contracts) in the books of 
account and disclosed the same under the relevant notes in the Reformatted summary financial 
statements. 

16.Earnings Per Share 
The Bank reports basic and difated EPS in accordance with the Accounting Standard - 20 on 
"Earnings per Share" 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computation 
of basic earnings per share 209,27,41,018 209,27,41,018 
Potential equity shares arising out of the Employees Stock 
Option Scheme - -
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computation 
of diluted earnings per share 209,27,41,018 209,27,41,018 

Earnings used in the computation of basic earnings per share (< 
in Crore) 775.09 44.98 

Earnings used in the computation of diluted earnings per share 
(< in Crore) 775.09 44.98 
Nominal Value of share (in<) 1.00 1.00 
Basic earnings per share (in <) 3.70 0.21 
Effect of potential equity shares for ESOS - -
Diluted earnings per share (in <) 3.70 0.21 

17.Corporate social responsibility 

Operating expenses include< 1.86 Crore (Previous Year< 6.06 Crore) for the year ended March 31, 
2023 towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Bank has spent 2.02 % of its average net profit for the last three financial years as part of its CSR 
for the year ended March 3 I, 2023. The Bank is currently in the process of evaluating strategic 
avenues for CSR expenditure in order to deliver maximum impact. 
Details of amount spent during the year towards CSR are as under: 

For the year ended March 3 1, 2023 [<. in Crore] 

Paid Yet to be paid Total 
0.60 

j 
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I ii) For purposes other than (i) above 1.26 I -I 1.26 I 
For the year ended March 3 I, 2022 [t. in Crore] 

Paid Yet to be paid Total 
i) Construction/ Acquisition of any assets 3.65 - 3.65 
ii) For purposes other than (i) above 2.41 - 2.41 

18.Investor education and protection fund 

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Bank. 

19.Operating Leases 

Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognised as an expense in the Profit and 
Loss Account as per the lease terms. During the year an amount oft I 08.86 Crore (Previous year: t 
100.62 Crore) was charged to Profit and loss account. 

20.Disclosure as to Rule ll(e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 

The Bank, as part of its normal banking business grants loans and advances, makes investment, 
provides guarantees to and accept deposits and borrowings from its customers, other entities and 
persons. These transactions are conducted after proper due diligence and ensuring adherence to all 
regulatory requirements including "Know Your Customer" guidelines. 

Other than the transactions described above which are carried out in the normal course of business, 
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or deposits or any other sources or kinds of funds) by the Bank to or in any other persons or 
entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of 
the Bank ("Ultimate Beneficiaries"). The Bank has also not received any funds from any parties 
(Funding Party) with the understanding that the Bank shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries .. 

21. Proposed Dividend 

The Board of Directors has proposed a dividend of Rs.0.30 per Equity share (30%) (Previous year 
Nil) for the year ended March 31, 2023, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. In terms of revised Accounting Standard (AS) 4 'Contingencies and 
Events occurring after Balance Sheet date' as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs through 
amendments to Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, dated March 30, 
2016, proposed dividend including dividend distribution tax ofRs.62.78 Crore is not recognized as 
liability as on March 31, 2023. However, effect of the proposed dividend has been reckoned in 
determining capital funds in the computation of capital adequacy ratios as at March31, 2023. 



The South Indian Bank Limited 
Schedules forming part of Reformatted Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

22.Figures of the previous year have been regrouped to confonn to the current year presentation 
wherever necessary. 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
I Firm Registration No. 101961 W /W-100036 

• 
• enShah 

artner 
Membership No. 100052 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 
Chartered A countants 
ICAI Firm egistration No. 004610S 

Sreeva Gopalakrishnan 
Partner 
Membership No. 227654 
UDIN: 

Tbrissur 
21-02-2024 

Executive Vice President 

(:r/ 
Chief Financial Officer 

For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

~ 
PR Seshadri 

(Managing Director & 
CEO) 

(DIN : 07820690) 



M/s CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
5th Floor, Narain Chambers, 

Vile Parle - East 

Mumbai - 400 057 

To The Board of Directors of 

The South Indian Bank Limited 

M/s I( Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
41/3647 B, 1st Floor, Blue Bird Towers, 

Providence Road, 

Kechi - 682 018 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT 

Review Report on The Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have reviewed the accompanying Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of 

The South Indian Bank Limited (the "Bank") and its Subsidiary (the Bank and its Subsidiary, together referred 

to as "Group") as at and for the nine month period ended December 31, 2023, which comprise the unaudited 

interim condensed consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2023, the unaudited interim condensed 

consolidated statement of profit and loss and the unaudited interim condensed consolidated statement of 

cash flows for the nine month period ended December 31, 2023, and summary of select explanatory notes 

(collectively, the "Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Bank's management is responsible for preparation a.nd presentation of the Unaudited Interim Condensed 

Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India and 

the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Accounting Standard for "Interim Financial 

Reporting" (AS 25), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder, the relevant provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the circulars, guidelines and 

directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India {"RBI") from time to time ("RBI Guidelines"), and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to issue a report on the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 

based on our review. 

We conducted our review of the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement in 

accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 Review of Interim Financial Information 

Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity', issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. A review of the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement consists of making 

inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and 

other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with 

Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become 

aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit, Accordingly, we do not express an audit 

opinion. 



Our review primarily is conducted on the basis of review of the books of account and records of the Bank. 

We have also relied on the information and explanations furnished to us by the Bank and the returns as 

considered necessary by us for the review. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review conducted as stated above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 

that the accompanying Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statement have not been 

prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India and 

the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Accounting Standard for "Interim Financial 

Reporting" (AS 25), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder in so far as they apply to the Banking Companies and Circulars and Guidelines Issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India from time to time, or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Other Matter 

The Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include the unaudited interim financial 

statements of one subsidiary, whose financials statements / financial results/ financial information reflect 

total assets of Rs 2.90 crores as at December 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 10.45 crores and total net profit 

after tax of Rs. 0.34 crores for the year ended December 31, 2023 as considered in the Unaudited Interim 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been reviewed by another independent auditor 

whose report has been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the Unaudited Interim 

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 

in respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the reports of such auditors and the procedures performed by 

us. 

Restrictions on Use 

This report is addressed to and is provided to enable the Bank to include this report in the letter of Offer in 

connection with the rights issue, to be filed by the Bank with Securities and Exchange Board of India in 

accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and that these Unaudited Interim Condensed 

Consolidation Financial Statement may not be meaningful for any other purpose. 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants n R,g;rtraUo, ,,mbe,. ,O,%>W/W· W0036 

~ah 
Partner 

Membership No.100052 

UDIN: 24100052BKFAGH3607 

Place: Thrissur 

Date: February 21, 2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

Chartered Accountants 
ation Number: 004610S 

Partner 

Membership Number: 227654 

UDIN: 24227654BKFTGW7605 

Place: Thrissur 

Date: February 21, 2024 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 

UN AUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023 

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 
Caoital 
Employees' Stock Options Outstanding 
Reserves and Surolus 
Deposits 
Borrowings 
Other liabilities and provisions 
TOTAL 
ASSETS 
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 
Balances with banks and monev at call and short notice 
Investments 
Advances 
Fixed Assets 
Other Assets 
TOTAL 
Contingent Liabilities 
Bills for coJlection 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants CT""'-No '~''.' W /W•'-

P;rme;nai ' , , 

Membership No. 100052 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

countants 

egistralion No. 0046105 

( 

reevats Gopalakrishnan 
Partner 
Membership No. 227654 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

Asat 
December 31, 2023 

fin Crore 

209.27 
1.78 

7,185.42 
99,153.32 
4,212.54 
2,751.02 

1,13,513.35 

5,055.80 
1,823.36 

25,334.11 
75,339.87 

930.78 
5,029.43 

1,13,513.35 
37,523.96 

2,071.97 

-' Thomas Joseph. K 
Executive Vice 

President 

() 0 ,lfl 
~ 

As at 
December 31, 2022 

tin Crore 

209.27 
0.05 

6,140.61 
90,670.78 
4,772.72 
2,039.37 

1,03,832.80 

5,411.18 
1,407.35 

22,924.67 
67,920.21 

877.54 
5,291.85 

1,03,832.80 
23,572.48 

1,923.55 

For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

~ 
PR Seshadri 

(Managing Director & 
CEO) 

(DIN : 07820690) 





THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 

UN AUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 2023 

I. INCOME 
Interest Earned 
Other Income 
TOTAL 
II. EXPENDITURE 
Interest Exnended 
Oneratina- Exoenses 
Provisions and Contin'1"endes 
TOTAL 
III. PROFIT/LOSS 
Net ProfWT oss\ for the period 
Profit/ /Loss) brom,ht forward from nrevious vear 
TOTAL 
IV. APPROPRIATIONS 
Transfer to Statutorv Reserve 
Transfer to Caoital Reserve 
Transfer to/ (from\ Revenue and Other Reserve 
Transfer to SvecialReserve u/s 36l1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
Balance carried over to Un audited interim condensed consolidated Balance Sheet 
TOTAL 
EarninlYS ner share (Face value of ~ 1 per share) 
Basic 7in ~) 
Diluted /in <\ 

Selected explanat01y Notes (Provided below) 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Ch t ed Accountants 
rm Registration No. 101~61W /W-100036 

~ah ,, 

Membership No. 100052 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

countants 
egistration No. 0046105 

Sreevats Gopalakrishnan 
Partner 
Membership No. 227654 
UDIN: 

Tiuissur 
21-02-2024 

Nine Months ended 
December 31, 2023 

~inCrore 

6,338.13 
1,168.64 
7,506.77 

3,880.75 
2,191.42 

651.75 
6,723.92 

782.85 
224.53 

1,007.38 

-
-
-
-
-

1,007.38 
1,007.38 

' I 

Thomas Joseph. 
Executive Vice 

President 

3.74 
3.74 

Chief Fin ml Officer 

Nine Months ended 
December 31, 2022 

fin Crore 

5,260.22 
466.83 

5,727.05 

3,105.32 
1,675.17 

504.78 
5,285.27 

441.78 
-38.04 
403.74 

-
-
-
-
-

403.74 
403.74 

2.11 
2.11 

For and on behalf of 

Boarc 

PR Seshadri 
(Managing Director & 

CEO) 
IN : 07820690) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
UN AUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 

Amortisation of Premium on HTM Investments 

Provision for Depreciation / Non Performing Investments 

General Provisions against Standard Assets 

Provision/write off for Non Performing Assets 

Other Provisions 

Employee Stock Options expense 

Interest on Subordinated bonds 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of land, buildings and other assets 

Operating profit before working capital changes (A) 

Changes in working capital: 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Deposits 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other liabilities 

(Increase) / Decrease in Investments 

(Increase) / Decrease in Advances 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets 

Cash flow from operating activities before taxes (A+B) 

Direct Taxes paid 

Net cash flow from oneratin12: activities IC\ 

Cash flow from investing activities: 

Purchase of Fixed Assets/Capital Work~in-Progress 

Sale of Fixed Assets 

(Purchase)/Sale of Invesbnents (Held To Maturity) 

Net cash flow from investina activities ID\ 

Nine months Ended 

(B) 

"" 
"" * 

December 31, 2023 
Rs. in Cr 

1,136.30 

65.90 

210.64 

39.79 

(28.08) 

364.82 

(35.58) 

1.67 

132.17 

(0.68) 

1,886.95 

7,503.25 

360.84 

2,161.56 

(5,900.25) 

185.94 

4,311.34 

6,198.29 

(275.65) 

5,922.64 

(120.98) 

7.27 

(3,104.80) 

13,218.51 

\'1 \ Q>, '-- _.,, 
,~~'?(/ 

Nine months Ended 
December 31, 2022 

Rs. in Cr 

586.44 

64.20 

237.70 

273.30 

(40.37) 

489.29 

(7.35) 

0.05 

117.27 

(0.55) 

1,719.98 

1,529.04 

268.93 

(2,626.53) 

(8,416.12) 

1,183.95 

/8,060.73 

(6,340.75) 

(20.83) 

16,361.58 

(77.51) 

1.95 

635.37 

559.81 



Cash flow from financing activities: 

Dividend paid including Corporate Dividend Tax 

Net proceeds/(repayments) in borrowings 

Interest on Subordinated bonds 

Net cash flow from financing activities (E) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (C+D+E) 

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the period 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

artered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 101961W /W-100036 

• hah 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalarn Aiyer & Co 

Chartered A ountants 
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va s Gopalakrishnan 

Partner 
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(62.78) 

(2,781.32) 

(61.36) 

(2,905.461 

(201.33) 

7,080.49 

6,879.16 

Thomas Joseph. 
Executive Vice 

President 

~ 
Chief Financial Officer 

Jimm 

. 

1,478.23 

(61.36) 

1,416.87 

(4,384.90) 

11,203.43 

6,818.53 

For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

PR Seshadri 
(Managing Director & 

CEO) 
(DIN : 07820690) 



UN AUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED SEGMENT WISE RESULTS 
Rs in Cr 

Particulars Nine Months ended Nine Months ended 
31.12.2023 31.12.2022 
Unaudited Unaudited 

1. Segment Revenue 
a) Treasury 1,491.30 797.00 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 2,086.88 1,642.79 
c) Retail Banking 3,610.37 2,925.92 

(i) Digital Banking 494.63 
(ii) Otller Retail Banking 3,115.74 

d) Other Banking Operations 318.22 361.34 
Total 7,506.77 5,727.05 

Less : Inter seITTnent Revenue 
Net Income from Operations 7,506.77 5,727.05 

2. Segment Results (net of provisions) 
a) Treasury 102.85 (113.22) 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking (11.63) (101.82) 
c) Retail Banking 818.66 544.42 

(i) Digital Banking 97.54 
(ii) Other Retail Banking 721.12 

d) Other Banking Operations 225.95 256.27 
Total 1,135.83 585.65 
Less: unallocated exoenditurc /0,47\ 10.79) 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 1,136.30 586.44 
3. Segment Assets 

a) Treasury 27,028.85 24,591.74 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 41,803.71 36,223.99 
c) Retail Banking 40,882.34 39,769.12 

(i) Digital Banking 3,656.50 

(ii) Other Retail Banking 37,225.84 
d) Other Banking Operations 25.47 18.10 
e) Un allocated 3,772.98 3,229.85 
Total 1,13,513.35 1,03,832.80 

4. Segment Liabilities 
a) Treasury 25,465.42 23,335.34 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 39,781.54 34,786.93 
c) Retail Banking 38,903.40 38,190.46 

(i) Digital Banking 3,479.63 
(ii) Otl,er Retail Banking 35,423.77 

d) Other Banking Operations - -
e) Un allocated 1,968.30 1,170.19 

Total 1,06,118.66 97,482.92 
5. Capital Employed [Segment Assets - Segment Liabilities] 

a) Treasury 1,563.43 1,256.40 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 2,022.17 1,437.06 
c) Retail Banking 1,978.94 1,578.66 

(i) Digital Banking 176.87 
(ii) Otll,r Retail Banking 1,802.07 

d) Other Banking Operations 25.47 18.10 
e) Un allocated 1,804.68 2,059.66 

Total 7,394.69 6,349.88 



For the above segment reporting, the reportable segments are identified into Treasury, Corporate/Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking 
(including Digital Banking) and Other Banking Operations in Compliance with the revised RBI Guidelines. The Bank operates in India. 

RBI's Master Direction on Financial Statements-Presentation and Disclosures, requires to sub-divide 1Retail banking1 into (a) Digital Ba.nking 
(as defined in RBI Circular on Establishment of Digital Banking Units dated April 07, 2022) and (b) Other Retail Banking segment. 
Accordingly, the interim condensed consolidated segmental results for retail banking segment since March 2023 is shown above. Previous 
period figures have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable with current period figures. 

For and on behalf of 
In terms of our report attached Board of Directors 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

artered Accountants 
I Firm Registration No. 101961 W /W-100036 

. Hir Shah 
P tner 

embership No. 100052 
UDIN: 
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21-02-2024 
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Partner 
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Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

Thomas Joseph. K 
Executive Vice 

President 

~~ 

P R ,Seshadri 
(Managing Director & 

CEO) 
(DIN : 07820690) 



Selected explanatory Notes (Provided below) 
1 These Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared solely in connection with raising of funds 

through Rights Issue (the "Issue") of equity shares of face value of , 1 each (the "Equity Shares") of the bank, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclos-we Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended 
(hereinafter referred to as "the SEBI ICDR Regulations") 

2 The interim condensed consolidated Financial Results comprise the interim condensed standalone financial results of The South Indian Bank 
Ltd and it's subsidiary SIB Operations and Services Ltd, 

3 Group has consistently applied its significant accounting policies in the preparation of its interim condensed consolidated financial results 
during the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023 as compared to those followed for the year ended March 31, 2023, The above 
interim condensed consolidated results are prepared in accordance with the principles set out in Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated 
Financial Statements as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

4 Other Income includes Profit on sale of investments (net), provision for depreciation on investments, earnings from foreign exchange and 
derivative transactions, com.mission from non - fund based banking activities, income from sale of PSL Certificates, income from card 
business, recoveries from advances technically written off etc. 

s Other expense includes lns-wance, Rent, Repair, Depreciation, Communication expenses, Outsourced manpower charges, premium paid on 
PSLC p-wchase, CSR, ATM outsourcing, Card expenses etc. 

6 D-wing the quarter ended December 31, 2023, bank had identified certain irregularities in the nature of fraud at one of the branches and the 
loss is determined at Rs.28.63 Crore. Bank had provided the entire amount of Rs.28.63 Crore during the quarter ended December 3l, 2023. 

7 Previous period1s fig-wes have been regrouped/ reclassified., wherever necessary to conform to c-wrent period's classification and also the 
amounts / ratios for the previous period / year have been regrouped / reclassified pursuant to the requirement of Master Direction on 
Financial Statements - Presentation and Disclosure issued by Reserve Bank of India dated August 30, 2021, as amended and wherever 
considered necessary. 

8 Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Accormt 

Particulars 

Provision for NP As (includinP" write off, excludinQ: technical write offl 
Provision for NPis 
Provision for Income Tax 
Deferred Taxlnet\ 
Provision for Standard Assets 
Provision for Restructured Advances 
Provision for FITL 
Provision for unhedved forei .......... currenN exnosures 
Provision for Non-Banki1w Asset 
Provision for Fraud / Other imnaired assets 
TOTAL 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

tered Accountants 
irmRegistration No. 101961 W /W-100036 

Partner 
Membership No. 100052 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

' I 
va s Gopalakrishnan 

Partner 
Membership.No. 227654 
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Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

Rs in Cr 
Nine Months ended 

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 
Unaudited Unaudited 

364.82 489.29 
(2.87 (81.44 

252.42 194.41 
101.03 149.75 
(28.08 /40.37 
/0.00 0.00 

/55.05 15.9') 
(2.74 /0.50 
14.41 10.71 
26.63 (0.18 

651.75 504.78 
For and on behalf of 
Board\JDirectors -- ~ 

Thomas Jose P R Seshadri 
Executive Vice (Managing Director & 

President CEO) 

(: . VJ (DIN: 07820690) 

ChiefF~ 



M/s CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
5th Floor, Narain Chambers, 
Vile Parle - East 
Mumbai -400 057 

To The Board of Directors of 

The South Indian Bank Limited 

M/s K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, 
41/3647 B, 1st Floor, Blue Bird Towers, 
Providence Road, 
Kochi - 682 018 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT 

Review Report on The Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

We have reviewed the accompanying Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements of The 

South Indian Bank Limited (the "Bank") as at and for the nine month period ended December 31, 2023, which 

com prise the unaudited condensed standalone balance sheet as at December 31, 2023, the unaudited 

interim condensed standalone statement of profit and loss and the unaudited interim condensed standalone 

statement of cash flows for the nine month period ended December 31, 2023, and summary of select 

explanatory notes (collectively, the "Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements"). 

Management's Responsibility for the Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial 

Statements 

The Bank's management is responsible for preparation and presentation of the Unaudited Interim Condensed 

Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India and 

the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Accounting Standard for "Interim Financial 

Reporting" (AS 25), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder, the relevant provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the circulars, guidelines and 

directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") from time to time ("RBI Guidelines"), and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to issue a report on the Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements 

based on our review. 

We conducted our review of the Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in 

accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 Review of Interim Financial Information 

Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity', issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. A review of the Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements consists of making 

inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and 

other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with 

Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become 

aware of all significant matters that mig~t q,e.dde.qJifl~d in an audit. Accordin ress an audit 
. . / ·_, ___ '::> ., p \;, 

oprn1on. /:--,-- • <,(-'·\ 
,,·,( 1,:,1,:•:\I ra\i 
\\\~;' ,. ' ,~~/} 

>.-~t!f_1\~_c_'t/:/ 
.., __ _ 



Our review primarily is conducted on the basis of review of the books of account and records of the Bank. 

We have also relied on the information and explanations furnished to us by the Bank and the returns as 

considered necessary by us for the review. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review conducted as stated above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 

that the accompanying Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Information has not been 

prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India and 

the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Accounting Standard for "Interim Financial 

Reporting" (AS 25), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder in so far as they apply to the Banking Companies and Circulars and Guidelines Issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India from time to time, or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Restrictions on Use 

This report is addressed to and is provided to enable the Bank to include this report in the Letter of Offer in 

connection with the rights issue, to be filed by the Bank with Securities and Exchange Board of India in 

accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and that these Unaudited Interim Condensed 

Standalone Financial Statements may not be meaningful for any other purpose. 

UDIN: 24100052BKFAGG1508 
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Date: February 21, 2024 
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THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 

UN AUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023 

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 
Cauital 
Employees1 Stock Options Outstanding 
Reserves and Survh,1s 
Deposits 
Borrowings 
Other liabilities and provisions 
TOTAL 
ASSETS 
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 
Balances with banks and monev at call and short notice 
Investments 
Advances 
Fixed Assets 
Other Assets 
TOTAL 
ContinQ:ent Liabilities 
Bills for collection 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

Charter d Accountants 
!CAI Fi Registration No. 0046105 

opalakrishnan 
Partner 
Membership 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

Asat Asat 
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

fin Crore fin Crore 

209,27 209.27 
1,78 0.05 

7,185.03 6,140.19 
99,154.66 90,671.74 

4,212,54 4,772.72 
2,750.86 2,039,28 

1,13,514,14 1,03,833,25 

5,055.80 5,411,18 
1,823.36 1,407.35 

25,334,61 22,925.17 
75,339.87 67,920.21 

930,78 877.53 
5,029.72 5,291.81 

1,13,514.14 1,03,833.25 
37,523.96 23,572.48 

2,071.97 1,923.55 

For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

Thomas Joseph. K 

Executive Vice President 

fJ·~ n~({) 
~ilifu.li 

Chief Finan al Officer 

PRSeshadri 
(Managing Director & 

CEO) 
(DIN : 07820690) 





THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 
UN AUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE NINE MON 1HS ENDED DECEMBER 

31,2023 

I. INCOME 
Interest Earned 
Other Income 
TOTAL 
II. EXPENDITURE 
Interest Exuended 
Ooerating- Exnenses 
Provisions and Contin2:encies (Refer Note 8 below) 
TOTAL 
III. PROFIT/LOSS 
Net ProfitrLoss) for the neriod 
Profit/ (Loss) broue:ht forward from orevious vear 
TOTAL 
IV, APPROPRIATIONS 
Transfer to Statutorv Reserve 
Transfer to Capital Reserve 
Transfer to/ (from) Revenue and Other Reserve 
Transfer to Snecial Reserve u/ s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act 
Transfer to Inveshnent Fluctuation Reserve 
Balance carried over to Un audited interim condensed standalone Balance Sheet 
TOTAL 
Earninvs ner share (Face value of~ 1 per share) 
Basic (in~) 
Diluted /in ~) 

Selected explanatory Notes (Provided below) 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

Chartered ccountants 
!CAI Firm egistration No. 004610S 

eevats Gopalakrishnan 
Partner 
Membership No. 227654 
UDIN: ~=""'-

Thriss 
21-02-2 

-

Nine Months ended 
December 31, 2023 

tin Crore 

6,338.13 
1,169.49 
7,507.62 

3,880.75 
2,192.74 

651.61 
6,725.10 

782.52 
224.49 

1,007.01 

-
-
-
-
-

1,007.01 
1,007.01 

3.74 
3.74 

Thomas Joseph. K 

Executive Vice President 

() n .. JJ 
~ 

Nine Months ended 
December 31, 2022 

fin Crore 

5,260.22 
467.26 

5,727.48 

3,105.32 
1,676.38 

504.58 
5,286.28 

441.20 
-37.87 
403.33 

-
-
-
-
-

403.33 
403.33 

2.11 
2.11 

For and on behalf of 

Boardofc 

PRSeshadri 
(Managing Director & 

CEO) 
(DIN : 07820690) 



THE SOUTH INDIAN BANK LIMITED 

UN AUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 
2023 

Nine months Ended Nine months Ended 
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 

Rs. in Cr Rs. in Cr 
Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 1,135.83 585.66 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 65.90 64.19 

Amortisation of Premium on HTM Investments 210.63 237.70 

Provision for Depreciation/ Non Performing Investments 39.79 273.29 

General Provisions against Standard Assets (28.08) (40.37) 

Provision/write off for Non Performing Assets 364.82 489.29 

Other Provisions (35.58) (7.35) 

Employee Stock Options expense 1.67 0.05 

Interest on Subordinated bonds 132.17 117.27 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of land, buildings and other assets (0.69) (0.54) 

Operating profit before working capital changes (A) 1,886.46 1,719.19 

Changes in working capital: 

Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits 7,503.31 1,529.63 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities 361.01 268.98 

(Increase) /- Decrease in Investments 2,161.56 (2,626.53) 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Advances (5,900.25) (8,416.12) 

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets 186.17 1,183.88 

(B) 4,311.80 (8,060.16' 

Cash flow from operating activities before taxes (A+B) 6,198.26 (6,340.97) 

Direct Taxes paid (275.63) (20.61) 

Net cash flow from operating activities ( C) 5,922.63 (6,361.58 

Cash flow from investing activities: 

Purchase of Fixed Assets/Capital Work-in-Progress (120.98) (77.51) 

Sale of Fixed Assets 7.27 1.95 

(Purchase)/Sale of Investments (Held To Maturity) (3,104.80) 635.37 

Net cash flow from investing activities (D) (3,218.51) 559.81 



Cash flow from financing activities: 

Dividend paid including Corporate Dividend Tax 

Net proceeds/ (repayments) in borrowings 

Interest on Subordinated bonds 

Net cash flow from financing activities (E) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (C+D+E) 

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the period 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP For K Venkatachalam Aiyer & Co 

artered Accountants Chartered ccountants 
I Firm Registration No. 101961 W /W-100036 !CAI Fir Registration No. 004610S 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

,. , 

eevats Gopalakrishnan 
Partner 
Membersl\ip No. 227654 
UDIN: 

Thrissur 
21-02-2024 

(62.78) 

(2,781.31) 

(61.36) 

(2,905.45 

(201.33) 

7,080.49 

6,879.16 

Thomas Joseph. K 

Executive Vice President 

-
1,478.23 

(61.36) 

1,416.87 

(4,384.90) 

11,203.43 

6,818.53 

For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

L 
PRSeshadri 

(Managing Director & 
CEO) 

(DIN : 07820690) 



UN AUDITED INTERIM CONDENSED STANDALONE SEGMENT WISE RESULTS 

1. Segment Revenue 
a) Treasury 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 
c) Retail Banking 

(i) Digital Banking 
(ii) Other Retail Banking 

d) Other Banking Operations 
Total 

Less : Inter se ent Revenue 
Net Income from O erations 

2. Segment Results (net of provisions) 
a) Treasury 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 
c) Retail Banking 

(i) Digital Banking 
(ii) Other Retail Banking 

d) Other Banking Operations 
Total 
Less: unallocated ex enditure 
Profit/ Loss Before Tax 

3. Segment Assets 
a) Treasury 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 
c) Retail Banking 

(i) Digital Banking 
(ii) Other Retail Banking 

d) Other Banking Operations 
e Un allocated 
Total 

4. Segment Liabilities 
a) Treasury 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 
c) Retail Banking 

(i) Digital Banking 
(ii) Other Retail Banking 

d) Other Banking Operations 
e Un allocated 
Total 

Particulars 

5. Capital Employed (Segment Assets-Segment Liabilities) 
a) Treasury 
b) Corporate/ Wholesale Banking 
c) Retail Banking 

(i) Digital Banking 
(ii) Other Retail Banking 

d) Other Banking Operations 
e Un allocated 

Total 

Nine Months ended 
31.12.2023 
Unaudited 

1,491.30 
2,086.88 
3,610.37 

494.63 
3,115.74 

319.07 
7,507.62 

7,507.62 

102.85 
(11.63) 
818.66 
97.54 

721.12 
225.95 

1,135.83 

1,135.83 

27,029.35 
41,803.71 
40,882.34 
3,656.50 

37,225.84 
25.47 

3,773.27 
1,13,514.14 

25,465.42 
39,781.54 
38,904.74 
3,479.63 

35,425.11 

1,968.14 
1,06,119.84 

1,563.93 
2,022.17 
1,977.60 

176.87 
1,800.73 

25.47 
1,805.13 
7,394.30 

Rs.in Cr 
Nine Months ended 

31.12.2022 
Un.audited 

797.00 
1,642.79 
2,925.92 

361.77 
5,727.48 

5,727.48 

(113.22) 
(101.82) 

544.42 

256.28 
585.66 

585.65 

24,592.24 
36,223.99 
39,769.12 

18.10 
3,229.80 

1,03,833.25 

23,335.34 
34,786.93 
38,191.41 

1,170.11 
97,483.79 

1,256.90 
1,437.06 
1,577.71 

18.10 
2,059.69 
6,349.46 



For the above segment reporting, the reportable segments are identified into Treasury, Corporate/Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking (including 

Digital Banking) and Other Banking Operations in Compliance with the revised RBI Guidelines. The Bank operates in India. 

RBI1s Master Direction on Financial Statements-Presentation and Disclosures, requires to sub-divide 'Retail banking' into (a) Digital Banking (as 

defined in RBI Circular on Establishment of Digital Banking Units dated April 07, 2022) and (b) Other Retail Banking segment. Accordingly, the 

interim condensed standalone segmental results for retail banking segment since March 2023 is shown above. Previous period figures have been 

regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable with current period figures. 
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For and on behalf of 
Board of Directors 

~~ 
Thomas) oseph. K P R Seshadri 

Executive Vice President 

C:z/ 
Chief Financif Officer 

(Managing Director & 
CEO) 

(DIN: 07820690) 



Selected explanatory Notes (Provided below) 

1. These Unaudited Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared solely in connection with raising of funds through 
Rights Issue (the "Issue") of equity shares of face value of ~ 1 each (the "Equity Shares") of the bank, in accordance with the provisions of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (hereinafter referred to as 
"the SEBI ICDR Regulations") 

2. The Bank has consistently applied its significant accounting policies in the preparation of its interim condensed standalone financial results 
during the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023 as compared to those followed for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
3. The interim condensed standalone financial results have been arrived at after considering provision for standard assets (including 
requirements for exposures to entities with unhedged foreign currency exposures), provision for non-performing assets (NPAs), provision for 
non-performing investments, provision for income-tax (net adjusted for earlier years) and other usual and necessary provisions. 

4. Other Income includes Profit on sale of investments (net), provision for depreciation on investments, earnings from foreign exchange and 
derivative transactions, commission from non - fund based banking activities, income from sale of PSL Certificates, income from card business, 
recoveries from advances technically written off etc. 

5. Other expense includes Insurance, Rent, Repair, Depreciation, Communication expenses, Outsourced manpower charges, premium paid on 
PSLC purchase, CSR, ATM outsourcing, Card expenses etc. 

6. During the quarter ended December 31, 2023, bank had identified certain irregularities in the nature of fraud at one of the branches and the 
loss is determined at Rs. 28.63 Cr. Bank had provided the entire amount of Rs. 28.63 Cr during the quarter ended December 31, 2023. 

7. Previous period1s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to current period1s classification and also the 
amounts/ ratios for the previous period / year have been regrouped / reclassified pursuant to the requirement of Master Direction on Financial 
Statements - Presentation and Disclosure issued by Reserve Bank of India dated August 30, 2021, as amended and wherever considered 

8. Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 

Particulars 

Provision for NP Aslincludin2: write off, excludin2: technical write off) 
Provision for NPis 
Provision for Income Tax 
Deferred Tax fnet\ 
Provision for Standard Assets 
Provision for Restructured Advances 
Provision for FITL 
Provision for unhedo-ed forei~ curren-· exnosures 
Provision for Non-Bankin2: Asset 
Provision for Fraud/ Other imnaired assets 
TOTAL 

In terms of our report attached 

For CNK & Associates LLP 

U
h t ed Accountants 

m Registration No: 1~1-~~: W /W-100036 
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Partner 
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UDIN: 
Thrissur 
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Rs in Cr 
Nine Months ended 

31.12.2023 31.12.2022 
Unaudited Unaudited 

364.82 489.29 
(2.87 (81.44 

252.28 194.26 
. 101.03 /49.80 

(28.08 (40.37 
/0.00 0.00 

(55.05 5.9, 
(2.74 0.50 
14.41 0.71 
26.63 0.18 

651.61 504.58 

For and on behalf of 

Boardofc 

Thomas Joseph. K PR Seshadri 
(Managing Director & 

Executive Vice President CEO) 

(\) ~<./) (DIN: 07820690) 

~~ 
Chief Finan al Officer 
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